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- Financial Highlights
< HMEBWRE

Revenue

= 26
17%
)
e."

o= 18,528 Earn

FY2022 million HKD
20285 17,297 masz
(restated)

(#&=:5))

Total Debt
HBERK

FY2023 million HKD

2023814 7,71 2 HEETL
FY2022 million HKD
2o2ax 8,401 mesx

Natural Gas Sales and
Transmission Volume

HERE

FY2023 million Cubic Meters
202381 7,008 BBELK

FY2022

million Cubic Meters

2028% 5,913 maurx
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Vision
To build a leading & modern
energy company in China
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N Objectives
Missions L g Create value for our
SR = EJ:
Develop clean energy "&j‘“ (= \5)5 4 customers
Create better life BIRAIR EESR BEaTE Create platforms for our
Core Values employees

Create returns for our
shareholders

Integrity
Customer Supremacy
Innovation
Value Orientation

Teamwork

R TeSERA

aE 28 HEBE QFRIE
BE B BETLE BERE
Shne THEK BEBK

Passionate Ambitious

Principles of Workplace Culture
Practical Diligent

Respect Righteous
Disciplined Precise
Initiative  Positive
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Corporate Profiles
2 a)E

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Operations of the Group include
piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction; transportation,
distribution and sale of compressed natural gas (“CNG") and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG"); and development, production and sale of crude oil and
natural gas and other upstream energy resources.

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 71 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users. As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has
established 1 LNG plants in Qinghai Province, Sichuan Province and Guizhou
Province, PRC respectively. Meanwhile, the Group has also built certain CNG
primary stations to ensure a smooth supply of natural gas all year round.
These facilities support supplies of natural gas to cities not yet covered by
pipeline networks and are treated as emergency backup gas sources for the
Group.

All kinds of automobiles, city buses and long-distance buses can be
converted into natural gas operation system by paying an affordable fee.
Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to automobile owners who are
willing to convert their automobile into natural gas operating system. With
support from the PRC government, the Group offers inexpensive, clean and
environmental friendly natural gas to the transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch pipelines, the Group has already
completed approximately 22,012 km natural gas pipelines in 13 provinces,
cities and autonomous regions. Apart from bringing in stable natural gas
transmission revenue, the branch pipelines constructions will also facilitate
the development of projects along the down-stream.

The Group has well established a large-scale developed natural gas transport
and logistics operation in the PRC, including the set up of LNG and CNG
fleets which have reinforced the mobility and coverage of our natural gas
supplies.

As an upstream energy resources producer, the Group engages in the
development, production and sale of crude oil and gas and other resources
in Alberta of Canada. The exploration and production business of the
Group has the proved reserves of approximately 28.36 million barrels of oil
equivalent and the proved plus probable reserves of approximately 45.64
million barrels of oil equivalent. Its average daily production was 5,469
barrels of oil equivalent in 2023. Our exploration and production business
possesses energy business in production, a very experienced management
team with proven tracking records, a stable production assets portfolio and
strong profitability with considerable potential for growth.
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Natural Gas Distribution Business in China
PEXARDEER

Main trunk pipelines T E# &5 Company operating assets / data X B EZEEER 8B
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il and Gas Production Business in Canada
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to international geopolitical turmoil, the energy market went through
frequent fluctuation, the supply chain of the energy sector was frequently
affected, energy prices fluctuated drastically at a high level, and the growth
of energy consumption slowed down in 2023. In the face of complicated and
changing international environment, the natural gas industry in China acted
resolutely and proactively to ensure stable supply and demand, secure supply
and steady prices, and contributed positively to stabilising the supply chain of
the global natural gas industry. Nevertheless, domestic natural gas production
maintained fairly high growth rate. The natural gas production exceeded
229.71 billion cubic metres in 2023, representing a year-on-year increase of
5.8%. The apparent natural gas consumption reached 394.53 billion cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.6%. And the import
volume amounted to 119.971 million tons, representing a year-on-year
increase of 9.9%.

Despite market volatility over the past year, whilst securing gas supply, safe
production and stable operation, the Group resolutely maintained steady
development in a step-by-step orderly manner amidst various difficulties,
boldly acted and adapted to the changes, and managed to attain
achievements and breakthroughs with great efforts. In 2023, the Group
organised the formulation of a strategic implementation plan based on the
development goals of its medium-and long-term strategies; It vigorously
promoted the construction of its strategic performance management and
control system, optimised the organisational structure, innovated the
management mechanism, secured resource support and built a risk control
system; It created a platform, defined the pathway, improved the
environment, and provided impetus to reach its strategic goals. While
promoting the development strategy of resource acquisition, market
development and non-gas business, the strategies were implemented in an
orderly manner through the five strategic measures of strengthening the
enterprise with talents, organisational support, quality and efficiency
improvement, cost refining and cultural leadership. The Group’s entire
management and staff worked together to overcome various difficulties, and
withstood major tests brought about by the economic downturn. Its
high-quality development began to take off with significant progress, and its
operating results were improved steadily.
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Progress was made in standardising the Group’s management, and the
quality of management was more effectively enhanced in 2023. The Group
further consolidated the integration of business development, staff exchange
and corporate culture building, through which it had significantly higher
synergies between operation and management, and the management model
was better organised, standardised and process-based. In terms of
cybersecurity and informatisation, the Group made every effort to promote IT
construction. During the year, it completed the construction and launch of
the financial shared platform and collaborative office platform. The “Financial
Shared Service Center” was put into operation as scheduled; The
informatisation of its joint-stock companies was right on track with the ERP
system up and running. As for operational and value-added businesses, the
Group launched its private-label gas appliances and other product lines,
completed its re-branding, pivoted on products in smart kitchen, and
established its initial brand influence in the region, thanks to which the
value-added business earned good revenue. In respect of the new energy
business, the Group actively acted on the national new energy policy.
Shandong Visdom Gas Equipment Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (LU R 25 & 2 &)
and Wuhan Dongfang Natural Gas Co., Ltd. ( & Z ® 77 2 & ) had
constructed photovoltaic projects and put them into production, marking the
Group's first step towards new energy business.

CITY PIPELINE NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

Sales and distribution of natural gas

During the year, the Group’s natural gas sales and transmission volume
increased 18.5% as compared to last year.

The Group’s natural gas sales volume recorded to be 4,575 million cubic
meters for 2023 (2022: 4,468 million cubic meters), increased by 2.4%
compared with the same period last year. Transmission volume was 2,433
million cubic meters, recorded a 68.4% rise as compared to the same period
last year.

Consumption of residential users decreased by 2% from last year's 1,005
million cubic meters to 984 million cubic meters; industrial and commercial
users recorded 3,163 million cubic meters (2022: 3,081 million cubic meters),
increased by 3% compared with the same period last year; gas consumption
of gas stations recorded an increase of 13% at current year’s 431 million
cubic meters from last year's 382 million cubic meters. Each of the above
categories representing 22%, 69% and 9% of the total gas sales volume
(2022: 23%, 69% and 8%), respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#)

Development of new users

For 2023, the Group connected 128,395 (2022: 148,300) new residential
users and the accumulated development of residential users were 2,041,936.
Total connections for new industrial and commercial users were 1,312 (2022:
1,094) and the accumulated development of industrial and commercial users
were 18,008.

EXPLOITATION AND PRODUCTION OF CRUDE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group continued the business of exploitation and production of light oil
and natural gas in Canada. The Group’s production in 2023 was 5,469
barrels of oil equivalent per day (“boe/d”), approximately the same as in the
comparable period of 2022.

Reference crude oil prices were 17.6% lower in 2023, with West Texas
Intermediate averaging US$77.62 per barrel compared with US$94.23 per
barrel in 2022. The Group realized a crude oil price of CAD96.69 per barrel
in 2023 compared to CAD117.32 per barrel in 2022 with a year-on-year
decrease of 17.6%. The Group achieved the average operating netback of
CAD31.19 per barrel of oil equivalent, representing a decrease of 35.9% as
compared with CAD48.67 per barrel of oil equivalent for the same period
last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

China’s economy still encountered multiple short-term challenges in 2023. In
response, the PRC government introduced policies, including the Outline of
Strategic Planning for Expanding Domestic Demand. In 2024, we will stick to
the strategy of boosting domestic demand and developing a complete
domestic demand system, and accelerating the establishment of a new
development pattern in which domestic economic cycle plays a leading role
while international economic cycle remains its extension and supplement so
as to carry out the strategic decision of long-term development, peace and
security. Moreover, we will proactively implement fiscal policies and prudent
monetary policies, step up macroeconomic policy adjustments, and vigorously
boost market confidence in order to ensure the steady and upward economic
operation, significant quality improvement and reasonable growth in
quantity.
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With respect to the development of the natural gas industry, as the National
Energy Administration put forward in the Guiding Opinions on Energy Work
in 2023, the safe energy and secure supply should be reinforced; high-quality
energy development should be continuously advanced; security of energy
supply should be prioritised; and we should be prepared for the unexpected
and worst, and keenly aware of issues and systematic concepts. For a longer
period of time in future, it will be critical and fairly difficult for us to start
preparations and build capabilities for reaching the goal of carbon peak and
neutrality, and it's essential to solve energy security issues first.

In 2024, the Group will open a new chapter for high-quality development,
where we will create new sources of income, cut spending, and attach equal
importance to development and quality. As for the strategic planning of the
year ahead, we will prioritise “faster growth”, enhance the innovation and
efficiency of existing industries, strengthen coordinated operation, and
continue to develop new competitive businesses; We will further promote
delicacy management, and elevate the quality of basic management through
full use of IT and digital platforms; We will put people first, and maximise the
senior management’s sense of initiative and entrepreneurship; And we will
adopt various measures to safeguard the sustainable growth of the Group's
benefits. The Group will continue to prioritise marketing and sales, and
resource coordination, fully leverage the leading role of large regions and
drive the growth of market shares at full speed. It will reinforce ex-ante price
risk control, and promote price linkage to ensure a steady increase in price
difference; It will focus on operational coordination, facilitate the sharing of
resources within regions and the Group to maximise the effectiveness of
resources. The Group will spare no effort in providing customers with a stable
supply of natural gas, quality products and thoughtful services by addressing
energy supply risks in corresponding regions, preparing adequate energy
supply in advance, stabilising local reserves and establishing corporate social
responsibility.

The Group will continuously work on the upstream and downstream
integration, build development channels, strengthen institutional
construction, accelerate the building of talent pipelines, enhance the
operational efficiency of the organisation, establish a communication
mechanism, step up management of internal and external relations, speed up
platform development, fulfill the goal of IT and digital transformation,
reinforce investment control, refine the evaluation system, further optimise
the function bordering of relevant competent departments and refine the
supervisory functions so as to form a energy supervision framework where
various departments have reasonable division of labor and work in close
coordination.

Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

(continued) (#)

ERRAREZFZRRTE > BRERBHN(Z
Z_-FRERIFEREERER) L - BERE
RELZE2RETHE  HEXDERSRER
B EERREREREEM - ERAEE
BEERNERDE  HHEEEATNRGS
BB o ARBE—REH - REDER[E
ix) BEEHBMBESH  ENBEHRNAY
WEH - MAFERZEBEREARRRE

—EoNF - RAKERREERERFB@E
MRESMRTE  HREREHE - 5F
BERE : NMEER] AEL - BERA
EXRMEN  BEKLERSE  KETE
MEERR BERERBLERE RSO
REMBELCLTFERAERERRE : A
RE  2NBESEERBEENTER
M 2HITHE REEFERSEFEEER -
SEDKETEMSREREE - BREED
REBERTIE > ROBERENHTEER -
EARETSHENER - MRERERSE
RIPER  HEBRBY  REEEZRBIE
HoIBERERE HmEREAN  EERA
BRNDE  BEEREAMA - £FERE
EHREEREERR - BRFTMERHEE
B G rBEMSTHERFE BILEHEER
T BEEHIAFFPEHRBENRARHEE -
BENEMM O RS

SEIESE LT 8 EERERBE
BIEEBER  MRAABHRRR  &A
MBETHE  EXBBES - MERAN

BHEEE  MRTFARR  EREAAK
BRRAM NBRRAEE  RETE

BRER £ TE{HEBETEPIREE
ROMBETEERENBEL  BHE
MAGENT - BUERSWEREERS °

FHRREBER LT 2023FFIf

13




14

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#)

Besides, the Group will regulate data and resources to conduct value-based
management of data; it will strengthen precautionary awareness and
enhance the level of risk management; it will promote innovation and
development and cultivate new competitive businesses; and it will reinforce
the unity of knowledge and practice, and advance in-depth cultural
construction by completing the compilation of its Culture Handbook so as to
consolidate the construction of culture and “three fundamentals”.

In accordance with the national objectives of ensuring secure and stable
energy supply and continuously promoting high-quality development of
energy, together with the strategic business presence and deployment of
leading companies in the industry, the Group will be flexible when coping
with various uncertainties, refine the coordination between the partial and
entirety of the Group, continuously optimising its focus on
medium-to-long-term business development, thus laying a firm and solid
foundation for its medium-to-long-term business development. Moreover,
the Group will proactively launch new businesses, such as integrated energy
services and new energy, and conduct research and development of its
ecosystem with a view to establishing a green and low-carbon circular
economic development system. With the aid of eco-partners, the Group will
carry out its new business strategy, and vigorously advance in-depth
development of ESG-related green industries, such as photovoltaic, hydrogen
utilisation and wastewater utilisation by the Group and its project companies
through diverse forms of cooperation and development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all our staff

for their dedication and hard work and to our shareholders for their
continuous support.

Xu Tie-liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 April 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$18,528 million, representing an increase of 7.1% from HK$17,297
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The total revenue combined by four segments, namely (1) sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related product, (2) gas pipeline
construction and connection, (3) exploitation and production of crude oil and
natural gas and (4) production and sales of coal derived clean energy and
other related products, amounted to HK$14,096 million, HK$1,145 million,
HK$502 million and HK$2,785 million respectively (2022: HK$14,617 million,
HK$960 million, HK$727 million and HK$993 million).

The Group’s overall gross profit amounted to HK$1,971 million (2022:
HK$2,121 million), representing a decrease of 7.1%; Loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$232 million, represented
a decrease of 131.8%. As at 31 December 2023, the Group has net
impairment losses on financial and contract assets of HK$201 million; net
impairment on investment in an associate of HK$141 million. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has a reversal of impairment on oil and gas
properties under property, plant and equipment of HK$118 million. The
Group counted the above as one-off items and these will not affect the
ordinary operation and cash-flow of the Group.

Administrative expenses were HK$704 million (2022: HK$508 million), an
increase of 38.6% as compared to the same period last year, the proportion
of administrative expenses to revenue was slightly increase to 3.8% (2022:
2.9%) with selling and distribution costs recorded an increase of 5.3%.

Finance costs (net of capitalization) decreased slightly from last year’s
HK$453 million to HK$433 million. The Group’s weighted average cost of all
indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior notes)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was 5.8% (2022: 6.6%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEEWRR DN

(continued) (#)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

It is the Group’s policy to use the cash flow generated from operations and
appropriate level of borrowings as the principal source of fund to expand
business and acquire projects. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total
indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior notes)
amounted to HK$7,712 million (2022: HK$8,401 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits with maturity over three months of HK$3,246 million (2022:
HK$3,951 million). Total assets were HK$20,841 million (2022: HK$21,710
million), in which current assets were HK$5,836 million (2022: HK$6,383
million). Total liabilities of the Group were HK$13,279 million (2022:
HK$13,859 million), in which current liabilities were HK$8,632 million (2022:
HK$9,403 million). The Group’s net debt-to-assets ratio, measured on the
basis of total indebtedness net of cash and term deposits, divided by total
assets was 21.4% (2022: 20.5%). The Group’s financial and liquidity remain
stable, and well prepared for the development in 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant investment
held.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 4,798 (2022: 4,837)
full-time employees, most of whom were stationed in the PRC. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working experience
and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the
employees consists of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, senior notes issued by the Company and the
Bridge Loan Facilities were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Group's interests in 195,027,219 shares of Shandong Shengli Co., Ltd.
(LL B FI % 15 B BR A 7]), a company limited by shares established in the
PRC whose issued shares are listed and traded on the main board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Shandong Shengli”) (stock code: 000407), being
22.16% of the entire share capital of Shandong Shengli, were pledged to a
bank to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

Certain investment properties, right-of-use assets and collection right of sales
of natural gas are pledged for bank borrowings of HK$163 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEEWRR DN

(continued) (#)

LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Under the Syndicated Loan Agreement and the Bridge Loan Agreement, if
there occurs a change in control, the lenders may declare the participation in
the Syndicated Loan Facilities or the Bridge Loan Facilities (where appropriate)
due and payable. The change in control includes, among others:

(@  Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr. Xu"), executive Director, chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer of the Company (whether individually or
collectively with his spouse and his or his spouse’s children (whether
through a trust or otherwise)):

(i) is not, or ceases to be the single largest direct or indirect
beneficial holder (holding not less than 25%) of each class of the
Company’s equity interests carrying any entitlement to vote; or

(i) does not, or ceases to (without prejudice to paragraph (i) above)
directly or indirectly control the Group. For the purpose of this
paragraph, “control” has the meaning given to it in The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs;

(b)  Mr. Xu is not, or ceases to be, chairman of the Board unless replaced
by a person approved by all the lenders; or

(¢)  the Company does not, or ceases to:

(i) own beneficially (and directly or indirectly) not less than 51%
of each class of equity interests of China City Natural Gas
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (F R TR RILE LB FR A F])
("CCNG"), carrying any entitlement to vote; or

(i) control, directly or indirectly, CCNG. For the purpose of this
paragraph, “control” means the ability to direct CCNG's affairs
and/or the composition of its board of directors (or equivalent
body).

Details of the Syndicated Loan Facilities or the Bridge Loan Facilities are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY
POLICY

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the
Group's treasury function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the major
objectives of the Group's treasury policies is to manage its exposure to
fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the
Group's policy not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group'’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi, Canadian dollars and United States dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no material litigation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$56,368,038.34 divided into 5,636,803,834 shares of the Company with
a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors
EERE/GBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 60, an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board and also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for a holistic strategic planning of the Group, leading and supervising the
work of the Board and Corporate Governance Committee. He is also the
managing director of Shandong Shengli Co., Ltd. (000407.5Z), China City
Natural Gas Investment Group Co., Ltd and Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada and
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi‘an
Shiyou University (78 % /5 ) KX &), and postgraduate from the University of
International Business and Economics (¥ 4h 4% & & 5 K &), postgraduate
from Tsinghua University School of Economic and Management (J& % X £
& BB7), with a master degree of advanced business administration. Mr.
Xu has extensive experience in energy, investments and management.

Mr. Xu is the spouse of Ms. Guan Yijun and father of Ms. Xu Ran. He is
the director of Sino Vantage Management Limited and Great Xu Holdings
Limited, companies which have disclosable interests in the Shares under the
provisions in Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director on
10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president of the
Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of each of the
Corporate Governance Committee and the Remuneration Committee. She
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Guan was
a postgraduate from Peking University, and obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration. She has extensive business operation management
experiences over 24 years.

Ms. Guan is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang and the mother of Ms. Xu Ran.

Mr. Gao Falian, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director on 17 May
2021. Mr. Gao is also a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.
He is a senior engineer, obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Peking
University and a master’s degree in engineering from China University of
Petroleum. Mr. Gao currently serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group, including China Oil and Gas Investment and CCNG. He also served
as president of CCNG during the period from February 2010 to August
2018 and president of China Oil and Gas Investment during the period from
September 2015 to August 2018. Mr. Gao held several positions in China
Petroleum Pipeline Bureau during August 1985 to May 2010, including
general manager, commissioner of technical service etc. He has extensive
experience in oil and gas industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Ms. Xu Ran, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director on 2
November 2021. She has been the manager of investment department of
the Company for over eight years. She is also a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Since she joined the Company, she has participated in
the acquisition of Baccalieu Energy Inc. in Canada and is responsible for
evaluating the investment opportunities and treasury management in the
upstream business in North America. She also participated in the work of
the issuance of four batches of senior notes in a total amount of USD1.4
billion. She is also responsible for the external investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. Xu worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms.
Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from The University of San
Diego of U.S.A. in 2012.

Ms. Xu is the daughter of Mr. Xu Tie-liang and Ms. Guan Yijun.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Zhihong, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. She is the chairman of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Ms. Liu holds an executive master’s degree of business administration from
the Peking University and is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Liu has been a senior wealth management manager
of AIA Hong Kong since 2021. She was the financial controller of Tonking
New Energy Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 8326) during 2016 to 2020. Ms. Liu had participated
in the audit work of BDO Limited during 2008 to 2012. She has extensive
experience in the field of accounting. Ms. Liu has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Zhongshen Jianye Holding Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; Stock
Code: 2503) on 19 December 2023.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 November 2009. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. He held a master degree in world economics
from the Hebei University and has over 39 years of experience in financial and
administrative management. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director
of Hebei Listed Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. He was an independent
non-executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 2688) from December
2000 to May 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EERE/GBN

(continued) (#)

Mr. Yang Jie, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2017. He is a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. Yang
held a bachelor degree at University of International Business Economics. Mr.
Yang is currently serving as director of MEC Advisory Limited which is the
sole advisor of Can-China Global Resource Fund, and EMC Financial Limited,
the general partner of Can-China Global Resource Fund respectively. Mr.
Yang has more than 24 years of experience in mining investment and capital
operation. He served as a board member of several Canadian listed mining
companies and senior adviser of several Chinese companies for their overseas
investment. Mr. Yang served as vice chairman of Greater China Mining
Group, a director and an executive vice president of Continental Mineral
Corp. and senior vice president and partner in Hunter Dickinson Inc. He has
participated in corporate financing, mergers and acquisitions for numerous
Canadian mining companies.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 75 to 237.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Company’s Business

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and a discussion on the Group's future business development, and also
the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2023 using
the key financial performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 19.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The following are the key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those as shown below which are not known to
the Group or may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.

Natural Gas Price Control Risk

The Group is principally engaged in distribution of natural gas in the PRC.
The city-gate price of natural gas is determined with reference to the
wellhead price and transmission charges. In China, wellhead prices for
residential and fertilizer users are fixed, while wellhead prices for industrial
and commercial users may vary from the benchmark price set by the PRC
National Development and Reform Commission. Piped gas end-user tariffs
are determined by local pricing bureaus. There may be risks that the Group
is unable to obtain approval for passing through any increase in natural gas
price which would deteriorate the Group's profit.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s principal business is located in the PRC and Canada and its
major transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of its assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in Renminbi and Canadian dollars.

The Renminbi is not freely convertible. There is a risk that the Chinese
government may take actions affecting exchange rates which may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s net assets, earnings and any dividends
it declares if such dividend is to be exchanged or converted into foreign
exchange. The Group has not entered into any hedging transactions to
manage the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. The Group does not
consider that it has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the
exchange rate between HK$ and RMB.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential risk that the Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every function at divisional
and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Environmental Policy and Performance

Both the government and the public continue to pay utmost attention to
environmental issues, despite the fact that certain expensive and environment
friendly measures were planned and implementation will soon be taken
place. More stringent requirements may be put into practice to address these
issues.

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023 containing the information required under
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to The Bermuda Companies Act. In addition, the Company is
registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”)
and therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company's shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules, including the
disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions therein. Under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO"), the Company is required to maintain a register of interests in
shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions and is obliged to make timely disclosure of inside
information.

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
concerned, there was no breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on its
businesses and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate
the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long term goals.
Accordingly, the management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them when appropriate.
During the year under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners or bank enterprises.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outstanding guarantees in the amount of RMB140 million provided by
China Oil and Gas Investment Group Company Limited* (FFJHR ¥ R 1% & &
A BR A a]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for the
due performance of the repayment obligations of Shandong Shengli to its
creditors were released upon full repayment of the loans by Shandong
Shengli in January 2024. As at the date of this report, there was no
outstanding guarantees provided to Shandong Shengli in favour of its
relevant banking and financial institutions.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 21 June 2024 (the "AGM"), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 17 June 2024 to Friday, 21 June
2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 June 2024.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and restated or reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 238.
That summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year (2022: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any share during the year ended 31 December
2023.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debenture during the year ended 31
December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share schemes as set out in this Report of the Directors and
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements respectively, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year.
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SHARE SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23
November 2011. The Old Share Option Scheme was expired on 23 November
2021. Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant including, but not limited to
any person being an employee, executive directors or non-executive directors
of the Group or any invested entity (including independent non-executive
directors of the Group or any invested entity) and any suppliers, consultants
or advisers who will provide or have provided services to the Group or any
invested entity. Details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board adopted on 4 November 2011 a restricted share award scheme
as an incentive to recognise the contributions by employees and to give
incentives in order to retain them for their continuing operation and
development and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. The restricted share award scheme was expired on 4 November 2021.

Details of movements in the share options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

B A7 &t &
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Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise Date of Exercisable as at during during during as at 31
participants price grant period 1 January 2023 the year the year the year December 2023
R-B-=ZF R-B-zZE
-A-H t-A=1-H
SEERZGER TfE RHAH TS HATE EREHL ERfTH FREN WA TE
(HKS)
(B
Employees 0.46 22/01/2016  22/01/2019 to 85,020,000 - — — 85,020,000
21/01/2026
B8 0.46 ZEB-RE “T-hE
—A=+ZB —A=+ZHE
ZEIRE
-AZt-H
Total 85,020,000 - — — 85,020,000
At
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Notes:
The vesting period and the exercisable manner of these share options are as follow:

(i) The vesting period of 30% of the share options is from the date of grant and up
to 21 January 2018 and are exercisable on 22 January 2018;

(ii) The vesting period of 30% of the share options is from the date of grant and up
to 21 January 2019 and are exercisable on 22 January 2019; and

(i) The vesting period of 40% of the share options is from the date of grant and up
to 21 January 2020 and are exercisable on 22 January 2020.

These share options were granted on 22 January 2016, the closing price
of the shares on 21 January 2016, being the date immediately before the
date of grant, was HK$0.43. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
share options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme were cancelled,
exercised or lapsed.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the share options
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme divided by the weighted
average number of issued Shares for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
1.77%.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 June 2023, the
shareholders approved the adoption of the new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) and the new share award scheme (the “New
Share Award Scheme”) so that options and awards may be granted to
eligible participants pursuant to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme
and the New Share Award Scheme respectively. The New Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme were adopted on 19 June 2023,
being the date of fulfilment of all conditions precedent.

The principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme and the New Share
Award Scheme are summarised as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group; the purpose of the New Share
Award Scheme is to align the interests of eligible participants with
those of the Group through ownership of shares, dividends and
other distributions paid on shares and/or the increase in value of the
shares and to encourage and enable eligible participants, upon whose
judgment, initiative and efforts the Group largely depends for the
successful conduct of its business, to make contributions to the long-
term growth and profits of the Group and share in the success of the
Group.
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The participants of the New Share Option Scheme and the New Share
Award Scheme include (i) any employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company; and (ii) any
director of the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options and awards to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme, the New Share Options Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company, shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at 15 June 2023, being the date of approval of the New
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Options Scheme, which was
563,680,383 shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Such limit might
be refreshed by the Shareholders at general meeting after three years
from the adoption date or the date of Shareholders’ approval for the
last refreshment.

The total number of options and awards available for grant under
the Scheme Mandate Limit at the adoption date and 31 December
2023 was 563,680,383 shares. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company is 563,680,383 shares, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options (including both exercised
and outstanding options) and awards granted to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the relevant class of the
shares in issue.

Each grant of options and awards to an eligible participant who is a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, under the New Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors.

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to an
independent non-executive Director or a substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 0.1% of the relevant class of the shares in issue.

Unless approved by the Shareholders, any granted of awards to
director (including independent non-executive director), chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates,
in any 12-month period must not exceed 0.1% of the relevant class of
the shares in issue.
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The option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee and such
period shall not exceed the period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The vesting period of the options and awards granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme shall not be
shorter than 12 months from the date of acceptance of the offer and
the date of grant of awards respectively.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within the time as may
be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than 21 days from the
offer date) and the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by the
way of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price, which a grantee may subscribe for the share
on the exercise of an option, shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be not less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The award shares will be
granted to the eligible participants at nil consideration.

the New Share Option Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of
adoption, i.e. 19 June 2023.

No share options and awards were granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme since their adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December

2023.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company'’s share premium account in the amount of HK$13,208,000 may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares, and the Company’s
contributed surplus account in the amount of HK$1,447,454,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

RZZE_=F+_A=+—H8  2ak®n
i B BR 2 # BR & %813,208,000% JT AT 1% A 44
TABRFEADK  MAREBEGKESEE
1,447,454,000/8 L& TIER Al TAD IR ©

IEFFRHER

SETEHERAREPEEZRBRHEER
BALWT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
% %
Purchase i

— the largest supplier —RAHER 4.7 9.9
— five largest suppliers combined —hARHEE S 16.8 35.1

Turnover EEE
— the largest customer —BAEP 2.6 4.9
— five largest customers combined —hAREP & 8.0 8.3

The percentage of the turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers combined were less than 30% of the total turnover of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own

more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. GAO Falian
Ms. XU Ran
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. LIU Zhihong
(appointed on 15 June 2023)
Mr. WANG Wenhua
(retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 15 June 2023)
Mr. WANG Guangtian
Mr. YANG lJie

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Xu Ran and Mr. Yang
Jie shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at the 2024 AGM and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Liu Zhihong, being a
Director appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 15 June 2023, shall be subject to re-election at the 2024 AGM and, being
eligible, offers herself for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

Each of the independent non-executive Director has provided his/her annual
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE SCHEMES” and
“DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report and in notes 31(b) and 31(c) to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang entered into a service contract with the Company on 29
March 2023 for the continuous appointment as an executive Director for a
term of three years commencing from 10 April 2023.

Ms. Guan Yijun entered into a service contract with the Company on 1
January 2021 for the continuous appointment as an executive Director for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2021. On 27 March 2024,
Ms. Guan Yijun has signed a renewed service contract for a term of three
years with retrospective effect from 1 April 2024.
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Mr. Gao Falian entered into a service contract with the Company on 17 May
2021 for the appointment as an executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 17 May 2021. On 27 March 2024, Mr. Gao Falian has
signed a renewed service contract for a term of three years commencing
from 17 May 2024.

Ms. Xu Ran entered into a service contract with the Company on 2 November
2021 for the appointment as an executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 2 November 2021.

Ms. Liu Zhihong signed a letter of appointment issued by the Company on
15 June 2023 for the appointment as an independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years commencing from 15 June 2023.

Each of Mr. Wang Guantian and Mr. Yang Jie signed a letter of appointment
issued by the Company on 1 January 2021 for the continuous appointment
as an independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021. On 27 March 2024, each of them has
signed a renewed letter of appointment for a term of three years with
retrospective effect from 1 April 2024.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Group or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted
at 31 December 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required to notify to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"), are set out below:

Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
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EEpR 54 ¥E/ KR e RBEZEREE RASHEIL FsEsesE
XU Tie-liang Beneficiary of a trust ~ Long position 1,2 1,592,634,130 28.25% Us$1,600,000
AR R EREHEA e 1,600,000% 7T
Interest in controlled Long Position 2 — — US$2,000,000

corporations
REHEE #a A 2,000,000% 7T
GUAN Yijun Interest of spouse Long position 1,2 1,592,634,130 28.25% US$1,600,000
BEE B s A 1,600,000 7T
Interest of spouse Long position — — — US$500,000
[ 35} 500,000 7©
Interest of controlled  Long position 2 — — US$1,500,000

corporation
REGEE o R e 1,500,000 7T
XU Ran Beneficial owner Long position 500,000 0.01% —
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Notes:

Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr. Xu") is the beneficiary of The Great Xu Fund Trust, a trust
managed by TMF (Cayman) Ltd.. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee holds the entire
issued share capital of Great Xu Holdings Limited (“Great Xu") which acquired
the entire issued share capital of Sino Vantage Management Limited (“Sino
Vantage”) on 22 January 2021, which in turn holds 1,592,634,130 shares of
the Company (the “Shares”). Therefore, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in
1,592,634,130 Shares pursuant to the SFO. Ms. Guan Yijun (“Ms. Guan”) is the
spouse of Mr. Xu, therefore, Ms. Guan is also deemed to be interested in the
said 1,592,634,130 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

An amount of US$1,500,000, US$500,000 and US$1,600,000 of the
US$400,000,000 4.7% senior notes of the Company due 2026 is held through
Moral High Limited, which is owned by Mr. Xu and Ms. Guan as to 50% each,
Alpha Finance Holdings Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Xu,
and Sino Vantage respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company which notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO), or were recorded on the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2023, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief executives,
the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in
the issued share capital of the Company:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Long position/
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Approximate
Number of percentage of the
ordinary shares Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity short position held share capital
HAEE#T
BERESE BB &4 BR/ KR FEZERHE RAEMAE DL
Sino Vantage Beneficial owner Long position 1,592,634,130 28.25%
BEHEAA TR
Great Xu Interest in controlled Long position 1,592,634,130 28.25%
corporations
REGEEz Em -3
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee Long position 1,592,634,130 28.25%
XFEA e
Note: it -

These 1,592,634,130 Shares are held by Sino Vantage, which is wholly-owned by Great
Xu, which in turn wholly-owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd.. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. managed
Great Xu in which Mr. Xu is the beneficiary. Therefore, each of Great Xu and TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. is taken to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Sino
Vantage interested.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as at 31
December 2023.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Directors prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had entered into
certain related party transactions but these transactions were not regarded
as connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of
these related party transactions are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 40 to 62 of the annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1998 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code, which is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company's website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor; to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, to provide recommendations for any questions regarding
the resignation or dismissal of such auditor; to review the interim and annual
reports, and financial statements of the Group; to oversee the Company’s
financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial reporting
function and their training arrangement and budget, and to review the risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Liu Zhihong (as chairman), Mr. Wang Guangtian and Mr. Yang
Jie. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and is of the opinion that
such financial statements complied with the applicable accounting standards,
the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company in the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2024 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 April 2024
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company has all along committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders by ensuring that the proper processes for supervision and
management of the Group’s businesses are duly operated and reviewed and
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are established
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu is
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured
by current Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals
with sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met all relevant code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

BHE-_ZT_ZF+_-_A=Z=+—8BLtEE " 2
AEERBREISEEIRITSEERKZE
EEBRERRBFUAREYRIFZOEESR
BREERF —ERIRAMERRETHEE
o ARIEFEM ETRAMEEOIBEE AT
Al ([eEERTAU]) T 2 FRHEXEAR
RRAIAGZHHEERTA -

TEERER
REBEE_ET-_=F+-_A=+—RHILEE -
NEIBEROCEE AT 2 BT AE

X0 T XA RS LER AN o

EEREATUZTAKRIEC2IFTRER
RITBBHZBERAEMED - FLEERR
BXERTHREE - EFRMAE - £HA
Bl —& AT RREEEFRITBARE/MER
i AIRREEEMEARARZAE - &
BRERBEEREEZERRRK - EFR
HERRZLHTERERELREMEH
¥ MEAEAEREFZIAT (HFH
ARABECBYFATES AANZES
R IReE LR ML o

BREdESN  BEFERRRARBE_T
F+-_A=T-HUEFERDCNTALEE)
ST RIFTEL 2 P AR R T AR ST -

EECREFRS

ARAERMEEFAFMREBERRITES
RHMBTER - GHRBREFEHAES
HoORAWR RREFABEEERN—
B 2 B < B BT B E AR o

op



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. GAO Falian

Ms. XU Ran

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. LIU Zhihong

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Mr. YANG Jie

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang and Ms. Xu Ran is
the daughter of Mr. Xu Tie-liang and Ms. Guan Yijun, the Board members
have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to ensure
strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the Board
reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.

Ms. Liu Zhihong was been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. She had obtained legal advice from a firm of
solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong law as regards the requirements
under the Listing Rules that are applicable to her as a director of a listed
issuer and the possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange on 22 August 2023, and she has
confirmed she understood her obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 22
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.
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The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group’s financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31

December 2023 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

Name of Director

EEZRBARTELERE  HAERBEKS
FRAEEECHBRRANERE - EFR
REEEERECREIFREHETESR
HEZRE ERLEBRE BETANE
ERFRERTEBBEERE REMR R
BRG] o

B 253

REBELGEERTAZTRERXEC 141 - FT
FESRE2EBEEXRER  BRALEHFH
HMBLREE  NHARHEHEEEZABZEEM
RUOEMBHBEATHEZRELRR -

PREZHEZNBEZESEY - YrRAA
BHERBE-_TE_=F+-_A=+—8H1t
VR FEREESEIINTHE -

BE-_ZT-_=%+-_RA=1+—BLEEMRE
EZEEZEBEICHEHIOT

Attending or participating in
seminars/inhouse briefing or
reading materials relevant
to the Group’s business/
director’s duties

HESSHBEEEERX

EEREHECEE

EEHR RS EHRE R EEEE R
Mr. XU Tie-liang FFERR St & v
Ms. GUAN Yijun MEE L+ v
Mr. GAO Falian BEELAE v
Ms. XU Ran R L v
Ms. LIU Zhihong BlET 2+ v
Mr. WANG Guangtian FTEHLE v/
Mr. YANG Jie BT E 4

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer,
and Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that by taking the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person, it has the benefit of maintaining a consistent leadership
and enables a more effective and efficient overall strategic planning within
the Group. The Board believes that the present arrangement will not impair
its balance of power and authority, and this is ensured by current Board
members, which comprise experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors.
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Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are high caliber individuals,
with academic and professional qualifications and experience in the fields
of accounting, finance and investment. With their accumulated experience
gained from various sectors, they can provide strong support towards
the Board’s effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities. Each
independent non-executive Director has provided his/her annual confirmation
of independence to the Company, and the Company considered that each
of them is independent based on the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for specific term and subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013 (the
"Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve its diversity. The Company
recognises that increasing diversity at Board level will support the attainment
of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegates certain duties to the Nomination Committee under the
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to
set measurable objectives for the implementation of the Policy from time to
time, to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards these
objectives are achievable and ascertainable.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

TEEXERHRSE
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BOARD LEVEL

Pursuant to the Policy, selection of candidates for Board appointments will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the Policy annually to
ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of four male members
and three female members. The Nomination Committee considered that the
Board was sufficiently diverse in terms of gender and the Board had not set
any measurable objectives. The Company has also reviewed the membership,
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that the
structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and skills of the
Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the Company to maintain a
high standard of operation.

The Group is also committed to achieving gender diversity across the
workforce (including senior management). The details of gender ratio in the
workforce (including senior management) are shown in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
recruitment policy of the Group is to only consider the personal merits and
capabilities, qualifications, working experiences and performance of the
individuals during the recruitment process, transferal, promotion, and training
regardless of gender. In the interests of enhancing efficiency, the Company
has not set any measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at
workforce level. The Company has nonetheless always adopted a meritocratic
approach and adhered to the principle of openness and fairness without
any discrimination in respect of gender, disability, marital status, pregnancy,
religion, nationality, social or economic class, rural or urban, political opinion,
pathogen-carrier or sexuality.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings held quarterly each year, and
additional meetings will take place as and when required. These Board
meetings are planned in advance. During the regular meeting, the Board
examines the Company’s operation and financial performance, reviews and
approves its annual and interim results.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held 4 meetings. All
Directors were given opportunities to include any matters in the agenda
for the regular Board meetings, and were given sufficient time to review
documents and information relating to matters to be discussed in the Board
meetings.

Name of Director

TEEXERHRSE

(continued) (#&)

BE_ZT_=—F1T_A=1+—RBHLFE " &
EREGRTIRER - MAEEEHEHREIE
THRERNAEZTREHEERRERN - L E
REAIBHENNREZREZR TR
EHEMZIXHMNER -

Number of attendance

EEHA HESBRARH
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR B 4/4
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FERITEKAEE)
Ms. GUAN Yijun BRELL 4/4
Mr. GAO Falian SBELEYE 4/4
Ms. XU Ran FFAL L 4/4
Mr. WANG Wenhua (Note 1) EXESRE BT 11
Ms. LIU Zhihong (Note 2) BRI 2+ (B at2) 3/3
Mr. WANG Guangtian FTEHEE 4/4
Mr. YANG lie BARESE 4/4
Notes: et -
1. Mr. Wang Wenhua retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held 1. EFXERER_ZT_=ZFATHAETH
on 15 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") and 1 Board meeting was held before his BEEBFAS ([ZE-_=FREBAFRL])
retirement. HREBERE  BRERENEEMAEEZRE

2. Ms. Liu Zhihong was appointed on 15 June 2023 and 3 Board meetings were
held after her appointment.

Board minutes are open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board
member is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board adopted on 29 March 2023 a mechanism for Directors to obtain
independent opinions and perspectives for them to discharge their duties
and responsibilities, and to ensure independent views and input are available
to the Board. The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism annually.

The Company shall arrange suitable and sufficient resources to cover any
matters relating to the obtaining of an independent opinion by the Board,
including but not limited to the engagement of a legal team or any other
professionals for such purpose (where appropriate).

The Directors shall give at least three working days’ notice to the Company
Secretary to obtain an independent opinion, including but not limited to
engaging a professional team for such purpose (where appropriate).

2
e

2. BEMLLIN T _=ZF A TEBEEE -
HE@QRITBREERERE -
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The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) and the policy at least annually to ensure
that the composition of the Board complies with the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules including maintaining a balanced mix of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so
that the Board has a strong element of independence which can effectively
exercise independent judgment.

If all the independent non-executive Directors have served on the Board
for more than nine years, the Company should consider to appoint a new
independent non-executive director at the next annual general meeting.

General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company held 1 general

EERAEIEEFRIERE  AE -4
K(BIEKRE - MBRER) RERK - AE
REZRMAKTE ETRANNBERERE
BREFHUTEIFATES (BREBIIFH

TER) ZHBHEE  SEERABRESR
S ABRATRE LA -

WABEBIYFRTESORNEZRERES
NFE - RAREERTERRBFRELE
EHBILFNTES -

BRERAE

BE_Z_=F+_-_A=+—RHIFE -

meeting, being the 2023 AGM held on 15 June 2023. AR _ZE-_=ZFANBE+HBEETIAR % 7(
g M- _=FREAFKRKE -
Name of Director Number of attendance
BN HESBXRH
Mr. XU Tie-liang SRR EE 1/1
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (5':‘/"& TTIECAEE)
Ms. GUAN Yijun BELL 1”1
Mr. GAO Falian %}%ééziﬁ*ﬁi 11
Ms. XU Ran FFARL L 11
Mr. WANG Wenhua (Note 1) T XESE (M) 11
Ms. Liu Zhihong (Note 2) 2B 2t (Krazt2) N/A
3 A
Mr. WANG Guangtian FEBLE 11
Mr. YANG lie BAREE 11
Notes: Mat -
1. Mr. Wang Wenhua retired upon conclusion of the 2023 AGM held on 15 June 1. I Yi EERZZE_=FATHEBETH
2023 and 1 general meeting was held before his retirement. —E_=FRRBERGHERBRME KR

2. Ms. Liu Zhihong was appointed on 15 June 2023 and no general meeting was
held after her appointment.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, making use of the annual general meeting
or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. Mr. Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the CG Committee, attended the 2023 AGM and answered
questions and collected views of shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board takes into account
the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the natural gas industry
and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 15 March 2006
and currently consists of two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Guangtian (as chairman) and Ms. Liu Zhihong and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Gao Falian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board; to provide recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board in order to complement the Group’s strategy;
to identify qualified individuals in becoming members of the Board; to assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors; to review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives; and to provide recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans
in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical
review of such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional
Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation
of the proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

TEEXERHRSE
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(continued) (#)

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the
effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular,
are set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in the
Board/committee meetings;

scrutinising the Company'’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and considered and provided recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. The Nomination Committee also made
recommendation of new Director candidate for the Board’s approval by way
of written resolutions.

Name of Director

TEEXERHRSE

(continued) (#&)

WEEEAREATABIIENTES © Al
IR (KR BIE) EWE R E3.1306 (45
RETAl e Mo fE ARS8 ET) A8l 9 A X 5T
HEBZE - MBEA 0 BN AEFHZERE
ATHERF  BEREEREBRIREER - MU
EZREFELEABEENEEE RN G kAE
B BERZR (Bl LmH A F3.1002) & FT
RENHBEERSIER) NEXTBILIENT
TE

HE_ZT-_—F#+-_A=+—BLtEE &
HZEEBERETINEHE - REZEER
EEREE  BERZ (L FHEBLE
HITESEZBY D  EEEFHE - I
RUMEERRREEHEEZSZ - REZEYg
MUAEEARABZRAAEETESFEE A UM
ZEEZRPHLE -

Number of attendance

BEEHSR HESBEAREY
Mr. WANG Guangtian (Chairman) TEBEE(EE) 11
Mr. WANG Wenhua (Note 1) ECES A (KaET) 11
Ms. LIU Zhihong (Note 2) BEAT 2+ (K7eE2) N/A

i
Mr. GAO Falian mEE A 1/1
Notes: Kt -

1. Mr. Wang Wenhua retired upon conclusion of the 2023 AGM held on 15 June
2023 and 1 Nomination Committee meeting was held before his retirement.

2. Ms. Liu Zhihong was appointed on 15 June 2023 and no Nomination Committee
meeting was held after her appointment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13 January 2006
with written terms of reference and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Liu Zhihong (as chairman) and Mr.
Wang Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Guan Yijun.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to provide
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy,
the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management, the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for formulating the
remuneration policy, and to review and/or approve matters relating to shares
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting. The committee reviewed the remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also
made recommendation of the remuneration of the proposed Director for the

FHZEeNRBERRRAFHEE - 28
EELEREBRABNTFMEE - BRI
EFHBRENEARERAEFAEETREHR
HEERE  UERRBELTRAUE1TERT R
SRBERDEEEBER -

BHE-_T_ZF+_A=Z+—8BLtEE ¥
MEESLRTIANEHE  ZEERTES
LERERE2HMESE - HTINEZEG MU
ERARESIARBTCESOTMNIREHERE

Board’s approval by way of written resolutions. B AHEZRALE -
Name of Director Number of attendance
EEHA HESBXE
Mr. WANG Wenhua (Chairman) (Note 1) EXESRE(FE) (M) 11
Ms. LIU Zhihong (Chairman) (Note 2) Bl + (F&)(H1at2) N/A
E R
Mr. WANG Guangtian FEBLE 11
Ms. GUAN Yijun AREBE T 1/1
Notes: Mat -

1. Mr. Wang Wenhua retired upon conclusion of the 2023 AGM held on 15 June
2023 and 1 Remuneration Committee meeting was held before his retirement.

2. Ms. Liu Zhihong was appointed on 15 June 2023 and no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held after her appointment.

The Company has adopted the Old Share Option Scheme, the New Share
Option Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme. Details of these share
schemes are set out in the section headed “SHARE SCHEMES” in the Report
of the Directors.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of senior
management. The emolument payable to Directors and senior management
will depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is determined by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of the
Group and the prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2023, by bands is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are also set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Liu Zhihong (as chairman), Mr. Wang Guangtian and Mr. Yang Jie.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor; to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, to provide recommendations for any questions regarding
the resignation or dismissal of such auditor; to review the interim and annual
reports, and financial statements of the Group; to oversee the Company’s
financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial reporting
function and their training arrangement and budget, and to review the risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices,
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Wenhua retired upon conclusion of the 2023 AGM on 15 June 2023
and 1 Audit Committee meeting was held before his retirement.

2. Ms. Liu Zhihong was appointed on 15 June 2023 and 1 Audit Committee
meeting was held after her appointment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee reviewed
the 2022 annual results and 2023 interim results of the Group, and were in
the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be
carried out annually.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2024 AGM. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
terms of engagement of PricewaterhouseCoopers, inter alias, (i) the size
and structure as well as the nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, (ii) the relevant audit fees and (iii) the resources deployed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the audit of the financial statements
of the Group in accordance with “Guidelines for the Effective Operation
of Audit Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment
of Auditors” published by the Financial Reporting Council on 16
December 2021 and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company at the 2024 AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee with written terms of reference
on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Xu Tie-liang (as chairman), Ms. Guan Yijun, Mr. Gao Falian and
Ms. Xu Ran, Ms. Law Yin Shan Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company and Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella, the Company Secretary of the
Company.

Terms of reference of the CG Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.
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The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting. The CG Committee reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and also
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Name of Director
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Number of attendance

HEERERE

EsnE

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman) FTERREE(FE)
Ms. GUAN Yijun MEE X+

Mr. GAO Falian EEESL A

Ms. XU Ran AR T

Ms. LAW Yin Shan Jenny FEEM L

Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying Stella BeR 190 % 2 &=

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is
set out below:

Services rendered

7
1
Al
IVl
IVl
Al

AR BN

REER @ BN EBARZEKMZ S
T

Fee paid/payable

I 42 84 FR 75 B EEA
HK$'000

TAT

Audit services E R 4,500
Non-audit services JEEAX IR FE =
4,500
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Law Yin
Shan Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the primary point
of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth and rewarding the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, the following
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

—  the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition, working
capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position and future expansions plans;

—  the amount of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

— general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is subject to any
restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws, the Listing Rules and
any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.
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The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the
Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
call special general meetings whenever it thinks fit.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures that shareholders can use to convene a
special general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures
for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company for
the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of

business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.
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A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary
procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at
the general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural
or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2024 AGM will be voted by poll.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”).

The Board adopted a Shareholders communication policy on 20 March 2012
(the “Shareholders Communication Policy”) which sets out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders, both individual and
institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments and
governance), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.

General Policy
The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and

the investment community, and will regularly review the Shareholders
Communication Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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According to the Shareholders Communication Policy, there are multiple
channels for information of the Company to be disseminated to Shareholders,
which are included in the following manners:

o Delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results, and
issue of other announcements, shareholders’ circulars, its corporate
communications and other corporate publications in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee attended the 2023 AGM to answer questions of the meeting and
collect views of shareholders.

Communication Strategies
Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available. Shareholders
and the investment community shall be provided with designated contacts,
email addresses and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them to
make enquiry in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding.

Corporate Website

A dedicated Investors Relationship section is available on the Company’'s

website. Information on the Company’s website will be updated on a regular
basis.
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Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange will also be
posted on the Company’s website according to the requirements under
the Listing Rules. Such information includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings etc.

Shareholders” Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in all general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend any general meetings. Appropriate arrangements for the general
meetings shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The
process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed
on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
Shareholders’ needs are best served. Board members, in particular, the
chairman of the Board, the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates,
appropriate management executives and external auditor will attend annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ enquiries.

Shareholder Privacy

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and will
not disclose Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required
by law to do so.

The Board has conducted a review of the Shareholders Communication
Policy for the year ended 31 December 2023 to ensure the effectiveness of
the Shareholders Communication Policy. Such review shall be conducted
annually. The Board considered that the Shareholders Communication Policy
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year, which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that year. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the
accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps

to safequard the assets of the Group, to prevent and detect fraud, as well as
other irregularities.
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The Directors, after appropriate enquiries were made, considered that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle D.2 of the CG Code
by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk
management and internal control system are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the

following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the
risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitoring of the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2023, no significant risk was
identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is compatible
with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The framework enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures that
provide the basis for carrying out the internal control across the Group.
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o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying and
analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Activities established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives are carried out, objectives are
achieved, and risks are mitigated.

o Information and Communication: To provide the Group’s internal and
external communication, together with the information needed to
carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether
each component of the internal control is present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information, and
to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of its public
disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside information
policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a
disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with their obligations to
preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on behalf of
the Company when communicating with external parties such as the
media, analysts or investors.

Based on internal control reviews conducted in 2023, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control system
by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Report

An A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the established
plan, review of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually, and afterwards the results are reported to the Board via
Audit Committee.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control system
of the Group and ensuring review of the system’s effectiveness is conducted
annually. Several areas have been considered during the Board’s reviews,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks since the last annual review, and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment, and (i) the
scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control system.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function and
Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal control
system were effective and adequate. Such system, however, is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the
training programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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Internal Controls for the Handling and Dissemination of Inside BREREEREEE ZAIPEE

Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and 7& EE&@ BABEEZEFRABEZER
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the relevant 5 RAANEBRBEILELBAEGRA R TR
obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. Certain reasonable measures Al ERITHMEAEME - SEETRERMAE
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to FTEREEBUNBEREEEEREAGILEER
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which EREENHEERTE - HPaE:

include:

(@) access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of @ ELHEBARFESHAEER

employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  transmission of inside information in electronic form should be by BREFREANAEEBEEHETIE
password-protected;

(c)  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area; © ZIHEEAHRSETWBATEEL

(d)  code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any reference d HREEHEIKERREE  FEIREM
to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to minimize BHERTEESIHZBEELRE - BE
possibilities of unintentional leakage; mEBEMAIREY -

(e)  trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in () MIFEARBLMESRHEIIXNEN
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully g BRESAI>PPIERZTUESEE
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with BEARRENEL
reasonable care;

(fy  confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into h SBEEAEAEFIEESREBE
significant negotiations; and &

(9) officers and employees other than the designated representative (9) [ﬁﬂf? FAN BREFBERESMN
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when NI %E HERE DMK EES
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or INEB AR o
investors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BRNXMH

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has made » %ir‘ —E=F+T_A=+—RHRLEE -

amendments to its Bye-Laws to align with the latest legal and regulatory NEEEBRRRR _B_=FRRBAFKREG

requirements, including amendments made to Appendix 3 to the Listing FTBBENAZREAR TZ%ﬁ AR

Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022, by way of adoption of the new HEQTMAELERT - URERINEE

Bye-Laws of the Company by a special resolution passed by the Shareholders REERE B8 ﬁﬁ’\f T —-A—H

at the 2023 AGM. The new Bye-Laws of the Company is available on the i)&ﬁ’]t 3% 8l Pﬁﬁ‘ ERBIEET - RAIZ

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. NI EE RIS REE R PTAIER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

i
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
75 to 237, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023,

J the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

J the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
had net current liabilities of HK$2,795,757,000, which included short-
term borrowings amounting to HK$3,664,790,000. The Group's short-term
borrowings included a 364-day syndicated bridge loan facilities (“Bridge
Loan Facilities”) of US$300 million which will mature on 16 December 2024.
The Bridge Loan Facilities are subject to certain financial and non-financial
undertaking, including but not limited to the undertaking that the trading of
shares of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is not suspended
for more than 14 consecutive trading days. The Company'’s shares have been
suspended for trading since 2 April 2024. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern section, we have determined matters described below to be

key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

J Impairment assessments of loan and interest receivables from and

interest in an associate

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments of loan
and interest receivables from
and interest in an associate

Refer to Note 3.2(b) credit risk
and Note 4(a) critical accounting
estimates and judgments and
Notes 20 and 23(d) to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had loan and interest
receivables from an associate,
Sino Director Limited, of
approximately HK$1,077,803,000
and HK$208,219,000 respectively,
and interest in this associate of
approximately HK$201,025,000
as at 31 December 2023. The
associate is loss making for the
year.

Our procedures in relation
to testing management’s
impairment assessment of loan
and interest receivables from
this associate included obtaining
an understanding of the
management’s internal control and
assessment process of impairment
assessment of loan and interest
receivables from this associate
and assessing the inherent
risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

LR KA

MEET SR

BT HRREEERAARR
(RERZZMEZZHRAF)

A BT wT A R
HRETEE

Management assessed the
provision of expected credit loss of
approximately HK$125,271,000
against the loan and interest
receivables from the associate.
Management assessed the expected
credit losses by applying discounted
cash flow method and using several
significant assumptions, including
the distribution of expected cash
flows of the receivables under
multiple scenarios based on the
associate’s past repayment history,
business model, current situations
and forecasts of future conditions,
the discount rates, and the related
probability weight under multiple
scenarios.

Management assessed the
recoverability of interest in the
associate based on the recoverable
amount of the associate’s
business valuation applying the
value-in-use method. The key
underlying assumptions were set
out in Notes 4(a) and 20 to the
Group's consolidated financial
statements. Management made
impairment provision on the
Group’s investment in the associate
amounting to HK$140,650,000.

We assessed the appropriateness
of the expected credit loss applying
discounted cash flow method of
impairment assessment of loan
and interest receivables from the
associate and the reasonableness
of key assumptions.

We evaluated the rationale of
management’s assumptions of
expected cash flow distribution in
multiple scenarios, the discount
rates used and the probability
weight under different scenarios
by discussing and challenging
management’s assessment on
relevant qualitative factors and
corroborating management’s
explanation to the underlying
documents.

Our procedures in relation to
management’'s impairment
assessment of interest in the
associate included the evaluation
of the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and reasonableness
of the key assumptions used with
assistance of our internal valuation
expert.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited B HRREEERATARRE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREZEFME T2 ERLF])

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Mg ETEE

BEMHE A EE
MEET SR

We focused on this area due to the
magnitude of the loan and interest
receivables from and interest in this
associate. Moreover, significant
judgments and estimates were
involved in estimating the provision
of expected credit loss for the
loan and interest receivables, and
recoverable amount of the interest
in the associate.

We evaluated management’s
estimated commodity price
growth rate by challenging
management’s rationale to support
their projections. We researched
the most up-to-date commodity
price and performed independent
market research on the commodity
price growth that was in line with
management's forecasts.

We compared the future
production profile against the
registered production capacity.

We evaluated the reasonableness
of the discount rate, applied by
benchmarking management’s
assumptions with those applied
by comparable companies and
industry forecasts.

We physically inspected the site and
discussed with local management
to understand the current status of
operation.

We challenged management’s
sensitivity analysis in consideration
of the potential impact of
reasonably possible downside
changes in these key assumptions.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited BPHRREEERATRR
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZZFME T HRLA])
How our audit addressed the RMNEFTOAEE
Key Audit Matter Key Audit Matter BERETSE BERETEE
We evaluated the competence, B HETER
capability and objectivity of —EBENAER
management’s expert engaged in KRB A KRR %
estimating the impairment of loan ERAIMERRE
and interest receivables from and A FENE R
interest in associate. BERNEN - 7
BEREEIME -
We found the management’s
judgments and assumptions used FMEIR - B8
in the impairment assessments ERrRKES A AAE
of loan and interest receivables KR F B R R %
from and interest in the associate NN N OR
were supported by the available BT & fE A
evidence. BT RZERE R
B o
Impairment assessment of
goodwill B E u E F
Refer to Note 4(b) critical Our procedures in relation
accounting estimates and to testing management’s 22 BEEKFE KRMPAIAEEEY
judgments and Note 19 to the impairment assessment of MR TIb)E RAAREBRESE
Group's consolidated financial goodwill relating to the Natural RNKestihst R#E 4 g2 R AT
statements. Gas Business CGUs included LA R M 3519 EHHEBEEFBE
obtaining an understanding THREEEH®E
The Group carried goodwill of of the management’s internal RZZ-_=F+= HEFHHRNIE
approximately HK$945,723,000 control and assessment process A=+—8H' & BERIHEBRE 1
as at 31 December 2023, which of impairment assessment of EEHEREY BEESEMAATHE
was allocated to a group of cash  goodwill and assessing the inherent 94572300087 - B TURE K H M
generating units (“CGUs”) relating  risk of material misstatement B2z —4HB¢ BRBRAZ (WE
to the sales and distribution of by considering the degree of ExsEM([ReE #HHE - 85 - 2
natural gas and other related estimation uncertainty and level of HEBR])  %ZHEE HLERLEHIRXEE
products business (“Natural Gas other inherent risk factors such as & B4 BTy B3 REKBRFEZE)
Business”) CGUs. complexity, subjectivity, changes ERSHEHARRRE KFEF(HEKEER
and susceptibility to management EMEEESRES HNEERE -
bias or fraud. (IXAREH]) R
SELEBEMNER -

We evaluated the appropriateness HMEANRBEESR
of valuation methodology and K 8 1% B T ¥ P £
reasonableness of the key ANEERERS
assumptions used with assistance EELREREREE
of our internal valuation expert. LBEBETTE -
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited B HRREEERATARRE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREFME T2 HRLA)

How our audit addressed the RPN ETOAEE
Key Audit Matter Key Audit Matter BRETSE BERETEE
Management estimated the We challenged management on the EEERBEAB B MM GEHEE
recoverable amount of the Natural estimated growth rate, expected Bt EEH XA RO . HHEEES
Gas Business CGUs based on value-  changes to selling prices and direct XBRwE ? Eﬁ {E FEEBRRBRY
in-use calculations that applied costs assumptions and compared ) EJ e @%gﬁ;& T s@EREER -
the key assumptions and inputs cash flows generated during the Gl EJFEO A 71’/%:( & T#EzE T ==

. ) B E5E&KEeY =

set out in Note 19 to the Group’s year ended 31 December 2023 Wi Epopa FTH—A=T—H
consolidated financial statements.  with prior years’ performance. mE ~ABa Ry L FEELEZRS
Based on value-in-use calculations, %o REFHERE RERLFRAE
management has concluded there HE .  FEECE 1THL -
was no impairment of the goodwill TR ZE-_=F
as at 31 December 2023. We evaluated the reasonableness TZA=+—HB# BRAEEEENR

of the discount rate applied by BOAEERE - B E R A A
We focused on this area due to benchmarking management’s AT T A /AR
the magnitude of the goodwill assumptions with those applied RPAERGEEHNEE BRRBREREST
balance and the significant by comparable companies and BemERYmaEy B8 BRMAYHAK
judgments made by management  industry forecasts. Furthermore, we AkE e mETEr MOMBRERZAE

in estimating the recoverable
amount of the goodwill.

evaluated the terminal growth rate
with reference to the long term
inflation rate.

We challenged the management's
sensitivity analysis in consideration
of potential impact of reasonably
downside changes in these key
assumptions.
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We evaluated the competence, BMEmETHE
capability and objectivity of WA E R E
management’s expert engaged BRWEESN - T
in estimating the impairment of REBM o

goodwill.

We found the management’s
judgments and assumptions used
in the impairment assessment of
goodwill were supported by the
available evidence.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in China Oil And
Gas Group Limited 2023 Annual Report (the “annual report”) other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have
obtained some of the other information including Corporate Information,
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Biographical
Details of Directors, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Report
and Five Year Financial Summary prior to the date of this auditor’s report.
The remaining other information, which is the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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(continued) (#)
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

LR KA

BT HRREEERAARR
(RERZZME L Z HER R A)

RHE R ERT RS
MEE

ZMMBER  REEGUBEREXEERST
FEANRFRERMERNERNERBRA
RSAERE  YHABEEMEROZH
e - RPERBARE- AN -FL(2
BE) Ho0Mkm BT (FRER) HERM
MER  BRUEZIARENEEME A -
BT ERARENATREMEMALE
ii%?&ﬂﬁ& SBREZESKFHR
F o ETERERRC(EEENEN £17
W EE - E% B K #5 R BR A 73 72 B 48 B B
R oo HARERA AT A BRFF SR ER AR 51 - 4P
RAEBFEHEMERREAERATEZER
EUMBRREBERBES VB RRMIED
EEARE @ MABNERRAATREIES
A

I HRRANE

ERE (ERBETERN) EITRAMNBRES -
BMERTERHE - RETERXRELEE -
AR

o FAIMFAMHANKFRERMEBES
MHBBRRFEERERRANDAR -
RERATEFEF AR ELRER -

URERTRMEENETRE @ 1F
ARFEROER - BRAREATES

RER mE EBERF ERR
o HEBRARESZ £ BR
BEHIRARFTFEMEHMERFERRIMLD

RERERAERREABRMEBRNERN
ﬁ%@ L) L B o

THEZRSTHEBNRIES - ARF
BENEGFEF  BENYEH BF
BAFESHOBERERRER -



Independent Auditor’s Report

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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(continued) (#)
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 April 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_ZT_="F+_HA=+—-HILFE

2023 2022
—_E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAT
(Restated)
(geE5)
Revenue EER 5 18,527,804 17,296,675
Cost of sales #HE AR 8 (16,556,680) (15,175,877)
Gross profit EH 1,971,124 2,120,798
Other income =N 6 61,640 42,065
Other gains, net Hhlzs - 558 7 2,384 42,315
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 8 (85,630) (81,323)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (703,656) (507,603)
Net impairment losses on financial and TRINEHNEENREERE
contract assets FRE 3.2(b) (201,111) (11,709)
Reversal of impairment on oil and ME - BEREBEHEBE T HRE
gas properties under property, plant and ERERD
equipment 15 — 118,251
Operating profit 5 g 8 1,044,751 1,722,794
Net impairment losses on investment KER—EE SR AHRE
in an associate B8 F 5 20 (140,650) =
Finance income B WA 9 214,654 247,024
Finance costs M%ER 9 (432,757) (453,051)
Share of profits of investments accounted for 715 1F BEZIEAR 2
using the equity method, net KRE®ER - FE 20 34,541 59,734
Profit before taxation Rk 7 A1 i ) 720,539 1,576,501
Taxation THIE 12 (340,385) (388,688)
Profit for the year F R F 380,154 1,187,813
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hu2mE (EiE) s -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss a] & # 7 7 = 18 2 #7718 H
Currency translation differences PEH =% (126,515) (926,347)
Change in value of debt investments at EATFESAEMEEmKE
fair value through other comprehensive ZEBEEBEES
income (18,908) (31,549)
Item that will not be reclassified to T BB S EEEAEH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences b X =% (128,085) —
Change in value of equity investments at  ZAF(ES AEMEE
fair value through other comprehensive ZHRARIGEBEEH
income (15,095) 7,377
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEETEHWRER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=-F+_A=+-HLHFE

(continued) (#)

2023 2022
—E=-= B fF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P FET FHET
(Restated)
(&=E7)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRNEMEEEER @ HGRRIE
vetofax @603 950,519)
Total comprehensive income for the year FANTEW SRR 91,551 237,294
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(R (B51R) /i 7
Owners of the Company NGIEZ =N (232,496) 730,144
Non-controlling interests R R 612,650 457,669
380,154 1,187,813
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the FREGEE (EB) WE
year attributable to: iaEE
Owners of the Company NAEER A (393,014) 73,886
Non-controlling interests TR ER 484,565 163,408
91,551 237,294
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit NEEB ANFEANEMN (BE)
attributable to owners of the Company for /& # > &8 (&518)
the year | 14
— Basic (HK cents) — EARCEM) (4.7) 14.9
— Diluted (HK cents) — BE CEN) (4.7) 14.9

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FZEBBERRNR

As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=F+=-RA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E_-= =S —E-
+-—BA=+-—H +=-B=+—8H —H—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Lo FTHER FHL FHEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (BE5)
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties BEMEHE 18 131,602 = —
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 15 10,126,358 10,230,445 10,232,467
Right-of-use assets CRELE 16 513,585 546,568 663,945
Exploration and evaluation assets WREFAEEE 17 107,484 107,069 115,027
Intangible assets BVAE 19 1,018,138 1,042,460 1,038,669
Investments accounted for using the  FHEREABZRE
equity method 20 1,633,245 1,698,560 1,758,418
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFAEME
other comprehensive income mmzemEE
("FVOCI") (TEAFEHAR
o2 m =] ) 21 186,007 232,288 289,795
Other non-current assets HitnEmEEE 23 1,243,673 1,456,592 1,183,053
Deferred tax assets RERIAEE 29 45,176 12,534 14,698
15,005,268 15,326,516 15,296,072
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 22 594,831 582,560 476,789
Contract assets, deposits, trade and ~ AHEE « &g - &
other receivables 5 I b JE Y 318 23 1,988,960 1,843,352 2,335,615
Current tax recoverable g H T W m A TE 6,106 5,972 6,334
Time deposits with maturity over HAHMHEA=EANLD
three months THER 24 1,150,475 621,500 979,660
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeSHEEE 24 2,095,411 3,329,715 2,786,609
5,835,783 6,383,099 6,585,007
Total assets HEE 20,841,051 21,709,615 21,881,079
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNKE 25 1,870,571 1,767,336 1,476,570
Contract liabilities EHNAEE 26 2,899,198 2,950,910 3,156,067
Senior notes BEER 28 — 669,728 =
Short-term borrowings MHEEE 27 3,664,790 3,859,986 1,345,142
Current tax payable FHEMNTE 185,911 143,731 61,469
Lease liabilities HEER 16 11,070 10,986 16,219
8,631,540 9,402,677 6,055,467
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEEBERRE

As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=%+=ZR=+—H

(continued) (#)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E-= g S
+t=—A=+-—-H +-A=+-—H —HA—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THET FET FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(r=751) (B=51)
Non-current liabilities (RBEE
Senior notes BERE 28 2,999,366 2,995,751 5,645,120
Long-term borrowings REBEE 27 1,047,541 875,727 1,729,667
Lease liabilities HEER 16 28,442 40,646 58,747
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE 29 427,319 402,531 315,331
Assets retirement obligation BERBERE 30 144,901 141,737 197,974
R 4406332 7,946,839
Total liabilities R =Ri 13,279,109 13,859,069 14,002,306
Equity &
Equity attributable to owners of A FEH AE L &S
the Company
Share capital AR 31 56,368 56,368 57,670
Reserves {5 3,761,848 4,166,310 4,141,020
3,818,216 4,222,678 4,198,690
Non-controlling interests FERE R 3,743,726 3,627,868 3,680,083
[ttty i BN 7850546 7878773
Total equity and liabilities EaREEAR 20,841,051 21,709,615 21,881,079
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in FatthR & B RS IR Ik P BB M 5 — OFBA B -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The financial statements on pages 75 to 237 were approved by the Board of FISEDVE 2 BRERER_ZE_MFN
Directors on 25 April 2024 and were signed on its behalf. R+ hBEEERLELEE -
Xu Tie-liang Guan Yijun FH®RER BHEE
Director Director EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A\ 5 S

FAESERR
For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE_ZT_="F+_HA=+—-HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RIEEARL
Shares
held for (Note) ~ Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share Share share award Other  fluctuation  compensation Retained controlling Total
capital premium scheme TeServes Teserve Teserve profits Total nterests equity
AR IR
EHRE| (W) EAR®  BEEM
Rt ROEE  FRRE  EHEE B BeRE BaA B HiREE  EaE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin T Thn T T Thn Thn T T Thn
Balance at 1 January 2022, as previously W=E==%-f-Ri&E
reported RHEE 57,670 13,208 (377947) 1,345,955 (98,491) 1241 38397% 4791432 4027578 8819,010
Pror year adjustments (Note 2.4 BRERRE(H4) = = = = (6,947) — (&%) (592740 B44%) (923))
Balance at 1 January 2022, as restated ~ W=F=Z%-f-RHEH:
g5 57,670 13,208 (377.947) 1,345,955 (105,433) 1241 3254000 4198690 3680083 7878773
Profit for the year as restated Eniad £E5) - - - -~ - — T T dSTEE 1187813
Other comprehensive incomefoss): Eh2EhE/ (B8):
Bxchange differences on translating RAZENZENEE,
foreign operations (estated) EiEE (7)) - - - - (632,08 = — (608 (04281 (92634)
Changes in value of debt ivesments ot~ &R TERF AL H2ENEL
fair value through other comprehensive  ERRABERY
income - - - (31,549) - - - (31,549) = (31,549
Changes in value of equityinvestments at ~ FATEHAZHZELEL
fair value through other comprehensie  RAKEEEEY
income - - - 1311 - - - 1311 - 1311
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ~~~ ER2E (§) /hE4E
for the year (restated) (£E5) > 5 - M (63089 - T B8 163408 23729
Transter of fair value loss on equity RNERERRATHEIA
investments at fair value through other 2B 2 ENEZRARE
comprehensive income to retained profits AT EEEZREEF
upon disposal (net of ) (Ng#E) - - - (189) - = 18 = = =
Transter of fir value loss on debt RHERERRATHIA
investments at fair value through other 22 EYE BERE
comprehensive income to profitor oss AT EEEZER
upon disposal (net of tax) (Mg#AE) - = = 5,704 = = = 5,704 = 5,704
Share repurchases ke (130 - - (54,300) - - - (55,60) = (55,602)
Dividend paid to non-controllng interests R8T fER - - - = = = = - (0087 (200647)
Reduction of share capital of subsidiaries B HEBAFRE - - - - - - - -~ (14976)  (14976)
Balance at 31 December 2022, as WBZZETZAZ-BK
restated &b E) 56,368 13208 (377947) 1,272,999 (737524) 11241 3984333 4222608 3627868 7850546
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERIEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—RHILLFE

(continued) (#)

Attributable to owners of the Company

NAEEARL
Shares
held for (Note) ~ Exchange Share-based Non-
Share Share  share award Other  fluctuation compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium scheme reserves reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
ARf WRA

2Bl (W)  EXR®  ASEN
Rx  RHER  FRRE  RHER B BERE  RERA B FERRE  RRAE
HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
TAn Tin TAn TAn TAn TR TAn TAn Tn Tin

Balance at 1 January 2023, RoBZZE-F-ANGH
as previously reported kHEE 56,368 13208 (77941) 122,999 (759,780) M40 475885 4974945 4004905 8,979,850
Prior year adjustments (Note 2.4 BREERE (M) - - - - 2,5 - (as) (15261 (3T03)  (1,129304)
Balance at 1 January 2023, as restated ~ R=E-=E-f-RH&H
&5 56,368 13,208 (o) 121,99 (737,524) 11261 3984333 4200678 3627868 7,850,546
Profit for the year Engl — — — - - - (232.49)  (23249) 612,650 380,154
Other comprehensive loss Lp2AER - -
Exchange differences on translting foreign  REE 0 EHAEL L
operations (restated) EXEE(HE]) - - - - (126515 - — (126515 (128,085 (254,600

Changes n value of debt investments at -~ EATERAZK2EREL

fairvalue through other comprehensie  EXAEBEERY

income - - - (18,908) - - - (18,908) - (18,908)
Changes n value of equity investments ot~ BATER AZK2EREL

fairvalue through other comprehensie  RAZEBEEEE

income - - - (15,005) - - - (15,005) - (15,005)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income ~~ ER2E (B8) /hE4E

for the year - - - (34,003) (126,515) - (232,49%) (393,014) L !8_4,_5@5 _____ 9_1,_55_1_ |
Transfer of fai value oss on equity RHEREERATEHA

investments at far value through other 2 2EAE 2 RARE

comprehensive income to retained profits AT EFEZRB

upon disposal net of tax) (MERE) - - - 784 - = (7.284) = = =
Transfer of fai value oss on debt ANHERERRATETA

investments at far value through other A fe2EhE BHRE

comprehensive income to profit o loss ﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁ}ﬁm

upon disposal (net of tax) 2 - - - 1521 - - - 1521 - 152
Deregistration of  subsidiary iR FWEM - - - - - - - - (1,164) (1,164)
Dividend paid to non-controling interests Ik 8 F 5 g - - - - - - - - (376809  (376,809)
Changes in he ownership nterests FABHER % HELE

in subsidiaries that do not resu fEkERES

in  loss of control - - - (12,975) - - - (12,975) 9,266 (3,709)
At 31 December 2023 W-BZZEtZA=t-H 56,368 13,208 (3m.941) 1234832 (864,039) 1201 374455 3818216 3743726 7,561,942
Note: B 3T -
As at 31 December 2023, other reserves mainly comprise deficit of capital and other RZEZ=F+ZA=+—8 ' HtFEEZELHE
reserve amounting to negative HK$172,869,000 (2022: negative HK$124,702,000) and BEARBA R E M EER172,869,0008 T (Z T ==
contribution surplus amounting to HK$1,397,701,000 (2022: HK$1,397,701,000). & 1 8124,702,0007% 70) KA & #:1,397,701,0007%

7T (=T = —4 :1,397,701,000 7T) °

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in Lililr e Em S B R EEEEM M — O BEE
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SFEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_ZT_="F+_HA=+—-HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E-=
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 F#ExT FHET
(Restated)
(g=E751)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHHERE
Profit for the year F R 380,154 1,187,813
Adjustments for: HATEIEEL FE
Taxation 1A 12 340,385 388,688
Finance costs MIEER 9 432,757 453,051
Finance income EM‘W&U\ 9 (214,654) (247,024)
Share of profit of investments SIEEREREARZ
accounted for using the equity W& &N FE
method, net 20 (34,541) (59,734)
Dividend income from equity BATEFAEMEE
investments at FVOC| Wz RAZE 2R
BUA 6 (2,172) —
Amortisation of intangible assets M A EEH 19 8,722 9,761
Depreciation and depletion of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment N&i=F=3 15 690,986 739,298
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 16 24,288 23,194
Depreciation of investment properties REEFEHENE 18 4,002 —
Reversal of impairment on oil and gas ME - WELEBET
properties under property, plant and R E E R ERE
equipment 15 — (118,251)
Net impairment losses on financial and TRNREHNEENRE
contract assets BB R 3.2(b) 201,111 11,709
Net impairment losses on investment in TER—HEBE A FH
an associate B E R F R 20 140,650 =
Other gains, net Hihlzs - 558 7 (2,384) (42,315)
Written off of exploration and BV ER I 5T 4 & 2 8
evaluation assets 17 2,935 3,665
Provision for assets retirement obligation BERBEARERE 30 6,003 7,636
Financial guarantee income B A5 R U A 6 (7,877) =
1,970,365 2,357,491
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Inventories e (17,425) (115,584)
Contract assets, deposits, trade and other BREE - f =L )53
receivables Hfh FE R (85,510) 656,131
Trade and other payables é%&ﬁ@fﬁmlﬁ 113,167 282,711
Contract liabilities aBHAaRE (25,598) (101,679)
Cash generated from operations KEEXRE 1,954,999 3,079,070
Taxation paid [RENEZRE] (327,503) (221,064)
Net cash generated from operating activities &4 ¥EBES 2L F58 1,627,496 2,858,006
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e B B
GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=-F+_A=+-HLHFE

(continued) (#)

2023 2022
—E-=F =T

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Bt 5 FHET FHET

(Restated)

(gE751)

Cash flows from investing activities RETHR SRS
Interest received 2 U FIE 128,048 307,562
Dividend received B B 6,073 —
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BERRE -

equipment, exploration and evaluation PR R EEN R

assets and prepaid construction costs TEH A AR (906,879) (1,454,126)

Purchase of land use rights BE A (24,999) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEWE  BEMEZE

and equipment Fr i3 I8 15,568 154,906

Proceeds from disposal of land use rights & T AR FTIS IR 14,226 S

Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMEEEE 19 (12,744) (44,460)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BERATERT AEM

through other comprehensive income 2HKRECEREE — (11,722)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEEAEM
at FVOC| PEHWHZ @B EE

P15 5E 10,959 45,376

Disposal of an associate HE—MEE AR 20 13,764 =

Investments in associates REE AR ZIRE 20 (99,000) (5,850)
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with B A=A LERN

maturity over three months EETEHR GG, m (550,433) 326,040

Financial guarantee income received B I AR IA 6 7,877 —

Site restoration expenditure T8 1 (6.426) (4,355)

Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFMAR e F5 (1,403,966) (686,629)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ZABEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 =Ff+_-_A=+—BLtFE

(continued) (#)

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Cash flows from financing activities REFBHEESRE
Interest paid BEATFLE (375,231) (404,221)
New borrowings raised *ﬁ:;%%féf 3,865,855 3,653,876
Redemption of senior notes EOREEER 28 — (1,937,500)
Repurchase of senior notes E%@@?ﬁ%‘%ﬁ% 28 — (106,508)
Repayment of senior notes EEELER 28 (668,495) =
Repayments of borrowings EEREE (3,838,174) (2,343,629)
Share repurchases % 17 B& [l — (55,602)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests STARE T IR ER (376,809) (200,647)
Principal elements of lease payments HENZEEHD (13,744) (23,317)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMARSFE 32 (1,406,598) (1,417,548)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RekReFEIER
equivalents G,/ nigsE (1,183,068) 753,829
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January E" A—RZzHER
Re%EHEB 3,329,715 2,786,609
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREHHz 2 (51,236) (210,723)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+ _-_A=+—HZ
RehkReEEEE 24 2,095,411 3,329,715
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LG AEREREREEBEWNE—HEE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is at Suite 2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company
is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaging in investment in energy related business in various regions in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and West Central Alberta,
Canada, including but not limited to 1) piped city gas business, pipeline
design and construction; 2) transportation, distribution and sales of
compressed natural gas (“CNG") and liquefied natural gas (“LNG"); 3)
development, production and sale of oil and gas and other upstream
production and sales of coal-derived clean energy and other related
products; and 4) comprehensive energy and customer value-added
services. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as
the “"Group”.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1

Going concern

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$2,795,757,000, which included short-term borrowings
amounting to HK$3,664,790,000.

The Group’s short-term borrowings included a 364-day
syndicated bridge loan facilities (“Bridge Loan Facilities”) of
US$300 million which will mature on the date falling 364 days
after the first utilization date of the facilities being drawn down,
i.e. being 16 December 2024. The Bridge Loan Facilities are
subject to certain financial and non-financial undertaking,
including but not limited to the undertaking that the trading of
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange is not suspended
for more than 14 consecutive trading days. The Company’s
shares have been suspended for trading since 2 April 2024.

The above condition indicated the existence of a material
uncertainty with respect to going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and operating performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing to assess whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to fulfil its financial obligations
to continue as a going concern. The plans and measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position, including but not limited to the following:

(i) The Group has obtained a syndicated term loan facility of
US$235 million (“Syndicated Loan Facilities”) for 36
months from the date of first utilization date of the
Syndicated Loan Facilities and the due date is extendable
to the date falling 60 months after the first utilization
date. The Bridge Loan Facilities is obtained to meet the
Company’s financial needs before fulfilment of all
conditions precedent for the drawdown of the Syndicated
Loan Facilities. The Group also received commitment
letters from certain lenders to join the Syndicated Loan
Facilities for a further amount of US$95 million (subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions) after the year end date.
The Directors believe that conditions are all administrative
and the Group will be able to refinance the Bridge Loan
Facilities with the Syndicated Loan Facilities on or before
the maturity of the Bridge Loan Facilities.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#)

2 mREE ()

2.1

BiEgE
RZEBEZ=F+=A=+—8 -
SBREaEF5 A2,795,757,000
BT - BIERE & 503,664,790,000
BIT

EEMNEHERERE00EEET
34HIRBEBEHERME (1B
EMHERRE]) - BRBEE R
M B HI1%3648 (Bl - = — 04
+ZA+A) B - BEME
RBEARTE T &I &
AR - BIEETERQARK
m#%&%ﬁﬁfz$ﬁﬂ@%
14EXSBHEARE - AFIRH A

—E_NEFHAZBRREFEER -

tHERERAGEE B ERY
REAXTEEMWE -
BERZEE NAEESE ([E

%J)E%E%J’E%IW*XW@J
B MIEERBERLERMAHBE XK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 mREE (F)
2.1 Going concern (Continued) 2.1 BERE (&

(i)  The Bridge Loan Facilities and the Syndicated Loan (i) BEULEFRERBEER
Facilities are subject to the same financial and non- B & B X AR # B 75 & 3k Bt
financial undertaking, including but not limited to BERGERHR - BEETR
undertaking that the trading of shares of the Company on RAGRRMDREBEZMERFE
the Stock Exchange is not suspended for more than 14 ETHEBAEE4EARSAMN
consecutive trading days. The Group has obtained a o SEER-_T_MEF
wavier on 22 April 2024 from the lenders of the Bridge MAZ+TZ_B#RBEEER
Loan Facilities and the Syndicated Loan Facilities to allow MERREERRENER
the trading of shares of the Company on the Stock ABRB#HE  BEF2aKH
Exchange is not suspended for more than 20 consecutive TERBIMEFEEBR
trading days. The Directors consider that the Group will be WEEERXHH -  EFER
able to fulfil the requirement under the Rules Governing B O RBEBEARTEBRR
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the BrLmBRA (TEmKRA])
“Listing Rules”) and resume the trading of its shares WRE - WHRERBAKE
within the grace period. HRHER -

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections, EExDEHNEER =%

which cover not less than twelve months from 31 December +TZA=+—HBRAPR+ =@

2023. In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the above and ANBESR=EEA - EERAE -

taking into account the anticipated cash flows to be generated ERElER  TEBINEEE

from the Group’s operations as well as the above plans and EREELENBHRERENURE
measures, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to MBI REN  KREEERHH
satisfy its future working capital requirements as and when they BERENBZ-ZZ-=Z+=A

fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2023. =+F—HARARKR+T @A

Accordingly, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to AREEESFZK - Bt - EEF

prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going REEFBEREELERUESH

concern basis. BHRETBRE -

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty exists as to BEMN  SEETER LX)

whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as RGPt m st &8 REBIDFLEE

described in (i) and (i) above. Whether the Group will be able to AAEEN - SEREERELS

continue as going concern depends on: (i) fulfilment of all BURR : ()m 2 RIUEEE & K

conditions precedent for the drawdown of the Syndicated Loan BRI A LRGN (NEARET

Facilities; (i) will be able to resume the trading of its shares REAREERNDESR -

within the grace period.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above plans and WEEEREER D8 R

measures such that it would not be able to operate as a going Mo ABUESERELE - AIAE

concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the HHE  BEEEENKREEMN
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable WMEHAWE % - RAUREE

amounts, to provide for further financial liabilities which might ME—TeRmBBEELEE I

arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current HIERBEERIERBEES A

liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The ENOBEARBEERRBAERE -

effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in these ZERAENZEBIRRNZERE

consolidated financial statements. M HRERA R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards
and accounting guideline which are relevant to the Group's
operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

The amendments to standards and accounting guideline listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

2 mEEE (&)

2.2

B BERREENZE

SECHEMTIEEBENKELESE
AR _F_=F—A—-B%Z
BB BE R R B ITHERE
AIARERES

BAEGIERE R
REBRBHRE
EHEBRESE
25 (BRI A)

BB G &R £
(BETX)

Rl
$12%

CHES) IE
ERMBRSEN RREH
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BB g &R
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(BETA)

ETHRORE

eiHhA TR
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BRI E — it
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 mEEE (&)
2.3 New standard and amendments to standards not yet 2.3 EIRERAZ FERRERNISET A
adopted
AT ER RAERET RS R
The following are new standard and amendments to standards MEBMARR_Z-_MNFE—-—HA—H
that have been issued but are not effective for the financial year A B EFEERBNTERER
beginning 1 January 2024 and have not been early adopted. 0!

Effective for accounting
year beginning on or after

RERTHBEZERRAR

BEHFEEN
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
RS ENF IR (BETA) KEBEIEARDIIRS —Z-WFE-HA—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BERGFEYF IR (BITA) MAEREFEREBEE —E-ME—-R—H
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 7 (Amendments) Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
EREUBRELENETR LB B G ER HERREZH —Z-WFE—-A—H

EVEACCHIFS!

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BEREMBRELENE 165 (B R) ERHO HESRE ZE-ME—-HR—H
HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
EEGFENE215 (BRTX) BZ AR R —E-RF—A—H
HK Int 5 (Revised) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of 1 January 2024

Financial Statements-Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
BRREEST (KIEFT) BERBREST (KB BBHRENET —Z-_M¥-A—H
— BERERBIEZNTHERD
ERADER

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
and its Associate or Joint Venture

BERBREENEI0RRES S TEL REERAMEARNALLEZHNEE FE
$28% (IB5TK) HESEE

The Group will apply the above new and amended standards = R bt Fr J&?é%f BHR-¥:!

and interpretation when they become effective. The directors of RZBENRHER -  REES ﬂ

the Company assess that the adoption of the new standard and TE TR BRER AN T 2E A R E IS

amendments to standards is not expected to have any significant ATeHEBERERVBK /Fu

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group. EEAMNEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.4

Prior year adjustments and restatement

In preparation for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, the management
noted certain misstatements in prior years. The management has
corrected these misstatements to the consolidated financial
statements as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 and for
the year then ended.

Revenue and cost recognition

The adjustments were caused by correction of erroneous entries
in overtime recognition of the gas pipeline connection and
constructions services income, parameters in computation of
construction costs.

Interest capitalisation adjustments

The error was caused by misunderstanding of the accounting
policy for qualifying assets of the interest capitalisation.

For the above prior year adjustments and restatement, the
Group has enhanced its accounting manual and provided
trainings to the relevant personnels in order to refrain from the
occurrence of same type of errors in the future.

B B 35 #R R B 5E

(continued) (#&)

n'ﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.4

Prior year adjustments and restatement (Continued)

The effects of the restatements on the Group’s consolidated

statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2022 are summarised as follows:

2 mREE (F)

2.4

BEFEREREY (4F)

BEHEBRBEE T -+
A=T—HALFENHEEE2EK
mEROFEHADT

Prior year adjustments

BEFERE
As previously Revenue and cost Interest
reported recognition capitalisation Restated
WAR
Ik AR i) ¥Nld BE5|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAR FER FET
Revenue WA 17,420,512 (123,837) - 17,296,675
Cost of sales BENK (15,174,805) 6,968 (8,040) (15,175,877)
Finance costs HEEA (325,712) = (127,339) (453,051)
Profit before taxation BB AR 1,828,749 (116,869) (135,379) 1,576,501
Taxation A (422,663) 31,965 2,010 (388,688)
Profit for the year FRER 1,406,086 (84,904) (133,369) 1,187,813
Other comprehensive (loss)income: ~ E {2 & (B#8) /Ui -
Currency translation differences EXEE (955,550) 29,203 = (926,347)
Other comprehensive (loss)income  FREM2HE (BHE),/
for the year, net of tax Wi omeEE (979722 29203 - (950,519)
Total comprehensive income for the &R 2 E Yz #E
year 426,364 (55,701) (133,369) 237,294
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 mEEE (&)
2.4  Prior year adjustments and restatement (Continued) 24 BEFEREREY (F)

Prior year adjustments

BREFEAE
As previously Revenue and cost Interest
reported recognition capitalisation Restated
BAR
e KRR MEERL mE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Profit attributable to: e IRA
Owners of the Company RAEEA 918,875 (58,911) (129,820) 730,144
Non-controlling interests FERER 487,211 (25,993) (3,549) 457,669
1,406,086 (84,904) (133,369) 1,187,813
Total comprehensive income for the FREHZARFLE
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company INGIE=DN 233,414 (29,708) (129,820 73,886
Non-controlling interests FERER 192,950 (25,993) (3,549) 163,408
426,364 (55,701) (133,369) 237,294
Earnings per share for profit REBEBEANEREEEN 2 FR
attributable &7
to owners of the Company for the
year
— Basic (HK cents) — ER(EM) 18.7 (1.2) (2.6) 14.9
— Diluted (HK cents) — BEOE) 18.7 (1.2) (2.6) 14.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 mEEE (&)
2.4 Prior year adjustments and restatement (Continued) 24 BAFERERES ()

FIHEBR_T-_—_F+=-A
e el = = N W W B OB =2

The effects of the restatements on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 are

92

summarised as follows:

Efan T

Prior year adjustments

BAFERR
As previously Revenue and cost Interest
reported recognition capitalisation Restated
BAR

e KRR MEEAL Y

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T THT T

Property, plant and equipment nE - BERR 10,856,439 35,443 (661,437) 10,230,445

Deferred tax assets ERREEE 647 = 11,887 12,534

Inventories 3 600,240 (17,680) - 582,560
Contract assets, deposits, trade and ~ AHIEE - & Z5R

other receivables Efh e dE 2,449,643 (606,291) - 1,843,352

Total assets BEE 22,947,693 (588,528) (649,550) 21,709,615

Trade and other payables B REMENTE 1,784,790 (17,454) = 1,767,336

Contract liabilities EEOLEN 2,892,691 58,219 = 2,950,910

Current tax payable EHEABE 293,270 (149,539) = 143,731

Total liabilities BEAH 13,967,843 (108,774) - 13,859,069

Reserves G 4,918,577 (289,353) (462,914) 4,166,310

Non-controlling interests EAERER 4,004,905 (190,401) (186,636) 3,627,868

Total equity ERAE 8,979,850 (479,754) (649,550) 7,850,546
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

2 mREE ()

Prior year adjustments and restatement (Continued) 24 BEFERBREY (&
The effects of the restatements on the Group’s consolidated FIHEBR T _—_F—H—
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2022 are AMGReBRAEROZERi
summarised as follows: [N
Prior year adjustments
BAERAR
As previously Revenue and cost Interest
reported recognition capitalisation Restated
KAR
e AR MEERL EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Property, plant and equipment ERE 10,738,279 20,247 (526,059) 10,232,467
Deferred tax assets BEREEE 4,821 — 9,877 14,698
Inventories B 408,231 68,558 - 476,789
Contract assets, deposits, trade and ~ A4EE % - Z5RK
other receivables i el iR 2,675,790 (340,175) - 2,335,615
Total assets BEE 22,648,631 (251,370) (516,182) 21,881,079
Trade and other payables BHREMENTIE 1,414,388 62,182 = 1,476,570
Contract liabilities alak 2,917,409 238,658 = 3,156,067
Current tax payable EHERTE 189,624 (128,155) = 61,469
Total liabilities BE4H 13,829,621 172,685 - 14,002,306
Reserves i 4,733,762 (259,648) (333,094) 4,141,020
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,027,578 (164,407) (183,088) 3,680,083
Total equity ERAE 8,819,010 (424,055) (516,182) 7,878,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3 MBERERE

Financial instruments by categories 3.1 REREINEMIA
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
FVOCI amortised cost amortised cost
BAFERFA REBHER A REBHR A
Hi2 @k HEZEREE STEZEEEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Btk TER TET TER
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=f+=A
=+-H
Financial assets SREE
Debt investments BHIRE 21 12,994 — —
Equity investments RAKE 21 173,013 — —
Deposits, trade and other receivables %€ + & 5 R E IR
HE 23 — 1,975,520 —
Time deposits with maturity over three ZIEiB BB =18 A 6T 1
months, cash at banks BH-R/ORe 24 — 3,245,886 =
186,007 5,221,406 —
Financial liabilities BKEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMh RN A 25 — - 1,752,055
Borrowings EES 27 — — 4,712,331
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 — = 39,512
Senior notes BEEE 28 — — 2,999,366
— — 9,503,264
186,007 5,221,406 9,503,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEEREMRER (&)

3.1 Financial instruments by categories (Continued) 3.1 RERSSNERMIA ()
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at

Fvocl amortised cost amortised cost
BAFETA birg 3|0 RE#ER A
Hth2EbkaE HEZEREE HECHBEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FTAEL FAET FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(s E5) (s E5)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE--%+ZA
=+-AH
Financial assets SREE
Debt investments BHEE 21 39,488 = =
Equity investments RARE 21 192,800 = =
Deposits, trade and other receivables &% + E 5 R EhEWR
HHE 23 — 2,133,468 =
Time deposits with maturity over three ZIEi BB =18 A & 4
months, cash at banks BH-R/ORE 24 = 3,951,215 =
232,288 6,084,683 —
Financial liabilities HBERE
Trade and other payables BHREMENFE 25 = = 1,634,223
Borrowings 5 27 — - 4,735,713
Lease liabilities HEgkE 16 = = 51,632
Senior notes BERE 28 = = 3,665,479
- - 10,087,047
232,288 6,084,683 10,087,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHERER (&)
3.1 Financial instruments by categories (Continued) 3.1 RERSSNERMIA (&
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
FVOCl amortised cost amortised cost
RATERTA RE KA REHMAR
Hi2EK R TEZEREE HEZMEEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TR THER TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5)) (EE75)
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%+ZAH
=+-H
Financial assets SREE
Debt investments BEHRE 21 91,916 = —
Equity investments RAKE 21 197,879 = =
Deposits, trade and other receivables %€ + & 5 L E IR
e 23 — 2,092,638 -
Time deposits with maturity over three ZIEAB BB =18 A 6T H
months, cash at banks By RORE 24 — 3,766,269 —
289,795 5,858,907 —
Financial liabilities LB 3=
Trade and other payables B 5 REMh RN A 25 — - 1,377,321
Borrowings EES 27 — — 3,074,809
Lease liabilities HERE 16 — — 74,966
Senior notes BEZE 28 — — 5,645,120
— — 10,172,216
289,795 5,858,907 10,172,216
3.2 Financial risk factors 32 HBIEEBEZ
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: SEEZHEREZEM SRR ™
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate SRR (BEE¥EAR - BRE
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course S RMERERE) - FERBR KA
of its business and financial instruments. The management BEEBEERERMIAEELEZR
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate PETRER  BTEEERREE
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. ZERE - URFREARME

o3 9 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)  Market risk

(@

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to United States dollars (“US$"”), Canadian
dollars (“CAD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). Currency
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. This currency
exposure is managed primarily through sourcing
supplies denominated in the same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and
purchases made by the relevant group companies
in currencies other than their own functional
currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of
the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures. The
Group has not used any forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its exposure.

= A
7 O =]

Bit ¥ ¥R 2R B 5F

(continued) (#&)

3 BRERERE (&)

3.2 HBEBEE (F)

@) HEEE

(0]

B

SEBRERBFETR
B OB E T([E
L))~ mEXRi ([m
L) RARB (AR
Bl)BE)EENE
BERKR o E¥ERH
KRBERS - BR
EERBERENME
BEFREMESE - It
Gh 0 AR K B A
BESZHBEREEG
2 HNEE R Bl KOO
BMATHR - HEER
B Z 5 R R AR
REBTENHER
EITER -

BEECH AT K
EREEBRRAERER
B E a0 INE &
R RXTEZBHEERE
HEEEQRAES
BN EBUNIZE
KEBEELANRAR -
SETAEBEHNERN
SEELFRERR
SMNEE BB o & B LR
EREMERINES
e HERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Market risk (Continued)

0]

Currency risk (Continued)

Prices for oil and natural gas in Canada are
determined in global markets and generally
denominated in US$. Oil and natural gas prices
obtained by the Group are influenced by both
United States and Canadian demand and the
corresponding North American supply, and recently,
by imports of liquefied natural gas. The exchange
rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an
increase in the value of CAD as compared to US$
will reduce the prices received by the Group for its
petroleum and natural gas sales. At 31 December
2023 and 2022, there has no financial instrument
denominated in US$ in the books of subsidiaries
with functional currency denominated in CAD.

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, the Group has minimal
exposure to currency risk arising from US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.
As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$5,775,000 (2022:
HK$18,420,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB
denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from
debt and equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$186,007,000 (2022:
HK$232,288,000). Most of these investments are
listed either on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong
or other countries.

Equity investments are held as long-term strategic
investments and have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

Debt investments are placed with counterparties
with sound credit quality. The Group closely
monitors the credit quality and financial positions
of counterparties and consider appropriate action
if the market value of those securities decline by a
pre-determinate threshold.

Commodity price risk is the risk that fair value
or future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of
changes in commodity prices. Commodity prices for
oil and natural gas in Canada are impacted by the
relationship between CAD and US$ as well as world
economic events that dictate the levels of supply
and demand.

n'ﬁ

B B 35 #R R B 5E

(continued) (#&)

3 BRERERE (&)

3.2 HBEBEE (F)

@ mEEE (&)

(i)

ERERE

SEREAKRAYE
B AEMm2EKE
LEMEENEBR
f% 7S #% & 186,007,000
BL(ZE Z = F:
232,288,000/ jT) ™ B
EReyRAR  ZF
REZBRZHERA
B HMER 2 H

R L™ o

BAZERFIERHR
BEIR & - TR R A

REODHEY FHE
REXBEREGTENE

BEBEREFRR
RFZHFH - &H
BUOEEHFHTZE
EERRPFBMRNAL
RZEEHFMETR
BERERRREES
7% -

1:1;2

[EIELRE RN NS
BEXARAKXKBEERERH

BmEREHMmKD
HERR > I0E KA H
ERARBmERR
MERETHEENAR
REMR-KBE R 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for short-term bank deposits, loan to
an associate and loans to third parties, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing assets resulted from changes
in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and senior notes. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk.

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes
are set out in Notes 27 and 28 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the
interest rate risk exposure is not significant. In
order to manage the cash flow interest rate risk,
the Group will repay the corresponding borrowings
when it has surplus funds.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on floating rate borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's post tax profit for the year by approximately
HK$30,324,000 (2022: HK$18,535,000). The above
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
date of the statement of financial position and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management'’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the year until the next
annual statement of financial position date. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2022.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

B EREE (&)
32 HMBEREER (&)
(@) FEER ()

i) FERB (&)

BN A RERSEE
K'%llﬁﬁﬁﬁ
fa] A K 15 HY 8 B A
KRB AE - BEE
Eﬁimug*”%mﬁ ’
CEEEERBESH
SEEFHRESR -

—E-_=%+=AH
=+—8 - fhrtEes
BEZMEERBEAST
ER100ME E 25 - MmATA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RE

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKRERERE (&)
3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 32 HBEREBEE (&
(b)  Credit risk b) 1FEmEE
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to contract EBE2EERBFEHFGAR
assets, deposits, trade and other receivables, debt ERNEE - Hz% B K
investments at FVOCI, time deposits with maturity over HEtpEWRIE - A TFE
three months, cash at banks and financial guarantee. FFAH A E E 1451 w2 EBE
The maximum exposure and the expected credit losses E - HEBAR=MEANLLES
recognised in “Net impairment losses on financial and EEFER - RITRSARY
contract assets” are set as follows: BER - RIe2REEHE
Fﬂfﬁﬁi’i?@ﬁ*gﬁj R
BEARREREEMREEBES
TR
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 1 January 2022
ZBIZETZASt-B CECCETCAZT-H ZECCE-A-E
Maximum Maximum Maximum
exposure to Loss exposure 1o Loss exposure 1o Loss
credit risk allowance credit risk allowance credit risk allowance
BREERR FERE SekEER FERE  ReREER BERR
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(@E7) (@E7)
Contract assets, deposits, trade and other ~~ ANEE - &%
receivables (Note 23) BAREMEYTE
(Hf3£23) 2,527,214 (217,619) 2,448,763 (19,440) 2,308,440 (8,779
Debt investments at FVOCI (Note 21) RATEHAELZAN
BERRE
(Rti21) 12994 - 39,488 - 91,916 -
Time deposits with maturiy over three months 8B B={E A4 L)

(Note 24) THER (W) 1,150,475 - 621,500 - 979,660 -
Cash at banks (Note 24) Bii5 e (i) 2,095,411 - 3329715 - 2,786,609 -
Financial quarantee HHER 193,171 (1,448) 762,750 - - -

5,979,265 (219,067) 7,202,216 (19,440) 6,166,625 (8,779
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures EEEEHEREXNZEER
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. o THZEEERRBE
EiE o
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBERERE (&
3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.2 HEEBEE (F)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) FEREE (&)
(i)  Credit risk of cash at banks and time deposits (i) ZIHPEA=EALLLHE
with maturity over three months THREREHERZE
=10
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the RZEZ=FR=F
Group’s bank deposits are deposited in major 4+ A=+—
financial institutions located in the PRC and Hong H SEmMBERTE
Kong, which the management believes are of high RAGTHRRERER
credit quality without significant credit risk. There RAEABEXREERR
has been no recent history of default in relation to WEEEHERZH
these financial institutions. The expected credit loss REXETZSFKE -
is insignificant. ZESRBBIILEAY

BEWNESL - BHE
EERYTEKX -

The Group’s bank deposits as at 31 December 2023 RZE-_ZFRK_F
and 2022 were as follows: & +=-/R=4+—
H SEZETHER
mr

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—EB_=F —E-CF

+=ZA=+-—H +=-A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

State-owned or listed banks HA =k EiRTT 1,845,789 2,691,830

Other banks EfhR1T 1,400,097 1,258,520

3,245,886 3,950,350
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of loan and interest receivables from
an associate

The directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during
the year ended 31 December 2023. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares risk of a default occurring on
the assets as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

—  Actual or expected significant adverse change
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to
the associate’s ability to meet its obligations;

— Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the associate;

— Significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the associate,
including changes in the payment status of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of loan and interest receivables from
an associate (Continued)

The management considers the credit risk on loan
and interest receivables from an associate after
considering the financial conditions of the associate
and concluded that there was significant increase
in credit risk, and the expected credit losses was
lifetime expected credit losses. Management
assessed the expected credit losses by applying
discounted cash flow method and using several
significant assumptions, including the distribution
of expected cash flows of the receivables under
multiple scenarios based on the associate’s past
repayment history, business model, current
situations and forecasts of future conditions, the
discount rates, and the related probability weight
under multiple scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

3.2

(iii) Credit risk of other receivables

Other receivables were mainly other interest
receivables, receivables under finance leases,
amounts due from associates, consideration
receivables and note receivables. The credit
quality of other receivables has been assessed
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of

the counterparties.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group'’s
expected credit losses model for loan and interest
receivables from an associate, and other receivables were

as follows:

Category
25

Group definition of category

HRNDBER

MRERER (&
HHAREE (&)

b) EEEE (&)

(i) HtEUREZEFER

B

HitRWHKBEER
HmElMe BE
HERTEKNKE -
JE Wi Bk 2 X B RRIE
EMRERERRERE -
HEERZEED
ER2ERZFH R
MERZ ST HE
MR 2 BE LB RETT
FE o

£ R — P 2 A B
B 8 A TR 2Lt 8 0 37
TE 813 B2 598 1R XA ik 8
BRESMT :

Basis for recognition of loss
allowance provision

BREEBRBHRENEE

Performing (“Stage 1")

RERE ([F—-FE&])

Underperforming (“Stage 2")

REAME ([F-BR])

Non-performing ("“Stage 3")

RATR ([F=BR])

Counterparties have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows

RHUBFEOEARABEEESERNE
TaRRLREFK

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if relevant interest
and/or principal repayments are 30 days
past due

15 B B K08 38 10 9 e UK SR IE ¢ fied 480 A
3JOREEEEFSR HEE - AR
BIERY=N PN Rl

Interest and/or principal repayments are 90
days past due
BEOREEMER LK
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("

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime
("12 months expected credit losses
method”)

RMAAMFESRER - BREHE
BEHENREACANEE - B
HERENERBEEDTE
(M2ERAEBREEBHEREA])

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHEA

Lifetime expected losses

EHEHEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

On that basis, as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
provisions for expected credit losses allowance on loan and
interest receivables from an associate, other receivables
were determined as below, which has incorporated
forward looking information.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

MRERER (&
32 MBEREE (4)
) EEER (#)

U BERE  R_ZT_=F
T+ =-A=+—
B BUK—HEHLERAAE
R F BOBA B K At fE W 5K 1B
MEHEEBEREET W
T EREEREEER -

Under Non-
Performing performing performing Total
RERH ®RTE REFR @it
As at 31 December 2023 RZ-Z==%
+=ZA=+-H
Gross carrying amount EREE(TET)

(HKD'000) 83,050 1,286,022 67,652 1,436,724
Expected loss rate BEEBEEX 3.00% 9.74% 100.00% —
Loss allowance provision BREBETRE

(HKD'000) (TR 2,492 125,271 67,652 195,415
As at 31 December 2022 RZ-ZF-—%

+=A=+-H
Gross carrying amount FEAE(TET)

(HKD'000) 1,640,153 — — 1,640,153
Expected loss rate EHEBE 1.19% = = =
Loss allowance provision 5B EHaTiE

(HKD'000) (FET) 19,440 — — 19,440
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk of contract assets and trade

receivables

For sales and distribution of natural gas and
other related products, the provision of pipeline
construction and connection services, and the sales
of coal derived clean and other related products in
the PRC, the Group generally requests advances
from these customers. For exploitation and
production of crude oil and natural gas in Canada,
receivables from oil and natural gas marketers
are normally collected on the 25th day of the
month following production. In circumstances of
credit sales, to manage the credit risk in respect of
contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of its customers,
and generally does not require collateral from the
customers on the outstanding balances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected credit loss provision for all contract assets
and trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Credit risk of contract assets and trade
receivables (Continued)

To measure the expected credit losses, contract
assets and trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. All customers of the Group are
assessed collectively using a provision matrix. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that
the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. For customers
relating to the sales and distribution of natural gas
and other related products, the provision of pipeline
construction and connection services as well as
the sales of coal derived clean and other related
products in the PRC, the Group has identified the
GDP growth rate of the PRC to be the most relevant
factor. For oil and natural gas marketers relating
to the exploitation and production of crude oil and
natural gas in Canada, the Group has identified
that commodity price fluctuation to be the most
relevant factor. The Group adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors
accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk of contract assets and trade

receivables (Continued)

Contract assets and trade receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period of greater than 1 year past
due.

Impairment losses on contract assets and trade
receivables are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Trade receivables and contract assets have been
assessed for impairment on a collective basis
based on different credit risk characteristics. Trade
receivables and contract assets are categorised as
follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1: Sales and distribution of natural gas and
other related products in sales and distribution of
natural gas and other related products segment and
sales of coal derived clean energy and other related
products segment

Group 2: Gas pipeline construction and connection
income

Group 3: Sales of equipment from sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related
products segment

Group 4: Sales of crude oil and natural gas and
others
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

(continued) (#&)

3 MBERER (&)

3.2 HBEBEE (F)

b) FEREE (&)
Credit risk of contract assets and trade (ivy EHNEERESER
receivables (Continued) B EERR (&)
As at 31 December 2023, the provision for expected R—_E-_Z+_-A
credit losses allowance on the trade receivables =+—H BSFEK
was determined as follows. The expected credit HREMEREEEIE
losses below also incorporated forward looking BETRETOT -
information. AR T8 Bi {5 B & 18 I
BEREMER -
Total
Mt
Group 1 £—4
Gross carrying amount (HKD'000) IRE AR (THT) 319,264
Expected loss rate TEEBEX 4.29%
Loss allowance provision (HKD'000) BIERETIR(TAT) 13,688
Group 2 £-4
Gross carrying amount (HKD’000) BREAR%E (TH&mT) 489,494
Expected loss rate TEHAE 1B K 1.32%
Loss allowance provision (HKD'000) EBERETR(TAT) 6,462
Group 3 $£=4
Gross carrying amount (HKD'000) BREARE (THmT) 110,133
Expected loss rate 8 Hi g 18 = 1.33%
Loss allowance provision (HKD'000) EERE R (THET) 1,464
Group 4 ERLE]
Gross carrying amount (HKD'000) BREAERE (THT) 76,403
Expected loss rate TEHE e = 0.77%
Loss allowance provision (HKD'000) BEEET R (T8 T 590
FHRRKEEBRAT 2023FFHK | 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

Credit risk of debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are normally
only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock
exchange, except where entered into for long-term
strategic purposes. Management considers “low
credit risk” for listed bonds to be an investment
grade credit rating with at least one major rating
agency. Other instruments are considered to be
low credit risk when they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. The Group also considered the forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors
including GDP and Purchase Price Index. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses for
these financial assets are not material under the
12 months expected credit loss method. Thus no
loss allowance provision was recognised as at the
balance sheet date.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(vi)

Credit risk of financial guarantee

The Group provided certain financial
guarantee in respect to the bank borrowings
to Shandong Shengli aggregate maximum of
RMB 140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$154,000,000)
(2022: RMB1,105,000,000, equivalent to
HK$1,248,650,000). As at 31 December 2023,
the amounts withdrawn by Shandong Shengli and
guaranteed by the Group was RMB140,000,000,
equivalent to HK$154,000,000 (2022:
RMB675,000,000, equivalent to HK$762,750,000).
Two subsidiaries of the Group also provided
guarantee for the loan repayment obligation
of an independent third-party amounting to
RMB35,610,000, equivalent to HK$39,171,000,
from whom the Group acquired these two
subsidiaries. The Group recognised HK$1,448,000
(2022:nil) of credit losses, which is measured at
lifetime expected credit losses.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

MZERERE (&)

32 MHAREE ()

) EEER (#)
v) HBERZEEAR

SERLTHARMD K
BITERREHSE T
BER ZRBER
A K #140,000,0007C
(#8 % 1 154,000,000/8
T (ZFZZF A
R #1,105,000,0007C
% 71,248,650,000
B RZT - =
£+ -_A=+—8 -
B R B R% 5 12 B3 |
SEERNESEAA
R #140,000,0007T
#H 2 $2154,000,00078 7T
(ZEZ=F: AR®
675,000,0007T @ HER
762,750,000/ o) ° £
BRI ENGIDIES
B 7 H pR U 52 W R B
BRARMBILIE=H
MEREEETRH
ER 2BEAARE
35,610,0007T (# & »
39,171,000/ 7T) ° &£E
T R {5 5 /5 181,448,000
Brox(ZZT = = F:
®/) 0 iREHESE
EBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

3

3.2

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHERER (&
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.2 BEEBEZ (F)
Credlit risk (Continued) b) FEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2023, summary of provision for RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—
expected credit losses allowance on trade receivables A REZEKRFEREL
and contract assets, loan and interest receivables from BE  BR—BEBZERAAE
an associate, other receivables and financial guarantees REAE - EpEWRIE R
reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that provision MHBERARNBEHEES
as follows: BREHEFURENEBER
BHERAT
Loan and
Trade interest
receivables receivables
and contract from an Other Financial
assets associate receivables guarantees Total
gHEY Eh-mA
REREH LN
43 EXRAS HitEWE HEER @it
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T T T T
As at 1 January 2023 R=B==%
-A-H - 19,440 - - 19,440
Charged to profit or loss BERNR 22,204 107,315 70,144 1,448 201,111
Exchange differences ERES - (1,484) = = (1,484)
As at 31 December 2023 RZZ-=%
+-RA=1-H 22,204 125,271 70,144 1,448 219,067
As at 1 January 2022 R-B-ZE
-B-H — 8,779 — — 8,779
Charged to profit or loss BERNK = 11,709 = = 11,709
Exchange differences EREE - (1,048) — — (1,048)
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-_F
+ZA=+-H - 19,440 - - 19,440
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s Board when the borrowings exceed
certain pre-determined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. See note 2.1 for more details regarding
net current liabilities and going concern basis.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at date of the statement of financial position
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the statement of financial
position date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

(continued) (#&)

3 BRERERE (&)

3.2 HBEBEE (F)

(©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RE

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(©

3 HRERERE (&)

3.2  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.2 BERBEE (&
Liquidity risk (Continued) © mEEZERE (&)
Total Less than
Total carrying contractual 1 year or Between Between Over
Group &8 amount  un-discounted on demand 1to 2 years 2to 5 years 5 years
CLESE] 15/,
FEAE & REX%H 1228 2558 SENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin i A i i FiL
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
TZA=1-H
Trade and other payables  Z5REMERFE 1,752,055 1,752,055 1,752,055 - - -
Borrowings &R 4,712,331 5,061,195 3,893,455 349,141 174,146 643,853
Senior notes BAZE 2,999,366 3,351,597 140,970 140,970 3,069,657 =
Lease liabilities g8k 39,512 45,774 11,535 9,805 10,114 14,320
9,503,264 10,210,621 5,798,015 500,516 3,253,917 658,173
As at 31 December 2022 R-E--
(restated) +-R=1+-H
(mE3)
Trade and other payables  ESREBERFE 1,634,203 1,634,223 1,634,203 = = =
Borrowings &R 4735713 5,082,846 4,076,490 204,152 319,334 482,870
Senior notes BAEE 3,665,479 4,194,535 847,362 140,800 3,206,373 =
Lease liabilities figak 51,632 67,080 13,880 14,083 19,247 19,910
10,087,047 10,978,684 6,571,955 358,995 3,544,954 502,780
As at 1 January 2022 S
(restated) -A—B(&EE7)
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMEMFE 13773 1,377,301 1,377,321 = = =
Borrowings &3 3,074,809 3,233,063 1,520,435 1,002,712 709,916 =
Senior notes BEZE 5,645,120 6,538,945 287,339 2,804,677 3.446,929 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 74,966 88,998 19,353 16,604 30,969 2,072
10,172,216 11,238,327 3,204,448 3823,993 4,187,814 2,07
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note:

(a) The Group complied with senior notes and bank
borrowings covenant as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
and did not trigger the callable terms.

(b) As at 31 December 2023, the Group issued corporate
guarantee to banks in respect of bank facilities
granted to an associate. As at 31 December 2023, the
maximum aggregated amount which the Group could
be demanded under the guarantee in the event of
default of the bank borrowings by the associate was
RMB 140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$154,000,000) (2022:
RMB1,105,000,000, equivalent to HK$1,248,650,000).
Two subsidiaries of the Group also provided guarantee
for the loan repayment obligation of an independent
third-party amounting to RMB35,610,000, equivalent to
HK$39,171,000, from whom the Group acquired these
two subsidiaries.

Capital risk management

The Group'’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditure and projected strategic investment opportunities. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
the Company'’s shares, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived from
the consolidated statement of financial position. The table below

3.3

BBEREE (&

EXEBREEGE)

SEREBEZEMBRAKRMA TR
AERBzARRERREEE
BEARRPLREZEER - TR

analyses the Group’s capital structure: REBEREE 2D
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E=-= T —F
+=A +=A —ECCF
=+-# =+-8 —A—H
(Restated) (Restated)
(g=E75) (gE751)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEER
(HK$'000) (F#T) 2,095,411 3,329,715 2,786,609
Current ratio (Current assets MENLL R ORBEER
divided by current liabilities) Un#aE) 0.68 0.68 1.09

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-asset
ratio. The ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total assets.
Total debt is calculated as total borrowings and senior notes. The
Group's gearing ratio was 38% (2022 (restated): 36%) as at 31
December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBERERE (&
3.4 Fair value estimation 3.4 AFEME
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () URFESEZ 2/ IA

The following table presents the carrying value of the TREVNNEM AR & B H

financial instruments measured at fair value at the £ &A% WS ER BT

statement of financial position date across the three levels [EmIHE:BEIMAEZ

of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial AFE=ZFEEBERF KA

Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each FTEIIEZEMIAZERA

financial instruments categorised in its entirety based on B mMEemMIAZATE

the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value NEZAFEAEBERZ

measurement. EEEXRBASBEMEES

oo

The levels are defined as follows: FAAREZERIMT :

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using o F — R (&=
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for R) AR Rl & m T
identical financial instruments. BEERmIEWmE (RE&

BE) HEATHE -

. Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices e FEZER:MNEMUS
in active market for similar financial instruments, or BT AERMSHRE -
using valuation techniques in which all significant s AR E R (KA AT
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable EERBAHELE
data. EMBENTERY

BAXK)GTEQATFE -

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using e EF = XR(& K E
valuation techniques in which any significant input K)o BAEE R (A
is not based on observable market data. AR E KB A S

DA ERBRET S H
BRA)GFEQXFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UIKRBER (&
3.4 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.4 PDFEMEE (&)
() Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () URNFEIFRS 26T A (&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BR EZBR FZEBIR k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%
+=A=t—-A
Financial assets at FVOCI: BATEFAEME
BlE SHEE:
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 173,013 — — 173,013
— Listed debt investments — ETEBERE 12,544 — — 12,544
— Unlisted debt investments — FETEREE — 450 — 450
185,557 450 — 186,007
As at 31 December 2022 i —
+-A=1+—8
Financial assets at FVOCI: BAFEFAEMR
AREZEMEE:
— Listed equity investments — FRARE 192,800 — — 192,800
— Listed debt investments — ETEBEKE 39,038 = == 39,038
— Unlisted debt investments — ELTEBRE = 450 = 450
231,838 450 — 232,288
During the year, there were no transfers between RAEFEE » F—BX - F
instruments in level 1, level 2 and level 3. —_EBARNE=ZEBAzEBZI
B meas o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the date of the statement of financial position.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
Hong Kong and Dow Jones equity and debt
investments classified as financial assets at FVOCI
(2022: same).

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4

Fair value estimation (Continued)

3

B EREE (&)

DR EME (E)

34

() Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () URNFEIFRS 26T A (&)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (0 HF=EX&mIA
Fair values for the unquoted equity investments BmMEERKREENR
are estimated based on recent market transactions FTERERETAR
adjusted for specific circumstances of the issuer. EBEFAENZELT
BRBHEEL -
(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than (i)  HIFRFEINEZZHTAZ

fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments,
including non-current assets carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are
used for long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment
of current receivables and of current payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. Estimated
discounted cash flows at the current market interest
rate are used to determine fair value for these financial
instruments (i.e., level 3-lowest level).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgments in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgments,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgments are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgments that are involved in
preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Estimate of impairment of loan and interest receivables
from and interest in an associate

The loss allowances for loan and interest receivables from
an associate are based on assumptions about distribution of
expected cash flows of the receivables under multiple scenarios.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions,
including the distribution of expected cash flows of the
receivables under multiple scenarios based on the associate’s
past repayment history, business model, current situations and
forecasts of future conditions, the discount rates, and the related
probability weight under multiple scenarios.

The Group conducts impairment reviews of the interest in
an associate if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the investment (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the
investment that can be reliably estimated. Business valuation of
the associate was performed by management to determinate
the recoverability of the interest in an associate which involves
management estimates and judgments such as commodity price
growth, future production profile, and discount rate.

Favourable changes to some assumptions may decrease the
impairment amount whereas unfavourable changes may increase
the provisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment which includes
oil and gas properties, and other non-financial assets are also
reviewed for possible impairments whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involves management estimates and judgments
such as future prices of natural gas and crude oil. However, the
impairment reviews and calculations are based on assumptions
that are consistent with the Group’s business plans. Favourable
changes to some assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the
need to impair any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become impaired.

The Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects
for the discovery of oil in the oilfield and estimated the value
of oil to be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. For drilling costs and
other exploration and evaluation assets, the Group determined
whether the related well costs are expensed if it is determined
that such economic viability is not attained after performing
further feasibility studies. Judgment is required by the Board to
determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections
and changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the impairment
reviews.
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

()

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note
3.2 (b).

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment (excluding the property, plant

and equipment under the segment “exploitation and
production of crude oil and nature gas”)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group's property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technological advancement
and innovations in the natural gas industry. Management will
adjust the depreciation charge where residual values vary with
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciation in
the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(e)

()

Estimate of petroleum reserve under the segment of
“exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas”

Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elements in the Group's
investment decision-making process. Changes in total proved
plus probable petroleum reserves will affect unit-of-production
depreciation and depletion recorded in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for property, plant and equipment related
to oil and gas production activities. A reduction in proved plus
probable reserves will increase depreciation and depletion
charges. Petroleum reserve estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on new information, such
as from development drilling and production activities or from
changes in economic factors, including product prices, contract
terms or development plans.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$49,767,000
(2022: HK$45,014,000) that could be carried forward against
future taxable income as the realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profit is not probable. Estimating
the amount of deferred tax asset arising from tax losses requires
a process that involves determining appropriate provisions for
income tax expense, forecasting future year’s taxable income
and assessing our ability to utilise tax benefits through future
earnings. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
different from original estimates than expected, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
charges in the year in which such circumstances are changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SEXIEKkOIFER

The Group's principal activities are the sales and distribution of natural SEFEXETHERBERAR - R
gas, crude oil and other related products, provision of construction and mEkEMEEES RPERERSR
connection services of gas pipelines and production and sales at coal EBEREREBRREREEMBELER
derived clean energy and other related products in the PRC, and the BREREREMMEEED - KREM
exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in Canada. ERHARREERBERAR - &R

Revenue for the year comprises the following: EEBHRIELNT&EE
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(gE75)

Sales and distribution of natural gas and other  $8& R #&iX XA R &
related products Efh i E @ 14,096,140 14,616,792
Gas pipeline connection and construction R B B R R 2 R

services income WA 1,145,077 959,762
Exploitation and production of crude oil and RAREREERBRERAR
natural gas 501,798 726,721
Production and sales of coal-derived clean HEERBEEEEZTRERK
energy and other related products H{th 5 R & & 2,784,789 993,400
18,527,804 17,296,675

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive Directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance focuses more specifically on
sales of natural gas, gas pipeline construction and connection;
production and sales of coal derived clean energy and other related
products and exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas.

The Group has presented the following four reportable segments for
the year ended 31 December 2023:

—  sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products

—  gas pipeline construction and connection
—  exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas

—  production and sales of coal-derived clean energy and other
related products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of other
gains, net, finance income, finance costs, share of profits of
investments accounted for using the equity method, net, reversal of
impairment on oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment, written off of exploration and evaluation assets, net
impairment losses on financial and contract assets, net impairment
losses on investment in an associate and other unallocated corporate
expenses, which is consistent with these in the consolidated financial
statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets and
liabilities to its segments and report the sales from external customers
by geographical market, as the executive directors do not use this
information to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of
operating segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of
segment assets and liabilities for each reportable segment and a
measure of sales by geographical market.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the executive Directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023:

HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=+T—HLFE:

Sales and Production and
distribution of Exploitation and sales of coal-
natural gas and Gas pipeline production of derived clean
other related construction and crude oil and energy and other
products connection natural gas related products Group
LER#E
#HER BER RERE
BERAER HEEE 31304 ERRE
At RBER BERER KRR HBER 58
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TR
Segment revenue and results AHERERRR
Segment revenue AHERE

Recognised at a point in time RE-EHEED 14,096,140 - 501,798 2,784,189 17,382,727

Recognised over time R-BEERED - 1,145,077 - - 1,145,077
Sales to external customers NBEPHER 14,096,140 1,145,077 501,798 2,784,789 18,527,804
Segment results HH%E 1,169,160 432,504 175,552 (148,376) 1,628,840
Finance income (Note 9) S ONiE)) 214,654
Other gains, net (Note 7) s F8 (W7 2,384
Finance costs (Note 9) BHER (M) (432,757)
Net impairment losses on financial and ~ $BRANEEREE

contract assets (Note 3.2(b)) EEFE(WE3.20) (201,111)
Net impairment losses on investmentin -~ X &R~ E R FAMEE

an associate (Note 20) BiEF8 (f520) (140,650)
Written off of exploration and HREREEERE (HE17)

evaluation assets (Note 17) - - (2,935) — (2,935)
Share of profits of investments accounted 2 /&  FREREAE 2

for using the equity method, net RERH  FE (H:20)

(Note 20) 34,541
Unallocated corporate expenses APELERR (382,427)
Profit before taxation BRAER 720,539
Taxation (Note 12) REME2) (340,385)
Profit for the year Sl 380,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SEHEIERDILER (&)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BHE_T_—_F+-_A=1+—HLEE:

Sales and
distribution of Production and sales
natural gas and Gas pipeline Exploitation and of coal-derived clean
other related construction and production of crude energy and other
products connection oil and natural gas related products Group
EERBE
HER RRR RERZ
HERRER haEE FERAR Rk
EfEEER BEREY RS FEER £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tk Tk TiEn TR TR
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E3]) (EE5)
Segment revenue and results PREEEREE (KES)
(restated)
Seqment revenue PHERE

Recognised at a point in time RE-KELED 14,616,792 - 726,121 993,400 16,336,913

Recognised over time R-BEENER - 959,762 = = 959,762
Sales to external customers NIEPREE 14,616,792 959,762 726721 993,400 17,296,675
Seqment results GRS 1,140,253 404,073 402,424 5,663 1952413
Finance income (Note 9) BIEUA (559) 247,004
Other gains, net (Note 7) Hthhas - 58 (W) 4,315
Finance costs (Note 9) BB ER (M) (453,051)
Net impairment losses on financial and £ @R ANEENFEEEFE

contract assets (Note 3.2(b) (FzE3.200) (11,709)
Reversal of impairment on ofl and gas 1%~ BERZEETHAEE

properties under property, plantand  REEE (K15)

equipment (Note 15) — - 118,251 - 118,251
Written off of exploration and evaluation &) REHE BE# (317)

assets (Note 17) — — (3,665) — (3,665)
Share of profits of investments accounted 25§ FERENE 2 RE %

for using the equity method, net %8 (Wsko)

(Note 20) 59,734
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMLERR (374811)
Profit before taxation BB AT 1,576,501
Taxation (Note 12) RA(3E12) (383,688)
Profit for the year R 1187813
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EXRBERDEER (&)
(Continued)
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10% of the HEZZ-_=FkR=-F=Z=ZF+=ZA8
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Z+—HIEFE  SEREBHNBLEFR
REBZEEBEHRERBEBRI0% °
Analysis of the Group's assets by geographical market for the years HE_Z_=FRkR-_F__F+=A4
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below: =+t—BLEFEE  SEEMRETS

DZEEZNTEINMAT

2023 2022 2021
—EC-=F e <2 —EZ-F
Additions
to non- Additions to
current non-current
Total assets assets Total assets assets Total assets
"B NE
BEE FRBEE BEE ERBEE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTHEL FTHEL FTHEL
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(B&3) (BE7)) (BE5)

Hong Kong A% 478,372 3,304 1,027,200 33,904 422,045
Mainland China R A 15,891,153 895,582 16,215,609 1,483,449 16,903,683
Canada mex 2,607,098 222,910 2,523,424 287,053 2,492,440
Total B 18,976,623 1,121,796 19,766,233 1,804,406 19,818,168
Unallocated AOE
Investments accounted for using  FREFEARZRE

the equity method (Note 20) (F5E20) 1,633,245 1,698,560 1,758,418
Deferred tax assets (Note 29) EREHEAE (H329) 45,176 12,534 14,698

Financial assets at fair value BRATEFAEMZE
through other comprehensive WazeREE

income (Note 21) (BH3E21) 186,007 232,288 289,795
Total assets BEE 20,841,051 21,709,615 21,881,079
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

OTHER INCOME 6 HmA
2023 2022
—E2-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Government subsidies (Note (i)) AT 48 B (B EE)) 40,116 26,517

Dividend income from equity investments at EAFEFAEMEZEKEZ
FVOCI (Note 21) AR E 2 IRBWA

(M 5E21) 2,172 1,916
Financial guarantee income (Note 34) ISR A (M 5E34) 7,877 6,294
Others Hh 11,475 7,338
61,640 42,065

Notes: BT -

(i) Subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value where (i) ERCERETHKRIIBMAAOME - m
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the SEBETHREMSHRER - BUTH
Group will comply with all attached conditions. MZERAFEER -

Government subsidies relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the BRI TR G HORE - I
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that E/s\ HEREHENKREIEYERSH
they are intended to compensate. MARBREPER -
Government subsidies relating to property, plant and equipment are BY¥ - BMERRESBOBT @Y
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are A ERBEBEERBEERTHE)
credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected WEREREZNEBEERTFRIA
lives of the related assets. B o
OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Httzm o FE
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Losses on disposals of debt investments at fair &R A FET AEA

value through other comprehensive income FHBEZEBHRESN
BB (1,527) (5,382)
Losses on disposal of an associate HE MBS D a A EE (558) =
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREZHENUAKR
equipment and right-of-use assets 1 FAE & B ) W e 4,469 47,697

2,384 42,315
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

8 OPERATING PROFIT 8 K&EmAl
Operating profit has been arrived after charging/(crediting) the KEREMEMBR, (GTA) A T&IER
following items: EE
2023 2022
—E:E=-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(gE5)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) BEERMFAE X (M5E10) 533,778 531,403
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAERTNFEEKA 14,305,302 12,786,391
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B &
— Audit services — BZRE 4,500 3,150
Depreciation and depletion of property, plant M- BELZETER
and equipment (Note 15) B (sx15) 690,986 739,298
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) FRAEEEWNE (Hix1e) 24,288 23,194
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 19) E|ILEESE (HE19) 8,722 9,761
Short term lease expenses (Note 16) EHEERY (Hixe) 4,704 3,516
Gains on disposals of property, plant and HEME  BERZHENAKR
equipment and right-of-use assets (Note 7) b 5 AR AE A W s (P EE7) (4,469) (47,697)
Net impairment losses on financial and TRMEREHNEEREBEER
contract assets (Note 3.2(b)) SF R (B 5E3.2(b)) 201,111 11,709
Net impairment losses on investment in an R—HEBERRZRERME
associate (Note 20) &85 (M 3k20) 140,650 =
Net exchange losses PEH B8 /558 9,983 10,725
Written off of exploration and evaluation assets )& & aF{4 & &= b 8 (M #£17)
(Note 17) 2,935 3,665
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A B IS R R MY G

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

9 HMBWAREH

(continued) (#&)

2023 2022
—E-=F —EC-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
(Restated)
(=E75)
Interests income on: FBWA -
Bank deposits |ITFER 105,735 116,932
Debt investments at FVOCI EAFEFAEMEE
ez BEHIRE 25,491 28,522
Loan to an associate (Note 34(b)) BERTF—REEBERQA
(Mt E34(b)) 81,496 97,902
Loans to third parties BRTFE=ZH 1,932 3,668
214,654 247,024
Interests expenses on: MEBA :
Bank borrowings RITER (262,092) (201,475)
Other borrowings H At 8 3K (14,333) (2,961)
Lease liabilities (Note 16) HEAE (H16) (2,301) (5,010)
Senior notes BERE (151,916) (280,393)
Accretion of assets retirement obligation BEWEAERM
(Note 30) (FfF7E30) (4,698) (3,440)
Less: Amounts capitalised (Note 15(iv)) B B R (BFE153v)) 2,583 40,228
(432,757) (453,051)
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 10 BRERAAX - BIEESH
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS oA
2023 2022
—E-=HF - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e IERSES 470,896 471,099
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREMAE — REH-KEE 62,882 60,304
533,778 531,403
(a)  Five highest paid individuals (a) HEERSHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in SEFRNAEERMNEZALE
the Group for the year include 2 (2022: 2) directors whose B2E (ZEZF :28)ES -
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented in Note 11. HMe D HRMENZINHST -
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 3 (2022: 3) FRNENHIENTESBRIE (ZF
individuals during the year are as follows: —ZF 3%) ATHBE TR
N
2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZUREYN G 12,764 10,218
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAEFET B3R — 18
12,764 10,236
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 10
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band was as follows:

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

EBERAFX - BRESH
% (&)

(a) HEBRSHFMAL (H)

BATHEBEEZREABNOT :

Number of employees

EEAE
2023 2022
—E-=HF g
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001/ L&
4,000,000 7T, 1 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001/ LE
5,000,0007% J© 2 —

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Senior management’s emoluments

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management
fell within the following bands:

BT _=F¢fRrR=-ZE=-=
+ZA=+—BLFE - FEX
EINAENEAHESTEER
i ssFMz AL - ERBE
BEMBEERRIEABFRR 2
wHE -

(b) SREEE RS FH N

BATHEEMNENSRER
BREMEFFE

Number of employees

EBEAH
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-=
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 0% 7C 21,000,000 7T 8 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ TE
2,000,000/ 7T 5 5
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 8 TE
3,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 8 TE
4,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 T2
5,000,000/ 7T 2 —

THRREEAERAT 2023FF® 137




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 1M EFMakiER (BEQARMGK
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 5l (56622%F) 26383f% + A F]
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (BEEENRER) B (F
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE 622 GE) REBLELMHKRAIR
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF ERHE)

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M=
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s services as ENEERARKEMBARES
a director or services in connection with the management of the SRPEEREBEBRAORSE 2
affairs, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings: ATzMeskEERKMSHT -
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HEz—_FT-_=F+=-HA=+—H
IEFE -
Employer's
Salaries, contribution to
allowances and a retirement
Fees benefits in kind Share awards benefit scheme Total
4 2ER EXHEHEN
ik UL BUES) HENER @it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL THRL T#RL
Executive directors: #Es:
Xu Tie-fiang FRR (FTRAEH)

(Chiet Executive Officer) 120 22,602 - 18 22,740
Gao Falian RhiE 120 1,073 - - 1,193
Guan Yijun BEzE 120 6,500 - 18 6,638
Xu Ran A 118 997 - 18 1,133
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:

directors:

Liv Zhihong s (R-F-=%

(appointed on 15 June 2023) 7 H+ A BEEHE) 65 - - - 65
Wang Wenhua IE(R-F-=F

(resigned on 15 June 2023) A1 EAEK) 55 - - - 55
Wang Guang-tian IER 120 - - - 120
Yang Jie BA 120 - - - 120
Total @ 838 31172 - 54 32,064
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

1M EFNEzRkER (BBQRMR
5 (58622%F) 283831% + A F
(BEZEEFNRER) RE (F
622 GE) REBLMHAAR
EWNHE) (&)

(a) ESME (&)

HE_ZT-_—_#+_-_A=+—8H

IEFE -
Employer's
Salaries, contribution to
allowances and a retirement
Fees benefits in kind Share awards benefit scheme Total
§¢ 2HR EXHRNEN
ik Enfla Ttn 8 AEHER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T#n T#n Tin AL
Executive directors: #irEs:
Xu Tie-liang TR (T AA)

(Chief Executive Officer) 120 27,638 — 18 21,776
Gao Falian BRE 120 1,033 - = 1,153
Guan Yijun BRE 120 6,500 - 18 6,638
Xu Ran F 120 1,001 - 18 1,139
Independent non-executive  BUFHTES:

directors:

Wang Wenhua I 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian IER 120 - - - 120
Yang lie BA 120 - - - 120
Total @it 840 36,172 = 54 37,066

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
of the Company as an accepting office as director or as a

compensation for loss of office as director.

BEARESFRELAMNE - &
B EAEAARESEIAME
EREREFBM Z RB KRBT
EEMCHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#&)

11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(o]

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2022: Nil).
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1M EFMakiER (BEQARMGK
5l (56622%F) 26383f% + A F]
(BEEENRER) B (F
622 GE) REBLMAAR
EWRE) (&

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

()

EBRMNEF

EEUMBEAMERAARL
I 2 ) 2 o R A
AR BUR RIER (2B ==
) o

EEBBEAN

FR o YERBEELEMNKL
W EE (ZE-—F  |) o

HRENESRBAE=STIANKE

TEREREEEALAESIR
8 BR % ) H AR E B AR
(ZE=——F :M|) o

BHUES - REEBOT RS
ERMEERATSEANSH - &
ERREMRIHEH

FR - BENEE  REEFEZ
XEGFEIENBEERRTHEA

ZER EERRAMRS (=
To_F &)

EERRG - ZHREHONERE

UNECIR 3 S S e R S G
AR AAREZEREREER
MEEAETWNEARSBEHREH
¥BBERIZERRS - THEA
H(ZFZ=F - &|,) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the year (2022: Nil).

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards at 10% (2022: 10%). Certain entities of the
Group with Hong Kong business and directly owns at least 25% of the
capital of the PRC subsidiaries are entitled to the lower withholding tax
rate at 5% (2022: 5%).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2022: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%).

Canada income tax has been provided for at the rate of 23% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year (2022: 23%), which
represented the tax rate in Alberta, Canada and the Canada’s federal
tax rate of 8% (2022: 8%) and 15% (2022: 15%) respectively.

Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

12

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#)

BiIR

2R eI AN SR 3 S R CIR - )
BEMNGRZERBEN  BALER
BRNGHRIFREER (T =%
&) o

RIEAEP R SERSREREH
BE_ZEZENF—A—B BAFF
B EARAEMEBZ &% AREE R
10% (T = =% : 10%) 2§ &84
BB - - ETHEEEEBEEER
EFEMBARZEL2%BAEEE
Mo E5y (DT - —F 5%) Y RIK
B -

BEEERRCEMSHE - BAR
ERMA c RPBEARMAHE QR
25% (ZF = =4 : 25%) 2 B KM
PRICEMER - ETHBARZESA
BHEEERERL Bt ZEWBAQ
A2 BmMABEMEBRBEEI15% (ZF
T F 1 15%) BAFR o

FRMEKRAERTIIE23% G 5T BRER
mMEFIR (ZTEZF :23%) » B
AW RAB A B R &2 KB =
DR AE8% (ZFE - —F :8%) R15%
(ZEZZ%F :15%) o
HgiMNaFI R BT A E B K & TR
EREEBERARITREIRE NI ERR
EAETEMIA -

2023 2022

—E_-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(Restated)

(&&E5)

Current tax ik ] 352,332 276,692
Deferred tax (Note 29) EERE (FF5E29) (11,947) 111,996
Taxation THIA 340,385 388,688
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

12 TAXATION (Continued) 12 18 (&)
BE-—T-=#+-A=+—HAL%
E o UEFBEME2mKIAKBD
ZHRBEE (T _—F &) -

There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

SERHAGEN 2 HAREREASHE
MM MEFOREELZEREEE

rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows: £ N
2023 2022
—E:E=-= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(#E7)
Profit before taxation B F AT 720,539 1,576,501
Tax calculated at the applicable rates in the tax ¥ ABRBEFI Uk A 5 2 A
jurisdictions concerned MEFTENHIA 244,703 434,483
Tax effect of associates and joint venture's EERBERRAREGE AT
result reported %FZMIEE/ 2 (12,483) 14,933
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation BAERBTMANTR G2 (23,440) (69,582)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for b n A= N I s - )
tax purpose W E 98,822 12,833
Tax effect of tax concessions PR BT & (48,316) (55,236)
Unrecognised tax losses RERBIEEE 83,868 54,807
Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses FARERTIEEE (10,156) (5,221)
Withholding tax on dividend income f& B ATE B 10,152 9,801
Over provision in prior years BAFEREBRE (2,765) (8,130)
Taxation HIA 340,385 388,688

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 22.0% (2022: 25.6%). MEFHERME B20% (ZF ==
The decrease is caused by the net effect of change in the profitability F:256%) c ZNBEITBARE @ &
of the Group's subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions, especially due to /Z R sHBARIZRNENEEHE
the increase in the loss before taxation for entities with zero tax rate in vE . RERETHKRAIEERS
certain tax jurisdictions. T 7% T EERBNRNAEEE A

13 DIVIDEND 13 RE

The Board has decided not to propose final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

EERCHERTHRBE_ZT-_=ZF+=
AZ+—BLHEEERRRERS (ZF
TZF |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the
Group's loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$232,496,000 (2022 (restated): profit attributable to owners of the
Company approximately HK$730,144,000) and weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
scheme during the year of approximately 4,901,495,000 shares (2022:
4,901,495,000 shares).

Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two
categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and
shares held under the share award scheme during the year. For the
share options, a calculation is performed to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options and future service cost.

14

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#)

BR (B8 BA
%

R EERER (BB) B TER
N R A AL S B E5 18 49232,496,000
BT (ZEZZF (KEY]) : ne#%ER
A JE 16 % Tl #9730,144,00078 7T) K F R
BEITEBRRBR G ER BB T T
&% 17 1& 2 Hn#E S 35 81 494,901,495,000 %
(ZZF = 4% : 4,901,495,000/%) -

i

B

t

i

gREE (BR) " BINDEBRRME
%ﬁ”ﬁzi@HxEEﬁZ\a/ﬂT
T H G R BRITEING E B INAEF
B R EMBAEBEEN2ER
B BB RCRE B R AR {0 SR B R &) 1 R
ﬁE’JHxT c EREME - BREAE
E@Tfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 5&17@5%%&%2 \RE
“%1?’1@%&’&?@( THM’J%Z%
iﬂ?i’ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%‘iﬁ%ﬁ) E\%)\Z%Tﬁ%@
RARRBRBRARTE -

P

2023 2022
—E_=F —ET -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
(Restated)
(=7)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the NEER AEN (BB,
Company gl (232,496) 730,144
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 4 R & 377 & 8 A% R A% 19
issue less shares held under the share award RENETEIB T ARG &
scheme during the year (thousands) ZInEFHE(FAR) 4,901,495 4,901,495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for &% #i % (&518) /& F)
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (thousands) LB N B (FR) 4,901,495 4,901,495

HE-_Z-_Z4+_A=+—RHLLFE -
ERBEEEEEAEREABER (2%
ZZHF AR c BEZE =+

The diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: same). For the year ended 31
December 2023, the options granted and remained unexercised are

not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share because they
are antidilutive. These options could potentially dilute basic (loss)/
earnings per share in the future. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the options granted and remained unexercised did not have
dilutive impact since the outstanding share options did not have
dilutive effect because the exercise price per share option was higher
than the average share price of the Company.

A=1+—BLFE  BRERHEHER
TENBREREREEER » HAHE
BREBEEEERY ITEEZSHERE
ZEBRERRTEBESRER (BR)
BN BE_E-_—_F+-_A=+—
EIJJ:EJ* HRENBRENTEES
RNEHERAE - B R TT R BB A
jﬂﬂ%&%%% : E&E&Hﬂ@ﬁcﬁﬂifﬂiﬁ’ﬂ
BhETESETE
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#&)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - MERRE

(Note (v)) (Note (if)
Plant and Oil and gas (Note (i) Construction
Buildings machinery properties Pipelines Others in progress Total
(R&t) (W (i) GE()
e HREREE BREE B i EEIE Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
Thn TEn Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn
Balance at 1 January 2022, H=F==§-f-AH
as previously reported g8 tngs
Cost i 1,249,872 1,998,604 4,666,960 5,335,012 493,713 1,341,718 16,085,879
Accumulated depreciation, R TE - BERAE
depletion and impairment (344,005) (735,102) (2,360,435) (1,597,640) (310,358) - (5,347,600)
Net book value at 1 Janvary ~ RZFZZ5-A-AH
202 as previously reported ~ BEFE - £HHE 905,807 2,263,502 2,306,525 3731372 183,355 1,341,718 10,738,279
Prior year adjustments BEERAE(HT24)
(Note 2.4):
Cost R - - - (@57,474) - - (457 474)
Accumulated depreciation,  EitTE - BERAE
depletion and impairment - - - (48,338) - - (48,338)
Net book value at 1 Janvary ~ R=F=Z%-A—-AH
2022 as restated BESE L) 905,807 2,263,502 2,306,525 3,231,560 183,355 1341718 10,232,467
Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ-2--§+=F
ST-ALEE
As at 1 January 2022 RZB-Z5-f-H 905,807 2,263,502 2,306,525 3,231,560 183,355 1,341,718 10,232,467
Currency realignment gERE (53,690) (161,770) (138,944) (234,748) (11,692) (100,057) (700,901)
Additions AE 47,208 79,387 280379 205,069 43,780 766,931 1,422,754
Transfers En 25421 81,715 = 300,373 2134 (409,643) -
Transfer from exploration and ~ #VF R AEEE (317
evaluation assets (Note 17) - - 4,381 - - - 4,381
Disposalsfritten-off HE /s (15,718) (49,082) = (36,124) (6,285) = (107,209)
Depreciation and depletion for /{7 & [t % (% i%8)
the year (Note 8) (48,460) (126,595) (233,614) (301,613) (29,016) — (739,298)
Reversal of impairment loss ~ FEEEEE - - 118,251 - - = 118,251
Balance at 31 December 2022, W-Z-Z£+-f
as restated ZT-RbER £33 860,568 2,087,157 1,336,978 3,164,517 182,276 1,598,949 10,230,445
Balance at 31 December 2022, R=B==&+=4
as restated ST-BNER BE5
Cost B 1,215,520 2,865,253 4,730,650 4,887,674 457,025 1,598,949 15,755,071
Acumulated depreciation,  E3HTE - BERAE
depletion and impairment (354,952) (778,09) (2,393,672) (1,723,157) (274.749) - (5,524 626)
Net book value EEFE 860,568 2,087,157 2,336,978 3,164,517 182,276 1,598,949 10,230,445
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BERR®E (&)
(Continued)
(Note (v)) (Note (ii))
Plant and Oil and gas (Note (iii) ~ Construction in
Buildings machinery properties Pipelines Others progress Total
(R (v)) (i) GE)
L HERKE HREE B A fRIR 3t
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000
TR TR TR TEn TR TR TR
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ=F-=f+-f
St-ALEE
At 1 January 2023 RZFZZE-A-A 860,568 2,087,157 2,336,978 3,164,517 182,276 1,598,949 10,230,445
Currency realignment gz (17,760) (60,465) 53,407 (71,983) (4,528) (30,698) (132,027)
Additions RE 10,346 16,355 216,767 1,630 45,225 576,266 866,589
Transfers B 139,045 972,011 - 429,841 38,181 (1,579,078) -
Transfer from exploration and ~ BVRRETEAEER (H3E17)
evaluation assets (Note 17) - - 41 - - - 41m
Transfer to investment properties EEZREEEHE (129,341) - - - - - (129,341)
Disposalshwritten-off be /g (5,535) (15,190) - - (2,369) - (23,094)
Depreciation and depletion for & §7% kI8 (Ffiz8)
the year (Note 8) (42,915) (223,845) (177,733) (221,254) (25,239) - (690,986)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZZF+Zf=1-A 814,408 2,716,023 2,434,191 3,302,751 233,546 565,439 10,126,358

As at 31 December 2023 RIEZZE+ZR=Z1-H

Cost i 1,234,400 3,686,317 4,064,814 5,213,968 449,219 565,439 15,214,157
Accumulated depreciation,  EiTE  BERHE

depletion and impairment (419,992) (910,294) (1,630,623) (1,911,217) (215,673) - (5,087,799)
Net book value EEFE 814,408 2,776,023 2,434,191 3,302,751 233,546 565,439 10,126,358
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued)

(%)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

U]

Revaluation, depreciation method and useful lives

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly buildings, plant and
machinery, oil and gas properties, pipelines and construction in progress.
Accounting policies for oil and gas properties are set out in Note 15(v).
All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred. Except for oil and gas properties and construction in
progress, depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

12.5 to 40 years or remaining lease period of
the land where applicable

3 to 20 years

20 years

3 to 20 years

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Pipelines
Others

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial position. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “administrative
expenses” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents, buildings under development
for future owner-occupied purpose and pipelines under construction,
which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Costs comprise direct and indirect incremental costs
of acquisition or construction. Completed items are transferred from
construction in progress to proper categories of property, plant and
equipment when they are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion of
infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the drilling of
commercially proven development wells, is capitalised within construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment. When development
is completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil and gas properties
under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation and depletion is
charged during the development phase.

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation assets
and development expenditures associated with the production of proved
reserves.

Oil and gas properties are depreciated and depleted using the unit-of-
production method. Unit-of-production rates are based on total proved
plus probable reserves, which are oil, gas and other mineral reserves
estimated to be recovered using current operating methods and taking
into account estimated future development costs necessary to bring those
reserves into production. Future development costs are estimated taking
into account the level of development required to produce the reserve.

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows.

Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and tool and moulds with net book values amounting to
approximately HK$40,862,000 (2022: HK$36,015,000), HK$40,486,000
(2022: HK$41,473,000) and HK$152,196,000 (2022: HK$100,483,000)
respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting
to HK$2,583,000 (2022 (restated): HK$40,228,000) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings of 5.8% (2022: 6.6%).

B

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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(continued) (#&)

15 Y% - BMEK®KE (&)

(%)

W REITKRTE  EBEER
RELEREEREHFZAITIER
EM%E - BERRBRATZEZTRE -
BEUSTHACKAER - HaER
ENE - BERREATZHREE -
NEEEERBENGRITE RIERE -

HREEAABDRERIBEENR
HRPARETERFMAMERSZ -

HREEREMEEZNEREBRE -
BUAERZRANBERRFESE
BRI BEREAR B LEND AL
A BR U2 A B R A SRUA B E B EE
HEREBLEEZSREMT M
REFAERAE - RRAFREAEERE
FEELMENFMEKFmET -

fiff 3R = ¢ SRAE N & B BN AT BE ROR
WRIEKmEE @ A RAHREEFER
BER - BEBRREEZHREER
HEAJKRESEZ ZRER - 7KE
ERDEENRFEBROEREARE
EREENRSE o RAGHRETS -
AEDZEAENZNREREZ&E
FRINA -

HtEFEHRAE - B BERR
BERITANUNRER  EEFEDH
4] 540,862,000 T (= T = = F:
36,015,000 7C) * 40,486,000/ 7T (=&
— Z % 1 41,473,000 7T.) 152,196,000
BT (ZF = —4 100,483,000 7T) °

FR - EEREAEREEELRLEER
X 282,583,000 T (ZEZZF (K&
7)) : 40,228,000/ 7T) ° & B K AN IR
H-MEENNEFIHH R58% (=
T4 :66%) BAI »



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

The recoverable amount of oil and gas properties is determined at the
value-in-use using a discounted cash flow method and is assessed at the
cash generating units (“CGUs") level within the segment of “exploitation
and production of crude oil and natural gas”.

The Group regularly assesses market commodity prices, costs to carry out
planned drilling programs, drilling results, and reservoir performance to
determine if there are any indicators of impairment of the Group’s assets.

At 31 December 2023, estimates of future commodity prices were
marginally lower than 2022. This decrease was offset by growth in
the reserves and it was determined that there were no indicators of
impairment or impairment recovery during the year. Forward benchmark
prices for crude oil and natural gas liquids at 31 December 2023 were
consistent with prices at 31 December 2022, while natural gas prices
were lower due to current weakness in natural gas commodity markets.
The Group's reserves increased from 2022 to 2023 as total reserve
additions from the drilling program and swap transactions in 2023 were
greater than production. Capital expenditures to carry out the drilling
program in 2023 were moderately higher than forecast in 2022 due to
inflation experienced in 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

16 LEASES 16 HE

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of () MEEHMBRIREIRZSHE
financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the GREMBMRARBRIATEEE
following amounts relating to leases: BB FIA
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CF
t=A=+-H t+t=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights T b fE A 472,710 492,138
Office and other properties I /NEY N B 40,875 54,430
513,585 546,568
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current it & 11,070 10,986
Non-current e B 28,442 40,646
39,512 51,632
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023 financial RZZE_ZWBRFE - EHE
year were HK$23,298,000 (2022: HK$12,766,000). & E N 523,298,000 L (=&

— T4 :12,766,0005 7T) ©

HK$7,460,000 of land use rights were transferred to investment HE-T-_=F+=-A=+—H

properties during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil). IEFE + 7,460,000 T & L #h {F
AREERZREMEEME (ZF
ZZFE) -
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

16 LEASES (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the

16 #HE (&)
(i) RBZXRERZSHE

FeErzHmBaRBRIATERAEE

following amounts relating to leases: BB FIE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E== —ZE-_=
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5 FHET FHT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FHAREEINEER
assets
Land use rights + b A 11,412 11,867
Office and other properties WMAEREAMYZE 12,876 11,327
8 24,288 23,194
Interest expense MEEHA
(included in finance cost) FtAMBER) 9 2,301 5,010
Expenses relating to short term leases (REHHASHHENE R 8 4,704 3,516

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$18,448,000 (2022:
HK$23,317,000).

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group obtains right to control the use of office and other
properties for a period of time through lease arrangements.
Lease arrangements are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain wide range of different terms and conditions including
lease payments and lease terms ranging from 1 to 15 years
(2022: 1 to 10 years).

The Group also obtained the land use rights through lease
contracts with local governments in the PRC with 50 years term.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
depreciation of right-of-use assets has been charged in
“Administrative expenses”. The Group’s lease expenses are
primarily for short-term leases.

BE-_Z-_=#+=-_A=+—H
TFEHHBAERSREA%EY
18,448,0008 7T (Z & = — 4F ¢
23,317,000 7T) -

(i) SEEESEBHRIEFNX

SEFERAHETHIES Y — B
MEsRAEREMMEZRE
MEF -« HEZHIZMEREERE
[ERIAA=E=S R NEINE0R " S/ PNE = Y
BREBENSZKENFI1E2I5F (=
T F 1E10F) AW -

SE I E B E P T AR
HEAWESSH0FN L E
A% -

BE_ T _ZFR_FT=-—
+-A=+—BItFE  FA%E
BEFEA [THAX] K - &
ENHEERTEACHHEE -
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

16 LEASES (Continued) 16 HE (&)
(iv) Asat 31 December 2023, land-use rights of HK$225,644,000 ivv RZE-_=%+-_A=+—8 "
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings. 225,644,000/ 7T K + 1 (F ED K
REREBRITERNERR -

17 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 17 BIERFEHEE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-—
+=HA=+—H +—-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Cost [N

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 107,069 115,027
Currency realignment B AR 2,378 (6,518)
Additions mE 5,744 6,606
Written off (Note 8) e (F5Es) (2,935) (3,665)

Transfer to oil and gas properties under EREYE BB MEE
property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ETHREE (M:E15) (4,772) (4,381)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 107,484 107,069

Exploration and evaluation assets represent the Group’s costs of
acquiring licenses and interests in undeveloped lands in West Central
Alberta, Canada, which are pending the determination of proven
or probable oil and gas reserves. The costs are accumulated in cost
centres by well, field, or exploration area pending determination of
technical feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resource is considered to be determined when proven reserves are
determined to exist. A review of each exploration license or field is
carried out, at least annually, to ascertain whether proven reserves
have been discovered. Accounting policies for exploration and
evaluation assets are set out in Note 17(i).

B R E EREER NS AN B A
BEREIARME LTI & RER
WERE  AGEECHEARTHEHR
HRME - BRAKAEEMIT - mE
FHHERBIRKAAFLRE  FEE
BT RBERATH -

EEEFERARER  HARBESR
RERMEEERANITERRBRSCHE -
ELBFHEHRFTEICIDETR
W BRRACRARARE - BR
RFHEEZ G BREHNRME70) -
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(continued) (#)

17 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 17 BRI LEE (&)
(Continued)
Notes: &

(i) Accounting policies of exploration and evaluation assets (') BVR RS A B 2 B AR
AHRRARMR R ERAZFERK
RGFTEAR - KAKRERRE - i
B I A R A R TR AR AR R
SRR BRFEEFEWEOKE -
EMHEREMEEERBR AR B R R
HAEEENERNLEEH#EETERE
AT o MEEMARENHERE - %
ERABR K -

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are accounted
for using the successful efforts method of accounting. Costs are
accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological, geophysical costs and
pre-licence costs are expensed as incurred. Costs directly associated with
an exploration well, and exploration and property leasehold acquisition
costs, are capitalised within exploration and evaluation assets until the
determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial
discovery has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

—BRAHEFKER  DERRKTI®HE
ESFERENR  XTBEREVX B
BREBTHEZLIR - NEERF
AR BN & RIERE -

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluation assets
are tested for impairment and transferred to construction in progress
under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation and depletion is
charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.

EFOBREERTRER - UEMER
BEFEERBRARTHEE - B8R R
HEELETRENR - REBRZE
REFHEEENREERLDETRE
CHRENSHETARER - JROEHE
RBHRERFHEENRFER G EK
AREFEAEENERSE -

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment when
reclassified to construction in progress, or whenever facts and
circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the exploration and evaluation assets’ carrying
amount exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of
disposal and their value in use.
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(continued) (#&)

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REMEHE
2023
—E-=
HK$’000
FTHET
Cost N
At 1 January m—A—H —
Currency realignment ERHEE (1,196)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and WME - BEREHAR
right-of-use assets FREEEED 136,800
Depreciation e (4,002)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 131,602
Depreciation charges of investment properties of HK$4,002,000 has ®EMEME 27T E B F4,002,0000% 7T
been charged in “Cost of sales”. Bt ATHEKAE] -
Notes: BT -
(i) Measuring investment properties at cost (i) BRAGFEREMEHE
Investment properties, principally office buildings, are held for long term REUEHE (FERNRRETF) IiF
rental yields and are not occupied by the group. They carried at cost less ERPHES W © BYIFMAEERER -
accumulated depreciation. HEAARBEATEIER -
(i) Presenting cash flows (i E2IRERE
The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or constructing investment SEBKREXERRKENEME R
property as investing and rental inflows as operating cash flows. EmEPEARE  BHERADE
ABEERSRE -
@iy As at 31 December 2023, investment properties approximately iy RZTEZ=F+ZA=+—H &E
HK$124,388,000 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank M B it EE 49124,388,000% T B B # 1

borrowing. SEFTEROERD -
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(continued) (#)

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BEEE
Other
Goodwill intangible
(Note (ii)) assets Total
EEAGE D) HBREE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
As at 1 January 2022 R=-Z=-=-%—-F—BH
Cost BN 981,660 92,055 1,073,715
Accumulated amortisation BEHE = (35,046) (35,046)
Net book value BREFE 981,660 57,009 1,038,669
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZT_C
+-A=t+—-HLEFE
At 1 January 2022 NRZE-_—_F—A—H 981,660 57,009 1,038,669
Currency realignment B A (26,954) (3,954) (30,908)
Additions NE — 44,460 44,460
Amortisation for the year (Note 8) FnE i (MEs) — (9,761) (9,761)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-_—F+=-A=+—H 954,706 87,754 1,042,460
As at 31 December 2022 R-B--f+=-A=+-—H
Cost KA 954,706 113,899 1,068,605
Accumulated amortisation BEHEE = (26,145) (26,145)
Net book value RHEFE 954,706 87,754 1,042,460
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-g-=
+-A=+—-HLEFE
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HA—H 954,706 87,754 1,042,460
Currency realignment AR (8,983) (1,804) (10,787)
Additions NE = 12,744 12,744
Disposal & = (17,557) (17,557)
Amortisation for the year (Note 8) F R (HEs) = (8,722) (8,722)
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H 945,723 72,415 1,018,138
As at 31 December 2023 R=-B=-=5+=-A=+-—8
Cost B AR 945,723 106,474 1,052,197
Accumulated amortisation BEHE# — (34,059) (34,059)
Net book value BREFE 945,723 72,415 1,018,138
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

@

Accounting policies of intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of businesses represents the excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly exclusive rights, club membership
and computer operating system.

Exclusive rights are shown at historical cost. Exclusive rights have definite
useful lives and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of exclusive rights over their estimated useful lives ranging from 30
to 48 years for natural gas supply services.

Investment in club membership is shown at historical cost. Investment
in club membership has indefinite useful life and is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
and is not amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost. Computer
operating system has definite useful lives and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of computer operating system over its
estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

19 BEE (&)

GEE
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(continued) (#)

19

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related products business, which
is also an operating segment, representing the lowest level within
the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined from the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the
discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and
direct costs during the year. Management estimates a discount rate of
15.60% (2022: 16.09%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to this
group of CGUs. The growth rate of 2.2% (2022: 2.0%) for the next five
years are based on industry growth forecasts.

The value-in-use calculations is derived from cash flow projections based
on the most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years approved by
management. Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been extrapolated
using growth rates of 2.2% (2022: 2.0%) per annum, which is based on
industry growth forecasts. The Board considered no impairment loss is
necessary as at 31 December 2023.

With all other variables held constant, if the expected selling prices used
in the value-in-use calculation was decreased by 8%, direct costs used
in the value-in-use calculation was increased by 9% or the discount rate
used in the value-in-use calculation had been increased to 157%, then
the management estimates the headroom would drop to zero as at 31
December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)
20 FRAEREARZEE
NIEATERRERBERZEENT

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF=-=
+=A=+-B +=A=+-"
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Associates RN 1,633,245 1,690,305
Joint venture EEDE — 8,255
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—A” 1,633,245 1,698,560
REEERRBRZESEDT -
The amounts recognised in the consolidated profit or loss are as
follows:
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Associates R /N 42,645 59,519
Joint venture e (8,104) 215
For the year ended 31 December BHET-_A=+—HILFE 34,541 59,734
AR N B R
Interests in associates
2023 2022
—EC-C=E B2
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Share of net assets: R EEFE
At 1 January ®W—A—H 1,690,305 1,749,706
Currency realignment BEAE (39,183) (124,770)
Addition (Note (b)) AE (M3 b) 99,000 5,850
Disposal (Note (f)) & (FI3E() (14,581) =
Dividend (Note (c)) & 8 (M 5E(0) (4,291) =
Impairment (Note (a)) H{E (M) (140,650) =
Share of profits of associates, net DR E QAW F R 42,645 59,519
At 31 December R+=-A=+—8H 1,633,245 1,690,305
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 FRAESEARZRE (£8)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued) REENTIRER (&

—=E+ZA=+-A8  RB
N (A%LETARAT) WA IE

Nature of investments in associates, which are unlisted limited liability i
companies, as at 31 December 2023: &

31 December
2023
Percentage of

31 December
2022
Percentage of

Country of interest held interest held
Name Registered capital establishment Principal activities indirectly indirectly
—EC-C=E —E-=
+=A=+-H +ZA=+—H
MEREREE REsAER
&8 TEMEx RIZBR ETEB¥E Bl BAL
EEFHRBERAERAR RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49% 49%
("RIBEER")
EETARBERER AR AE#20,000,000 FHE ARREE 49% 49%
(M2weeRl)
Sino Director Limited (Note (a)) US$10,000 BVI Investment holding 25% 25%
Sino Director Limited (Bﬁ.&( ) 10,000% 1T EBERRES REZR 25% 25%
LEHEE XA RER A (Note (f) RMB80,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas — 20%
IHEAERAREB AT (M) AR #80,000,000 HE AARREE — 20%
(2 YN apii Ebm?ﬁ% RMB80,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49% 49%
BRAR("WBKE®R")
ﬁti(@ﬁ%}ﬂtﬂaﬁi%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁwﬂ A K #80,000,0000 HH ARREE 49% 49%
[EXKER]
BN E AR A Al BMEmT)  RMB30,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49% 49%
AMPRREERA (LEHJIIEPEM AR#30,000,000 FE AARREE 49% 49%
S®ILAHh Mﬂﬁﬂ%*ﬁ [(E/N RMB80,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49% 49%
("BEBLUFEE")
SRILPAMRIALER AR AK#80,000,0000 HEH ARREE 49% 49%
([B&LFEZE])
=PI awﬁ EF it Huﬁ RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49% 49%
BRAAN(=MKER"
EFWﬁEH:/M:sz /FEBE«MJ AE#20,000,000 FHE AARREE 49% 49%
(T=PFalkaeiR])
BEEXARREE (Note (b)) RMB200,000,000 PRC Construction 10% 10%
and operation of
underground natural
gas storage facilities and
trading of natural gas
EFRARHE (MED) AR #200,000,0007 & WTAARHEERER 10% 10%
R BERARREE
Shandong Shengli Co., Ltd. RMB880, 100,000 PRC Investment holding 22.16% 22.16%
(“Shandong Shengli") (Note ()
I 3R B AR 7 AR #880,100,00000 F & REER 22.16% 22.16%
(TREFB&H]) (Mﬁ( )
- fﬁ/ Zﬁﬂ EBRARERAF RMB50,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 10% 10%
(" & Vﬁﬂ (Noted (d))
@éi&ﬁzﬁu BARRARADA AE#50,000,000 HE AARREE 10% 10%

(TaaBEHEM]) (M)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group invested in 25% equity
interests in Sino Director Limited as an associate. The subsidiary of Sino
Director Limited is the beneficial owner of coal mining rights granted by
the local government authority of the PRC. Sino Director Limited and its
subsidiary are collectively regarded as the “Sino Director Group”.

A business valuation was performed for the underlying assets of Sino
Director Limited as the Sino Director Group has incurred loss for the year.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value-in-use.

Management has engaged an independent external valuer to assist in
performing impairment assessments for investment in associate of Sino
Director Group. Based on the impairment assessments performed, as
at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of Sino Director Group
amounting to approximately HK$60,375,000 (2022: HK$539,700,000)
was less than (2022: exceeded) its carrying value amounting to
approximately HK$201,025,000 (2022: HK$221,035,000). Hence, the
Group made impairment provision on the investment in the associate of
Sino Director Group amounting to HK$ 140,650,000 (2022: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use using discounted cash flow method.
The key assumptions are discount rates, forecasted commodity prices
and future production profile. Management estimates a discount rate
of 15.93% (2022: 17.30%) using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value and the specific risks relating to the Sino
Director Group. The most up-to-date after tax commodity price used in
determining the recoverable amount is HK$1,507/ton (2022:HK$ 1,808/
1), and the commodity price growth rate is 2.2% (2022: 2.0%), which
is based on inflation growth forecasts. Besides, the future production
profile is estimated to be 350~450 kiloton/year (2022: 350~1,350
kiloton/year) based on the estimated production capacity.

20 FAESEA

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

ARZBRE (&)

B aE -

(@ RZEZZ=ZFRZZT-_-_F+=A
=+ —H - % H & & 1 Sino Director
Limited (fEB B & QX &)) M25% B8

Smo Director Limited Z Ffi /& & 7] & i &

E b A B AT BPPT P I H E R AR R
#Tﬁé* H @ # B A ° Sino Director
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(continued) (#)

20

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 14 September 2023, the Group further injected RMB90,000,000
(equivalent to HK$99,000,000) into £ & X %X R f# i& . The equity interest
of the Group remains at 10% upon the injection and the Group has
appointed a director in the board of & B X A & TE% i% . Consequently,
the Group has significant influence over & & X % | f# i whereby &
B X A | f# & became an associate of the Group and a transfer to
investments accounted for using the equity method was made from
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income at its
fair value. Pursuant to the investment agreement, the Group is required
to contribute RMB200,000,000 (equivalents to HK$220,000,000) to the
registered capital of & B X #& & f# i . As at 31 December 2023, the
commitment outstanding not provided for is nil (2022: HK$ 99,000,000).

In November 2021, the Group has completed an acquisition of 22.16%
equity interests in Shandong Shengli from various independent
third parties at aggregate cash consideration of approximately
RMB975,631,000 (approximately HK$1,170,757,000) Shandong
Shengli, is listed on the main board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code 407). In November 2023, the Group received cash dividend of
approximately RMB3,901,000 (equivalents to HK$4,291,000) from
Shandong Shengli. On 31 December 2023, the quoted market price of
Shandong Shengli was RMB3.62 (2022: RMB3.85) per share and the fair
value of the investment in Shandong Shengli was RMB705,929,000 (2022:
RMB865,921,000). It is principally engaged in the business promotion
and application of clean energy natural gas. As a consequent of the
acquisition, the Group gained significant influence over this investment
and the investment was classified as an associate of the Group.

A business valuation was performed for the underlying assets of
Shandong Shengli, as the Share price of Shandong Shengli fall below
the purchase price during the year. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use calculation
using discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions are discount
rates, forecasted growth in sales volume and forecasted commodity
prices. Management estimates a discount rate of 15.04% using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value and the specific
risks relating to the Shandong Shengli. Forecasted growth in sales volume
of 5.0% and forecasted commodity prices growth of 2.2% were used.

The commodity price growth rate of 2.2% used in the calculations is
based on inflation growth forecasts. Based on the business valuation,
management considered no impairment loss on the Group’s total
investment in associate is necessary as at 31 December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

20 EREREARZIRE (B)

Interests in associates (Continued) REBERATER (&)
Notes: (Continued) et (48)

(d)

(e)

In July 2022, the Group entered into an agreement with certain
independent third parties in relation to the establishment and
management of & & B Z= 1. & & % F is principally engaged in the
trading of natural gas in the PRC. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
the initial total capital contribution is RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$58,500,000), out of which RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,850,000) was contributed by the Group and
accounted for 10% of equity interests in 2 & )& 2= . Considered the
fact that the Group has the ability to appoint one director to the Board
of directors of £ & B Z= A1, the Group considered to have significant
influence over this investment and the investment was classified as an
associate of the Group.

Apart from Shandong Shengli, which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, all the associates are unlisted limited liability companies.

In August 2023, the Group disposed of ST &% LB X R R B R A 7
at the consideration of RMB12,400,000, equivalent to HK$13,764,000
and recognised the disposal gains included in Other losses, net of
HK$558,000.

() RZTEZ=ZF+tAH SEEEZETHBI
FE=FREINWE REBBRILIRE
BXrEZRPERLERATEENAAR
HREM - BREZBEOKER - VA
& 8B A A R 50,000,000 (1%
7 #58,500,000%8 L) + HAF ARK
5,000,0007T (48 & 7 #95,850,0007% JT)
HEBHE  HREHERMONI0%K
o ERINEEEMNETT —RLESN
ANMAREBRINESE - £ER
AUZRBREEERTE  ZREES
HAKEMBE AR -

(& BRRIIFEFRZ S LT HEFRH
S FEBERBRHBRIFLTAERA
G

) RZZEZ=FNA SELEIH
UEXARERLAA RBARE
12,400,0007T (8% #213,764,0007 7C) -
WHERFAHEMEBEN DS KRS FE
558,0007& 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 EARTZEARZRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued) REENRIER (A
(i) Sino Director Limited, & & X %A & f# & and Shandong Shengli are (i) Sino Director Limited * EE X AR R
considered individually material to the Group. The aggregated financial EERBARASREE SHE
performance for associates which accounted for using the equity method -
e BAEEAEE - £AEREA

R ENBIEAMBEENT ¢

Sino Director Limited ERXARRE Shandong Shengli
Sino Director Limited ERXARRE B R 5
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-ZE “E-C —ECZZE —EoCF —EC-=E “E-C
+=F +-8 ay: +-A ! T=R
ET= =t+-A =t-H =t+-H ET=d =1+-A
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ThAL ThEL FET TEL T#ER TAL
Current assets THEE 186,432 162,590 633,676 227,498 2,055,287 2,450,376
Non-current assets ENDEE 1,151,074 1,232,553 3,475,989 2,395,296 5,596,402 5,638,149
Current liabilities RHRE (156,925) (152,598) (1,047,061) (530,608) (3,309,446) (3,874,453)
Non-current liabilities ENHEE (1,255,373) (1,202,997) (864,833) (849,069) (764,066) (716,137)
Non-controlling interests FERES 22,438 (11,864) - = (405,833) (415,976)
Net assets EEFE (52,354) 27,684 2,197,771 1,243,117 3,172,304 3,081,959
Group's share of net assets ERAHEERE (13,089) 6,921 219,777 124312 702,991 682,962
Goodwill EBE 73,464 214,114 — = 466,807 469,651
Carrying amount FEE 60,375 221,035 219,777 124312 1,169,798 1,152,613
Revenue BEB 223,937 278,483 = 7,934 5,191,658 5,434,939
(Loss)/profits for the year ER(5E) /EH (114,299) (64,102) (1,298) 62 237,138 213,080
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £t 2 AN/ (F1) @3) 19,30 (34,051) = (140,231) (4,791)
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome 27 (1) / HE£E (114,342) (44,872) (35,349) 62 96,907 208,289
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 FRAEREARZRE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued) REEARER (#)

(i) In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the (i) BREABEEOBE DA ERIN
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial SETTESE TEMEE RS
associates that are accounted for using the equity method. NAM R - EEEBEQRRA

BaEANR ©
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Aggregate carrying amount of individually &R IEE KEEE A B ERE

immaterial associates BEA
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: &£ BN EA 183,295 192,345
Profits for the year F R 10,235 15,787
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w (19,285) (14,203)
Total comprehensive income 2HE KRR (9,050) 1,584
Save as disclosed above, there are other no material BREXHHEBREN  TEHEHE
commitments or contingent liabilities relating to the Group's REERNAIRRBER2IEMEAM
interests in associates. ERAEXIABE
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RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Interest in a joint venture

Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is an unlisted limited

liability company, as at 31 December 2023:

EEETEPER

20 EREREARZKRE (&)

RZZBEZ=F+-A=+—H - H3¥*

LHEREERARGELENRENE

Percentage of

Registered Country of interest held
Name capital establishment Principal Activities indirectly
BEEEER
=E FEMER R ZBER FTEEE Bl
INFEE SR [ R AL BR AT RMB PRC Trading of coalbed methane 35%
IWFEREEERBEERAT AR A E HERER 35%
The joint venture is currently considered not material to the Group and ZEECEBANHAEAYERMmM LT
is accounted for using the equity method: BER - At ERAEREAR:
2023 2022
—EZ=F —EF-_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Carrying amount of the joint venture SETCEREER — 8,255
The Group's share of: SEMHE
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF, (EBE) (8,104) 215
Other comprehensive income H 2 E W (151) (672)
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit 2M (BE8) wHlesE (8,255) (457)
On the 31 December 2023, the cumulatively unrecognized share of \ZTZ=F+-_A=+—80 " &3
RO E %

losses of joint venture is HK$7,203,000.

There are no material commitments or contingent liabilities relating to

the Group's interest in the joint venture.

RAEZHHAEE -
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21

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0]

(i)

Classification of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise:

o Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which
the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise in this category. These are strategic investments
and the Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.

o Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely
principal and interest and the objective of the Group’s
business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise the following investments:

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

21 BAVEFAHMEEREZ

TRMEE

() ELAFEFARMEZANZZERH
BEZDE

BAVFEFAEMZAREZE
BEESR

s UWFRIFEBEMNRANEZS
REB SRV T ERE DA
B & EASE R E R A
BRORAES - ZFEF
REEKE  BEERRBU
DEREEMREINL -

e AHNRERELABER/IMNA
ERFEMEHKES  BE
BEBEANEFTAKERE
HRERENHETREE
MATAER -

(i) BEAFPEFARMEARZZBRAE
RE

BAFEFAEMEZEKRS ZK
REEBEUTRE :

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—E-=fF —E-—
+=ZHA=+-—8H +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET

Equity securities: N

— listed in Hong Kong — EBEA LM 61,505 82,359
— listed outside Hong Kong — EFBAN LT 111,508 110,441
173,013 192,800

On disposal of these equity securities, any related balance within
other reserves is reclassified to retained earnings.

REERERABEE - Hioh
BT AIEEREEEN DS
BRI -
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#&)

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(iii)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise the following investments in listed and unlisted
bonds:

21 BAVESFAHMERRZEZ

ETRHEE (&)

(i) BRAFEFAHMEEKREZER
RE

BAFEFAHEMCEZE RS 2E
BREBENATRETRARLD
BHFZERE:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—EB-=F —E-—
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Debt securities: BEBFES

— listed in Hong Kong — EBEA L™ 5,034 23,248
— listed outside Hong Kong — EBEABAINET 7,510 15,790
— unlisted — KEmW 450 450
12,994 39,488

On disposal of these debt investments, any related balance
within the fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

(iv)

During the year, the following (losses)/gains were recognised in

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

BAFEFAEMEEERZE 2
TRMEE (&)

RESRHMEZEWETERRDZE
]

FR - TH (BB e
&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ”yﬂnq]ﬁﬁwu °

2023 2022
—E-=fF —E_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Losses recognised in other comprehensive £ H fth 2 E Y 25 P E R
income 18 (34,003) (24,172)
Gains reclassified from other comprehensive & LA A FEF A E A
income to profit or loss on the sale of 2HBEHEBRER
debt investments at fair value through HHEMEEKZEER S
other comprehensive income HEEamlsE 1,527 5,704
Dividends from equity investments held at RE MU = R B R R
fair value through other comprehensive RATFEFAEMEER
income recognised in profit or loss in e 7 IR A B R IR 2
other income (Note 6) (Kfsx6) 2,172 1,916
Financial assets pledged as security (v) 1ERERNEREE
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, no financial assets at FVOCI is R-E =R T -__F+=
pledged for any banking facilities. A=+—8  ##ER2TFEFA
HthrmlkazemEEERA
PEMRITHRE -
Fair value, impairment and risk exposure (i) AFE - HERERR

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 3.4().

Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment
provision is determined as 12 months expected credit losses.
The Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for these
financial assets are not material under the 12 months expected
credit loss method. Thus no loss allowance provision was
recognised as at the balance sheet date. For details of the credit
risk management, please refer to Note 3.2(b)(v).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21 BAFEFTAEMEZEKEZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) THREE ()
(vi)  Fair value, impairment and risk exposure (Continued) (i) 2A¥E - BERRR (&
The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through BEATEFAHMZARZZ €
other comprehensive income are denominated in the following MEEREDERKRUATERE -
currencies:
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-F
+=—BA=+—H +=-BA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
uss ET 121,916 145,563
HK$ BT 48,919 69,825
CAD mic 15,172 16,900
186,007 232,288
22 INVENTORIES 22 8
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E-=F —EZC-F
+=A +=A e S
== =t+-A —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE%) (&E7)
Raw materials JR A8 165,820 141,190 83,576
Work-in-progress R 253,426 356,592 316,132
Finished goods and natural gas HRmERAR 175,585 84,778 77,081
594,831 582,560 476,789
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS, DEPOSITS, TRADE AND 23 EHEE - e - EZRH
OTHER RECEIVABLES fth FE U 7R 18
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E=HF —E-—
+=A +=A —Z-z
Er=F =+—H —A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(g=5) (&)
Trade receivables (Notes (b) and (c)) B S RWFIE
(B &E(0) R (c)) 656,996 457,056 584,978
Less: Loss allowance o EERE (17,981) = =
Trade receivables, net B oHEWFIEER 639,015 457,056 584,978
Contract assets (Notes (b) and (e)) BHEE (HEDb) KeE) 338,298 295,855 207,023
Less: Loss allowance W EBIEERE (4,223) = —
Contract assets, net BHEEFE 334,075 295,855 207,023
Loan to an associate (Note (d)) ERTHERQT
(B #E(d)) 1,077,803 1,075,204 1,065,121
Interest receivables from an associate etk — R AR A8 (B
(Note (d)) 55(d)) 208,219 127,436 135,815
Less: Loss allowance W BEEE (125,271) (19,440) (8,779)
1,160,751 1,183,200 1,192,157
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS, DEPOSITS, TRADE AND BHEE - &E F BEZRH
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) {MEH& RIE (&)
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E=-= T
+=A +=A —F-C
ETr=[E =+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (®5)
Amounts due from associates (Note (g)) JE U B & A R RUIR
(Bt 5¥H(g)) 4,918 5,686 =
Receivables under finance leases MEMEE T EER 109,256 107,022 —
Consideration receivables R E — - 15,600
Other interest receivables H A FE WOF B 4,143 6,673 7,204
Note receivables U Z % 95,196 55,699 101,364
Other tax receivables Hofth AT W 81 5418 61,237 38,079 83,000
Other receivables H i i 5k IE 32,385 318,132 191,335
Less: Loss allowance o EBERE (70,144) - =
Deposits and other receivables, net B I H fth BGRB8 236,991 531,291 398,503
Prepaid construction costs TR A A 56,683 52,690 162,149
Prepayment for acquisition of U B £ {50 PR R TR 5 IR
land use rights 33,357 38,404 40,785
Prepaid natural gas costs B RARKA 621,834 590,720 665,382
Prepaid material and equipment costs TEAI R B B K AR 71,881 77,993 211,604
Other prepayments H i T8 FE 78,046 72,735 56,087
861,801 832,542 1,136,007
Less: Non-current portion RS D (1,243,673) (1,456,592) (1,183,053)
Current portion REBBH 1,988,960 1,843,352 2,335,615
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 CONTRACT ASSETS, DEPOSITS, TRADE AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The carrying amounts of deposits, trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Accounting policies of trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are generally
due for settlement within 30 days and therefore all classified as current.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets. Information about the
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets, and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and risk management can be found in Note 3.2(b)

(iv).

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90
days to its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding
trade receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management of the Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

23

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

BREE - € - EF5KRH

fth EULFRIE (4&

B

(a)

(b)

()

HRITEZELTEKR - B2 BF
REMERFEZ FAEREELRTE
HE -

B 5 REMERKEALZ G HER

BESREABERNREFERBREFD
EHERIRARBERETS 2HE -
ZERB-RNOENIHAEE - F
HE2HMIBARE - BHEKKIEAED
THEEGRHRESEHER H  BEE2ESR
FEARMEXRSE - RO FEETHE
R REBEEZIRERENENZ
KBmaHBReReE  AEREEAE
BR A ORI R AT B R AR -

SERBEEVBERE LN FEINEG
LR EFEBRHNEEER  RAER
SR FERENEEER 2 HEY
EEREE  FHESIRKFREBEMED
BEMNREEHN  UREEHEERNE
RREBRMEARERES @ F28HE
3.2(b)(iv) °

SBEAETHESREFZFHEESN
T60E90H 2 + I B TNHETES I H &
KEBECZESRENBFE SERRE
EETHEMABREZLEL -

RERZBHNE SHEKREZER
DT -

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—Bo=F —E_— T

+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)

(re&51) (r8&51)
Up to 3 months =EALA 373,604 366,585 365,113
3 to 6 months =REA=ENREA 55,774 35,195 41,710
Over 6 months NEAU E 227,618 55,276 178,155
Total #ast 656,996 457,056 584,978
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(continued) (#)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS, DEPOSITS, TRADE AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Loan and interest receivables from an associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s loan to Sino Director
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,077,803,000 (2022:
HK$1,075,204,000). The outstanding interest amounted to approximately
HK$208,219,000 (2022: HK$127,436,000). The loan receivables of
approximately HK$88,763,000 (2022: HK$54,839,000) are repayable
within 12 months and the remaining balances of approximately
HK$1,197,259,000 (2022: HK$924,246,000) are not repayable within
next 12 months. The interest receivables are repayable on demand.

Managements apply the discounted cash flow model resulted in
the recognition of a loss allowance of HK$125,271,000 (2022:
HK$19,440,000) as at 31 December 2023.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's rights to consideration
for gas pipeline construction and connection services completed but
not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional.
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L) o REFMED 7,%208,219,0005% 7T
(== = — 4 : 127,436,000/ 7t) ° F&

U & 3% 4988,763,000 7T (T = — 4 :
54,839,0007 7T) AR 1218 A W (& & -
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REARERE - EWFSEREXRE
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(continued) (#&)

23 CONTRACT ASSETS, DEPOSITS, TRADE AND 23 EHEE - &E - EFKH

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) fhEEW T8 (&

Notes: (Continued) et (48)

) The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables ) e  BSREMERFE (T82H
(excluding prepayments and other tax recoverable) are denominated in TE A AR IE R E At AT U B B RR) B9 BRE
the following currencies: BT EEHNE -

31 December 31 December 1 January

2023 2022 2022

—EC-=F T T

+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H —A—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT FAT

(Restated) (Restated)

(gEE5) (Fg=51)

RMB AR 1,876,054 2,023,040 1,987,479
CAD st 43,995 60,252 54,020
Others EAh 55,471 50,176 51,139
Total #aEt 1,975,520 2,133,468 2,092,638

(g9  The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and (90 ERBMERAFREAEER 28Kk
repayable on demand. BIREKEE -

24 TIME DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24 EHAER - RITEBRRIRE
31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—EB-=F —E-F

+=—BA=+—H +=A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Time deposits with maturity over three months HEHAA=EANLERD

EHFR 1,150,475 621,500
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEIEER
— Cash at banks and on hand — RITBERFEES 2,095,411 3,329,715
The interest rates for short-term bank deposits ranged from 3.0% to BHRITFERNF M ER3.0%E3.6%
3.6% (2022: 3.7% to 4.1%) per annum. The deposits have an original (ZEBEZZF 37%241%) > FRH
maturity of ranging from 1 to 5 years (2022: 90 to 183 days). The REHRBIZSF (ZTZ_F : 90&
Group is able to and intends to redeem the deposits from the bank on 183K) - SEEENALRN —FANIKE
demand for business operation in one year. SRICIRITELOFR - AETEBRKE -
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(continued) (#)

24 TIME DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Continued)

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of
approximately HK$3,008,250,000 or RMB2,734,773,000 (2022:
HK$3,090,546,000 or RMB2,734,996,000) denominated in RMB which
are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government.

The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash are
denominated in the following currencies:

24 FEHER « SRTEBRES

(&

BITER - ROTEHBEBASBEFTHRR
FEALIRITHAARBTENSELD
3,008,250,000/% 7T 2k A R #52,734,773,000
7T (ZZF = — £ : 3,090,546,0007% jT 8k A
R 2,734,996,0007T) ° #% F A R ¥ &t
BHEBLBEKINERYEFBRAMEDRE
S EEBTHIRBNRGHINEEERE

HE o

EHAER  ROTESKLRRESZERE

T EEEE :

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-=F B F

+t=A=+-" T-A=+-H

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAT

RMB AR 3,123,743 3,458,642
us$ e 93,909 384,030
HK$ BT 25,499 23,532
CAD T 2,735 85,006
Pound sterling o — 5
3,245,886 3,951,215
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(continued) (#&)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 BESREMEMARIE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—BZ=HF -
+=A +—H —ECoCF
ET= =+—H —RA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FExT FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE51) ('E51)
Trade payables (Note (c)) B 5 PR IE (M 3E(0) 750,385 729,490 696,723
Construction cost payables BT R B AR 684,451 693,354 625,333
Interest payable e A8 521 35,110 46,353
Salaries payables L ANE A 60,605 60,156 61,723
Other tax payables Hth eI HiIR 57,911 72,957 37,526
Note payables L ADESS 55,000 173,734 ==
Other payables and accruals ﬁfﬁﬁﬁgﬁlﬁ)})@'\ﬁg)ﬂ 230,724 2,535 2,697
Amount due to associates (Note (b)) FE{TBE & R B 5R0E
(Fff (b)) 30,974 — 6,215
1,870,571 1,767,336 1,476,570
(@)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate @ EBSHhHMEMNKIEZRHEEHR
their fair values. HAYERSE -
(b)  Amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free and (b) WH GKERNRIREAEERR - &
repayable on demand. /J;z 2 ZJ: fa & e
() The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as © BEEZHHNESENRIEZ
follows: BRI T :
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E2== —E-—F T
+T=ZA=+-—8H +=ZAR=+—8H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(gE51) (gE75)
Up to 3 months =EA AR 677,495 558,829 545,256
3 to 6 months “EAERNEA 36,012 38,157 61,620
Over 6 months NMER A £ 36,878 132,504 89,847
Total #Et 750,385 729,490 696,723
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(continued) (#)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25 BERHEMENRE (&
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (excluding other B 5 R EMERKRIE (T8 1E H i fE T
tax payables and salaries payables) are denominated in the following BMAaLEMTS) NEEEEN T EE
currencies: FHE -
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—EC-=HE —E-CF
+=A +=-A —E=-=
=t+—A8 =+—~8 —HA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FHEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
RMB AR 1,570,327 1,465,585 1,245,510
HKS BT 31,914 15,932 64,648
CAD o 149,814 152,706 67,163
1,752,055 1,634,223 1,377,321
26 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26 EHNEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—E-=F —E-—
+=A +=A —E-=
Er=E =+—H —H—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(R&E5) (fe&7))

Receipt in advance for sales of natural gas and ~ $5%& KA R K& H 0 AARE

other related products 7= o 2 FUGRIR 2,297,435 2,209,534 2,452,845
Receipt in advance for construction and MABERERERRSE 2
connection services of gas pipelines T84 IE 392,116 614,582 702,570
Receipt in advance for sales of coal derived clean $HEREEFZREMIEEE
and other related products in 2 TR WRIR 209,647 126,794 652
2,899,198 2,950,910 3,156,067
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(continued) (#&)

26 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) BHNEE (&)

(@) The contract liabilities primarily relate to the payments received (a) EHNEEFEHRFHERBERARR
in advance for sales and distribution of natural gas and other Em*ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁfﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁz
related products and construction and connection services of gas MREBRERERRE 2EWTEK
pipelines not yet delivered to customers. ?Kléiﬁféa g

(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (b)y HEEHNEEBEEENSERNE
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRINTARAREE B4 E /El\ O]
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEE E’J ERRl= &

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(r8&51)
Revenue recognised that was included EEIA S KB EEEH
in the contract liability balance at the BRI A
beginning of the year
Sales and distribution of natural gas and ~ $4& R E®EKXAR N
other related products H A E @ 2,129,903 1,566,968
Gas pipeline construction and connection X’*’*ﬁré.: BREEREBRS
services 170,699 305,089
Production and sales of coal derived clean 4 &E K5 EEE T RER K
energy and other related products HtHEE 120,738 652
There is no revenue recognised during the current year related to AREEHEEBATFEDEEN
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior year. BHOBEEEHANE®ARKE -
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eI RE

(continued) (#)

26 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

BREE (&)

()  Unsatisfied contracts with customers (0 KREEREFFPEHN
The Group has applied the practical expedient of HKFRS 15 to SEEREEEERNREE RE
its fixed-price construction and connection contracts, as well HEHAURHEHERBERARK
as sales and distribution of natural gas and other products HUWEREGENERSENBSRE
contracts, such that the information about revenue that the ZREISRE 2 ERAIITER 2
Group will be entitled to when it satisfied the remaining wmEEEERTZSRBHH
performance obligations under those contracts that had an RME—FHEEMNEHNET ZH
original expected duration of one year or less is not disclosed. BRENEESHREBEEAB LS
ZER -
27 BORROWINGS 27 &R
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=HF T —F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Bank borrowings, secured WITHER - BEM 2,825,470 =
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITHER - MIER 1,446,861 4,057,713
Other borrowings, unsecured HiER - J|ER 440,000 678,000
4,712,331 4,735,713
Less: amounts due within one year classified B DERREEE
under current liabilities R—FERF 82 5RIEB (3,664,790) (3,859,986)
Non-current portion FEMENEB S 1,047,541 875,727
Notes: M5

(i) As at 31 December 2023, the Bridge Loan Facilities of HK$2,283,720,000
were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, certain investment properties (Note 18), land-
use rights (recognised in right-of-use assets) (Note 16) and investment in
an associate (Note 20) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank
borrowing of HK$541,750,000.
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27 BORROWINGS (Continued)

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

27 & (&

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies and carried at the following interest rates:

ERNEmENTIEEE - XN
TR &5 B

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—EBo=F —E-_F
t=A=+—H +t=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
RMB ARE 2,255,218 2,361,157
CAD i 134,643 149,040
usb =S 2,322,470 2,225,516
4,712,331 4,735,713
At fixed rates RE B 1,695,569 1,093,840
At floating rates b QN 3,016,762 3,641,873
4,712,331 4,735,713

Weighted average effective interest rates MEFHERFE(FF)

(per annum):

— Bank borrowings — IRITER 5.7% 4.2%
— Other borrowings — HMER 3.0% 3.8%
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(continued) (#)

28 SENIOR NOTES 28 BEREE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-=F T —F

+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

US$ denominated senior notes NETHENELZR 2,999,366 3,665,479

Less: amounts due within one year classified W BEAREBARE

under current liabilities R—FREIH 2 5IE — (669,728)

2,999,366 2,995,751
On 11 April 2017, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate RZETE—tFMA+—H  AaH
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,712,500,000) 17 #8 ™ B A&350,000,000% st (1 & R
at par value (the “Senior Notes A"), which bear interest at 4.625% 2,712,500,000/8 70) MELXZE ([EX
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The ZREAl) BB F4625%T B AR B
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to B¥EFIN - MBREEBRTEAKZ
approximately US$346,556,000 (equivalent to HK$2,685,809,000). FfT 15 3% T8 % 58 A #9346,556,0003 Jt (18
The Senior Note A will mature on 20 April 2022 and are listed on the % 72,685,809,000/ L) ° B EIEA
Singapore Stock Exchange. BRZFEZZFEAZ+THIBERH

MFEEHEZS LT o
On 25 July 2019, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate RZE—NFLtAZ+EHERB  AA#H#
nominal value of US$320,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,712,500,000) 17 #8 ™ {B /A&320,000,000% 7t (1 & R
at par value (the “Senior Notes B"), which bear interest at 5.5% 2,712,500,0007% 70) WIEB G E ([E L
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The ZEB]) - HEFSS%ETEARE
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to FFEIZMN - IBEEZTEBREBZAM
approximately US$315,932,000 (equivalent to HK$2,685,809,000). 15 FIB F %8 B #9315,932,000% 7T (H 5
The Senior Note B will mature on 25 January 2023 and are listed on 72,685,809,000/ 7T) © B EEBIHR
the Singapore Stock Exchange. ZEZ=F—AZ+HHEIH ¥HE
MImMEBFHEZZHET -

On 4 November 2019, the Company issued senior notes, with RZFE—-—NAF+—HAWEAB - AFIEA
an aggregate nominal value of US$30,000,000 (equivalent to {E % 17 B8R M 42 {8 /&30,000,000% 7T (48
HK$236,453,000) at par value, which bear interest at 5.5% per annum £ 1236,453,0008 L) WEBEZERE & 1%
and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears and consolidated BESS%FT BEREBYFEIN - A

with the Senior Note B to form a single class. BEEBBEHEKE R -
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28 SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

On 23 June 2021, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$400,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,100,000,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes C"), which bear interest at 4.7%
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$398,782,000 (equivalent to HK$3,090,561,000).
The Senior Note C will mature on 30 June 2026 and are listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange.

On 2 August 2021, the Company redeemed in full the outstanding
aggregated principal amount of US$354,046,000 of Senior Notes A
before their maturity at a total redemption price of US$358,632,458
(equivalent to HK$2,779,401,000), representing 101.156% of the
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, by using part of the
net proceeds from the offering of Senior Notes C.

On 5 April 2022, the Company redeemed in partial the outstanding
aggregated principal amount of US$250,000,000 of Senior Notes A
before their maturity at a total redemption price of US$259,549,000
(equivalent to HK$2,011,503,000), representing 103.82% of the
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

On 5 December 2022 and 23 December 2022, the Company
repurchased in partial the outstanding aggregated principal amount
of US$13,214,000 and US$529,000 respectively of Senior Notes A
before their maturity at a total repurchase price of US$13,174,000
and US$527,000 respectively (equivalent to HK$102,100,000 and
HK$4,086,000 respectively), representing 99.7% of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the senior notes amounted
to approximately HK$2,626,372,000 (2022: HK$3,177,266,000). The
effective interest is 4.85% (2022: 4.85%). The fair value of the senior
notes traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the date of the statement of financial position. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The senior notes are
within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

28

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#)

BERE (&

RZEBE-_—FXA-+=8 - 27
1T # T & £400,000,000% & (H & »
3,100,000,000,%5 Jo) MEBLEER ([1E
ERC]) BEF4T%H B AEFEE
EELN o ?ufé%ﬁhz%é BRA%ZA
18 318 R 56 A #9398,782,0003% T (B %
EA3090561OOO§|17E) BEAEECK
R-IEZARNFANA=Z1THIEHERIFM
Bzm}% S FT LT o

%:%:-iﬂﬂ:ﬁv NI S et
BRERSAIDEEBEZRCHE
HEFERUELELEZBAKREE
7R 4 48 %A354,046,000% 7T 448 B B

358,632,458% JT (18 5 7°2,779,401,000

BIT) 0 BARESEM101.156% M &
KEFE o
RZE-__FWARAB » AaRA3H
BRIEBSABOBEBLEZRCAHE
/TAIE/?EE*B\EEE{E?E %FA?H;@
7K 4 4% %8250,000,0003€ JT © 440 [ (B

259,549,000% 7T (18 & )3/;\2,01 1,503,000
BIL) © BAEFE103.82% N E R &
REAFE o

R—ZFE-_—_F+= HﬁE&fg::

F+=ZA=-+=8 - R EHH Al
BREBAID %é"%ﬁﬁ TFCPH%?K
FHEBOBLELEE %J““Aﬂﬂa%azl&@

48 %8 5 Bl /513,214,000 7T % 529,000%
JC v 2 RE S 5 A13,174,000% T &
527,000% 7t (% Bl 48 & 7102,100,000
7 JT 54,086,000 L) + AR EN
99.7% MNFEET R AR FIE o

RZEZ=F+=ZHA=+—H &%
=g 7 RNFEH A2,626,372,0008 7T (=
T~ — 4 1 3,177,266,0008 7T) °© B R
M=K B48E% (Z T = —4F : 485%) °
RRFERMBEECEBEREZA
@ﬁﬁfﬂhﬂﬁﬂiazmiﬂ&f‘;##
RFERTIH T a8 Sy & F AR
ST - KR BREA - TEER
aﬁ&f;“fﬁﬁkiiﬁﬁéé%w WwEz2ME
ﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁﬁ‘;m&%« ETZ2EERATEM
ROHZEMERE - ZFEEER
%MIJZ%/AFHE%—K o

THRREEAERAT 2023FFH% | 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 RIEFTBH
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences BIEFTSR BB A EEFERMBARR
under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively XAHMEREMAELE LEBHAOT R
enacted by the statement of financial position date. TREZR2EE o
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a ERETENRITENAIEENHEEE
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current HEMANBEAERE  WMETMRER
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same BB EKER - R SIELRT
fiscal authority. SREEHAEHRHE -
31 December 31 December
2023 2022 1 January 2022
—E:-=5F —E-F T —F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(ED) (seE5)
Deferred tax assets REHIBEE (45,176) (12,534) (14,698)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEEE 427,319 402,531 315,331
382,143 389,997 300,633
The net movements in the deferred income tax account are as follows: BLEMSMEF 2EFHEOT ¢
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(re&5)
Balance at 1 January, as previously reported R—A—BM&&  STAiHS 401,884 310,510
Prior year adjustments (Note 2.4) BAEFEAE(KE2.4) (11,887) (9,877)
Balance at 1 January, as restated R—A—B®&EH  KE5| 389,997 300,633
Currency realignment B 4,093 (22,632)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated profit ek (GTA) A 1B
and loss (Note 12) (FFzE12) (11,947) 111,996
Balance at 31 December Rt-_A=+—HBHN&H% 382,143 389,997
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 EIEFREH (&
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRELEMENREERBE (HFA -
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the BRLEER 2 AR 2#HIT

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE
Net
impairment
losses on
Asset financial
Lease retirement and contract Interest
liabilities obligation Tax losses assets capitalisation Total
eRRENE
ENRESE
HEEE BERERE REFE RE FIREXL ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT FAET FET TEL TET
Balance at 1 January 2022, MZTZZ%—f
as previously reported —RMES %
HEES (18,170) (45,533) (112,190) - = (175,893)
Prior year adjustments BAFEER
(Note 2.4) (BizE2.4) - - - - (9,877) (9,877)
Balance at 1 January 2022, MZTZ=%—f
as restated —BREH 8
E5 (18,170) (45,533) (112,190 — (9,877) (185,770)
Currency alignment LR 1,178 2,156 4,810 = = 8,144
Charged/(credited) to ne/ GrA)&é
consolidated profitorloss & 4,367 10,776 41,701 — (2,010) 54,834

Balance at 31 December ~ WZZE-—&Ff-
2022, as restated A=t—-Hm&
% mE5 (12,625) (32,601) (65,679) — (11,887) (122,792)

Balance at 1 January 2023, RZZE-=%—7

as previously reported —BMER %
HIEES (12,625) (32,601) (65,679) - - (110,905)
Prior year adjustments BEFERE
(Note 2.4) (Mk2.4) - - - - (11,887) (11,887)
Balance at 1 January 2023, W-ZE==%—7
as restated —BNEH 8
]| (12,625) (32,601) (65,679) — (11,887) (122,792)
Currency alignment Ll 311 (757) (1,218) 304 - (1,360)
Charged/(credited) to ne/ GtA) &4
consolidated profit or loss ~ #% 2,578 (1,340) (7,644) (32,808) (149) (39,363)

Balance at 31 December ~ WZZF-=F+=
2023, as restated A=+-R&E
R (9,736) (34,698) (74,541) (32,504) (12,036) (163,515)
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RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

29 RIEFTSTE (48)
ELEBRIBE S

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
Right-of-use and
assets depletion Others Total
EBE
EREEE HEREHE Hity @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FExT
Balance at 1 January 2022 i ——
—A—Br&ER 15,933 367,074 103,396 486,403
Currency alignment BRREE (1,114) (22,564) (7,098) (30,776)
Charged/(credited) to me/ GrA) Ea 8
consolidated profit or loss @ (1,432) 32,962 25,632 57,162
Balance at 31 December 2022 WM-ZT-—F+_-A4
=+ —HEER 13,387 377,472 121,930 512,789
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZTZ=F
—RA—H8&ER 13,387 377,472 121,930 512,789
Currency alignment BRRE (382) 8,761 (2,926) 5,453
Charged/(credited) to me/ Gt Ea 8
consolidated profit or loss = 2,959 19,453 5,004 27,416
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%+—A
=T —HEER 15,964 405,686 124,008 545,658
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

During 2023, deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of
approximately HK$217,644,000 (2022: HK$210,406,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the
PRC because the Board considers that the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Unremitted earnings totalled approximately HK$5,466,240,000 (2022:
HK$5,063,090,000) as at 31 December 2023 and HK$43,307,000
(2022: HK$33,459,000) has been recognised as deferred tax liability
for the withholding tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had unrecognised deferred tax assets for its tax losses of approximately
HK$49,767,000 (2022: HK$45,014,000) to carry forward against
future taxable income. All the tax losses will be expired within the next
5 years.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

29 RIS

i ﬁﬁﬁ *REE //E

35534

ZEZ=F - TERENRREAm
BIE (o] AR AT 3 LA B ey B

BRAIZAEBLEF) RBRELEHMESH
ﬁ%'i@%%ﬂ%MmMﬁﬂf"
~ T4 : 210,406,000 L) © JYHARE
ERRAEBLOEREZBEMBEEIZEH
B EREBEIREBSTISERN]REAR
Bl R—E-_=ZF+-_A=+—H
K FE 1 & F) 42 2 58 49 55,466,240,000
oo (= & = = 4 : 5,063,090,0008
JT) 43,307,000 ;T (=& = =
33,459,000 L) ERTEMBER BB
ERIEEE o

BEEMSHREENHBNBEANZE B
ARARERBRBFNERABLER - A
REEBEBEEMER - K= ?*fi
+ZAZ+—8B " £EZABERE
I8 & & 2 T 1E B 18 £949,767, oooﬁé 7T
(ZZ — — 4 : 45,014,000 7T) ° Fi A
RSB BBRARSFAREIE -
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eI RE

(continued) (#)

30 ASSETS RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

30 EERERIE

The movements in assets retirement obligation are as below: BEREBEAEZZHOT
2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 141,737 197,974
Currency realignment B 3,293 (11,464)
Accretion (Note 9) A0 (I 5E9) 4,698 3,440
Site restoration expenditure TR H (6,426) (4,355)
Change in estimates and discount rate et RITER K& g 1,549 (51,494)
Provision for the year FREE 6,003 7,636
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 150,854 141,737
Less: Current portion (Note 25) B OmENE S (M EE25) (5,953) —
Non-current portion IERE D 144,901 141,737

Note:

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Canada, the Group is
obliged to accrue the cost for land reclamation and site closures for the Group's
ownership interest in oil and natural gas assets including well sites and gathering

systems. The provision for assets retirement obligation has

been determined by

the directors based on their best estimates in accordance with the relevant rules

and regulations.
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE 31 BA ~ BRERRKRDREE
AWARD SCHEMES 2
(@) Share capital (@) B
Number
of shares Amount
RGBEE S5
‘000 HK$'000
T FHExT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BR0.01B Tz EiBmAR
Authorised shares ETE A
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, WZE-_—F—HF—H"
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 —E-—#+—-_A=+—A8-
—E-=%—A—8"
“E-=#+-A=+—H 125,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRER
At 31 December 2022, RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H"
1 January 2023 —EZ=F—-A—-BkK
and 31 December 2023 “E-=%+-A=+—H 5,636,804 56,368
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(continued) (#)

31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders on 23 November 2011.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
offer options to any eligible participant who is an employee,
executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries (including
executive and non-executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued
shares of the Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.
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(continued) (#&)

31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE 31 BA ~ BRERKRGRE
AWARD SCHEMES (Continued) g (&
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HBRRFETE (&)
The Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23 EhEFE T ——F+—H
November 2011. “+=HBREXHAEHTF -
On 22 January 2016, in order to motivate and reward the R-_ZT—RNFE—A= + B A&
Company's staff, the Company had granted to certain eligible HELREBLAGETL - AAIEM
participants of the Company share options to subscribe for an E ETAERLBEERBAIRE
aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 4 #£100,000,0000% 2 & f& A F &
in share capital of the Company. The share options shall be REENOIE T EBRMER
exercisable in the following periods: oo BIRERTR TIIERITE :
—  30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January — 30%MEBERER-Z—-)N\F
2018 to 21 January 2026; —AZ+ZRAEZZT=RF

—AZ-+—BA T

—  30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January — 30%MBERER-Z-NF
2019 to 21 January 2026; and —AZ+ZRAEZZT=RF
—AZ+—BRAFIE: &

— the remaining share options are exercisable on 22 January — HEARBRER-_Z_TF-—
2020 to 21 January 2026 AZ+ZHBEZ-ZZT - R"F—
AZ+—BA T

() The number and weighted average exercise prices of the () FERENEER IIEFEGTTE
share options are as follows: BT -
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-CF
Exercise Number Exercise Number
price of option price of option
T8 BREHA 16618 ERREHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT Th BT T

Outstanding at 1 Januaryand R—A—HxK
31 December +-A=+—~
W ARTTHE 0.46 86,560 0.46 86,560
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(continued) (#)

31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(ir)

The following table discloses details of the Company'’s
share options held by employees as at 31 December 2023:

31

BA - BREKRGEZE
2 (&
(b) SRS (&)

(1)

TEXREEER -—_FE-=4F
+ A=+ —HE R AR
ZEEE

Exercise Outstanding at
price per 31 December
Date of grant share Exercise period 2023
R-BE=-=&
+=A=+-—~H
REBH BRITHEE TEH i R AT R
HK$
BT
Employees 22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2018 to 21 January 2026 16,560
=1 —E-RF 046 —FE-—N\F—HA_+_-RHE 16,560
—A-+—H —E-RF-A-+—H
22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2019 to 21 January 2026 30,000
—E—RF 0.46 —h&—A=Z+=ZH=ZE 30,000
—A-+=H —E_RF-AZ+—H
22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2020 to 21 January 2026 40,000
—E-REF 046 —ZT-TF—-—HA-+ZHZE 40,000
—A=-+=H —E-XF—A=-+—H
Total
Bt 86,560
The fair value of the options granted in 2016 RA-_BEAfETEELX -
determined using the binomial option pricing model was RIE—RERNAERE
approximately HK$0.127, HK$0.148 and HK$0.171 per EEETEAFESINN A
share respectively. The significant inputs into the model f%0.1277% JT - 0.148% 7T &

were share price of HK$0.455 as at the grant date,
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 40.99%,
40.97% and 42.56%, expected life of options of seven
and six years, and annual risk-free interest rate of 0.993%,
1.056% and 1.184% respectively. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of expected share price returns
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price over a period of eight, seven and six years before the
date when the options were granted.
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31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

(9]

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme")
with the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible
employees within the Group and to give incentives in order to
retain them for their continuing operation and development
and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered to the
Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 35(c)) subsequently; or
(i) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be paid by the Company
out of the Company’s funds to the Trustee and be held on trust
for the relevant eligible grantees until such shares are vested
with the relevant eligible grantees in accordance with the
Scheme Rules (“Restricted Shares”). The Board implements the
Restricted Share Award Scheme in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme Rules including providing necessary funds to the
Trustee to purchase or subscribe for shares up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted Shares
are granted to eligible employees of the Company or any one
of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up period) to be
decided by the Board at the time of grant of the Restricted
Shares under the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Restricted
Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption.
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(continued) (#)

31 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)

()

Share award scheme (Continued)

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with
the Share Option Scheme. All options granted under the Share
Option Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable subject to
and in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees after
taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate for
participation in the Restricted Share Award Scheme as a grantee
and determines the number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price
and the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the
shares to be purchased by the Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant eligible
grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the
Board at the time of making the award and become entitled
to the Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
Restricted Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares
are held by the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
who may award such shares to the awardees as instructed by
the Board.

No restricted shares were awarded to employees for the year

ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, there was no outstanding share
awards granted to employees (2022: same).
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the years presented.

32 REREEHR

(continued) (#&)

(@) AEHEIZRFEBEEFEND
wREHFENES -

31 December

31 December

Net Debt BT 2023 2022
—E-=fF —EF-—

+=A=+-—8” +=-A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Cash and cash equivalents BekReEHEEB 2,095,411 3,329,715

Borrowings & ;R (4,712,331) (4,735,713)

Senior notes BERERE (2,999,366) (3,665,479)

Lease liabilities HEAE (39,512) (51,632)

Net debt B FHR (5,655,798) (5,123,109)
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(continued) (#)

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 32 BWEREER (&)

(a) This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the (a) AEHHIEFARFEGERKFEN
movements in net debt for each of the years presented. MREKFENEE o (#)
(Continued)

Liabilities from financing activities

HETBRELNEE
Cash
and cash Senior
equivalents  Borrowings notes Leases Total
Be
kB¢
£EER EE BARE HE L H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT FAET T TAL
Net debts as at 31 December 2021 HE-_E-_—%
t-A=t+-~H
HRER 2,786,609 (3,074,809) (5,645,120) (74,966) (6,008,286)
Financing cash flows BEBLRE 753,829 (1,310247) 2,044,008 23317 1,510,907
Interest expenses MeZm = (16,241) (64,367) (5,010) (85,618)
Inception of lease contracts REERNRRE - — = (12,766) (12,766)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEE (210,723) (334,416) - 17,793 (527,346)
Net debts as at 31 December 2022 i
+-A=+-H
HEHFE 3329715 (4,735713)  (3,665,479) (51,632)  (5123,109)
Financing cash flows BEALTE (1,183,068) (27,681) 668,495 13,744 (528,510)
Interest expenses FEER — (50,727) (2,382) (2,301) (55,410)
Inception of lease contracts REEANRRE - — — (10,100) (10,100)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEE (51,236) 101,790 - 10,777 61,331
Net debts as at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%
+-A=+-B
MEKTE 2,095,411 (4,712,331)  (2,999,366) (39,512)  (5,655,798)
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33

34

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding not
provided for at the date of statement of financial position:

A B ISR RMGE
(continued) (#&)

33 EiE

SERMHBAARBMEAT REED
REBITEARKSE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EBC-=F —TooF
t=A=+—H t=A=+—A8
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EHENEE ST
Property, plant and equipment and Investment % - B&E k& E &
accounted for using the equity method FRESEARZEE 255,242 228,090

In September 2022, the Group entered into an agreement with
certain independent third parties in relation to the establishment
and management of 7§ % ¥ % 8 JR . The Group is required to
contribute RMB192,000,000 (equivalents to HK$211,200,000) in
kind to the registered capital of F8 2 #{ #% & JR before 2030. As at
31 December 2023, the commitment outstanding not provided for is
RMB 192,000,000 (equivalents to HK$211,200,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

RZZE-_—_FHAA EBEHEETHEY
FE=ZFEE S ARBEANLKE
BEARAEHREER SBEEARZ-F=
TFERHRAAERKREROTME RN
Z9HE AR %192,000,0005t (18 &
211,200,000 JT) - RZ & = = §F
+ZA=+—8 " BARBEENKRE
# #% B A R #192,000,0007T (A & R
211,200,000 7T) °

34 BEARS

M-S ARNEEIBEEFNS T %
EERHBEREERRE S -7 EEM
BEXwE AETHRAREMEAR -
WEDXHAREHNRXARZINERY
g TERSsERY -
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RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the directors are of the view that the following
individuals and companies are related parties who had
transactions with the Group during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022:

Name of the related parties

34 BABARS (&
(@) BEAMBEXRRLBFREE

Principal business activities

Gh o BERABUTEARRARER
HE-_Z-_ZFKR-_T-_—F+_A8
=t+—HIEFEHEEBMER PR
o

Relationship with the Group

BESER R FEEBEH HEBENER
BB EE IR Trading of natural gas Associate
B EER AAREE /N
5811 B B Trading of natural gas Associate
BELFHEE AAREE /N
s A AR 19 Trading of natural gas Associate
Fs 7 A% 1 RKAREE N
N Trading of natural gas Associate
JFHIN R RKAREE N
BEKE® Trading of natural gas Associate
ERKE®m AAREE = /NS
[iEg=R5 %3 Trading of natural gas Associate
PAE IR AAREE A= /NC]
Sino Director Limited Investment holding Associate
Sino Director Limited wEZER /NG|
Fes ) I 47 Investment holding Associate
Fes ) I 42 WEZERK A= l/NC]
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Name of the related parties

MBS A8 KR

Principal business activities

FEEREH

34 ERHE

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

R5 (&

Relationship with the Group
HEEBBNER

Moral High Limited
(“Moral High")

EeERAR([Em])

Sino Advance Holdings Limited
("Sino Advance”)

Sino Advance Holdings Limited
(['sino Advance])

Sino Vantage Management Limited
(“Sino Vantage”)

Sino Vantage Management Limited
([Sino Vantage])

Alpha Finance Holdings Limited
("Alpha Finance")

Alpha Finance Holdings Limited
([ Alpha Finance ])
Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr. Xu")

FFRR A (TRFEED)

Ms. Guan Yijun
MEA Lt

Investment holding

BREEK

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

BEER

N/A

N/A
TE A

Jointly controlled by Chairman of
the Board, Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, and controlling
shareholder of the Company and
Executive director of the Company
HEEREF  ARNTERHAEZFKLAA
ZARARER A e A R 11T 5 S AR 1
Controlled by Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and controlling
shareholder of the Company
HEEREFE  ARTHRHAZKAA
¥ RS AR BR A% )

Controlled by Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and controlling
shareholder of the Company
HEEREFE  ARTHAFKLAA
¥ B AR BR A% )

Controlled by Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and controlling
shareholder of the Company
HEEREE  RRTHAEHRRF
22 AR BR A% )

Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company,
and controlling shareholder of the
Company

EERTR  AENTHAR R AR)IE
PR AR R

Executive director of the Company

NEMITES
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 Bt ARRG (&
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EERFEEFAIRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial A BRREMIDMEE
statements, the following transactions were undertaken by the HON o KEEBEBTETUTR
Group with related parties: 2
2023 2022
—E:E=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET FHT
Sales and distribution of natural gas HE KK RARK
and other related products H i AB 6 E m
B EEIR BB R 57,487 8,484
BRI B8R E 238 1,361
B ) A 1 Fes ) I 47 32,997 62,397
N JEH N R S 55,145 118,411
FKE#E FEKE R 3,439 9,781
A=W % g8 B 330 ==

Loan interest income from Sino Director A B Sino Director Limited#)

Limited BRABMA 81,496 97,902
Financial guarantee income KB B A AR5 B

from B A1 (Note 6) B E R M (B 375D 7,877 6,294
Purchase of construction material for M BRI R KRBT B

pipeline from B | B& 17 FEEEM B (25,640) (41,600)
Purchase of natural gas REBRAR
EKE & BEKE® (179,547) (215,856)
R e IR R g R (244) —
Purchase of coal from Sino [ISino Director Limited

Director Limited R R (5,907) -
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

The Group provided certain financial guarantee in respect to
the bank borrowings to Shandong Shengli aggregate maximum
of RMB140,000,000 (2022: RMB1,105,000,000), equivalent
to HK$154,000,000 (2022: HK$1,248,650,000). As at 31
December 2023, the amount withdrawn by Shandong Shengli
and guaranteed by the Group was RMB140,000,000 (2022:
RMB675,000,000), equivalent to HK$154,000,000 (2022:
HK$762,750,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognised HK$ 1,448,000
(2022: nil) in respect of such corporate financial guarantees as
the amounts of loss allowance determined in accordance with
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9.

These transactions are conducted at prices and terms mutually
agreed by the relevant parties.

Transactions with key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered as key
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the
key management personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends. Details of the remuneration paid to them are set
out in Note 11.

Balance with related parties

An amount of US$1,500,000, US$500,000 and US$1,000,000
of the US$400,000,000 4.7% senior notes of the Company
due 2026 is held through Moral High, Alpha Finance and Sino
Vantage respectively.

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

34 BEMARS (&)

(b)

(9

(d)

hEMAEEERAR 203555 199

BRSNS (&)

SEBATBARMNBRITER
REEETHBER  S28%E)
A B #140,000,0007T (= & —
F: AR®1,105 0000007‘5) !

£ ®154,000,000% T (= T = =
¢ © 1,248,650,000/8 L) ° M= F
—=ZH&+-A=Z+—8 " @B
BRORRYTBHEEERNSER
A R #140,000,0007T (= & = —
F : A R #675,000,0007T) © A
% 74154,000,000 T (= & = =
£ 1 762,750,000/ 7T) °

|1 af §

RZZEZ=F+ZRA=+—8 "
‘%lExZZZIA%ﬁM‘HN%ﬁEW
1,448,000 T (= & = = & :
®m)  ERBREBEESMBRESE
AIEIRIE THHEHEEBBEN
ErTHEBREESE -

ZERSGNHEEBIANATHEEH
TEH B RAIRREST -

HIZEBABNRS

RAEEWRBEAEEIREEA
B - FTEEBABZMS 0 AH
MzBEEREREMALZRR
EMEBBREE - FTZFA
TZHEFRENMEN -

SRR 75 AV AL B
/A 71400,000,0005 JT4.7/8 —F = X
F 5| B3 18 % F 1 A £01,500,000%

JC * 500,0003 T }1,000,000% 7T
o Bl B &= - Alpha Finance } Sino
Vantage#F A& ©
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEMBRARIRSEFEEE

("CCNG")
PHETRMRREEEARAA
(%)

RECNEEELR
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AR %1,000,000,0007

AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES B2FE
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBLABFEBOT :
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity registered capital ~ attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BRIRE/
£8 HRAL/ RIBEREEERER AMEANEE BERAANERESN  IDER
Directly Indirectly
ER A
Profaith Group Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise Us$1 — 100.0%  Investment holding
Profaith Group Limited ARAMREE NEEELE £ RARMK
All Praise Investment Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise Us$1 100.0% —  Investment holding
All Praise Investment Limited AEAMREE NEBELE 17T RARMR
China Oil And Gas Group Limited  BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise Uss1 100.0% —  Investment holding
PR EEERAR EREARES NEBELE (B RERR
China Oil And Gas Management ~ Hong Kong, wholly foreign-owned HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
PERRERERAR FE NEBELR %7 RERR
Alta Financial Holdings Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise US$1,000 — 100.0%  Investment holding
BREREEERAR AEAMREE NEBELE 1,000% 7T RARMK
Zhongda Industrial Group Inc BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise US§10,000 — 100.0%  Investment holding
MAISEEERAT EBRARES NEBELR 10,0005% T RERR
China Oil And Gas Group Hong Kong, wholly foreign-owned HKS 1 — 100.0%  Investment holding
(Asia) Limited enterprise
PRREEE (EN)ARAR BE NEBELR %7 REER
Hong Kong China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, wholly foreign-owned HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group Limited enterprise
EAMARREERRAA FE NEBELR %7 RERR
Accelstar Pacific Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise US$50,000 — 100.0%  Investment holding
Accelstar Pacific Limited ARAMRER NEBELE 50,0005t RARRK
Plentigreat Holdings Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise US§10,000 — 100.0%  Investment holding
Plentigreat Holdings Limited ERABRES NERALE 10,000%7T REBR
Vast China Group Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise Us$1 — 100.0%  Investment holding
Vast China Group Limited AEAMREE NEBELE E3 RARMK
Sino Invent Holdings Limited BVI, wholly foreign-owned enterprise Uss1 — 100.0%  Investment holding
Sino Invent Holdings Limited AEAMREE NEBELE %7 RARR
PP ERRRESEERAE  PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise RMB1,000,000,000 = 51.0%  Investment holding and trading

of natural gas
RERRRAAREE
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

35 TEMBLARAIRZEFEEE
BB (&)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(Continued)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBLRFEBWNOT @ (&)
(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BRTRE/
£% HRAL/ RIBEREEEEER EMEANEE BERAANEREIN  IEER
Directly  Indirectly
EH# i
BEPRRRBRELAT PRC, limited liability company RMB65,874,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas, gas
pipeline construction and
operation of natural gas
stations
EERRRRERELLT nE BREERA AR 565,874,000 FARER - MABERERR
FARHMAEEREIR PRC, limited liability company RMB44,000,000 = 40.8%(i) Gas p|pe|me construction
EREHLF
ﬁ/{ifﬂ%ﬂﬁk?%l&ﬁmﬁ nE - BREMEAR ARH44,000,0007 MREERE
NS
ERRHEERAARHERRLE  PRC, limited liability company RMB20,800,000 = 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas
ERTHEBANRHERRAA HE BRAMAA AK20,800,0007 ARREE
AESRELZERAR PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas-related
(B AERREEERAR) equipment
RESREEARAA nE - BREMAR ARH10,000,0007 AAREBREEE
(3 RETRBERRAR)
BREMERRBREALA PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 = 30.6%()  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
BROAREARECAR hE BREEAR AR 100,000,000 AAREERMAERRE
ENPRRRERELAR PRC, limited liability company RMBS50,000,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
BMRREERE L 7 HE AREMLT AR 50,000,000 ARREERMREERE
ERTEMABREAR PRC, limited liability company RMB25,000,000 - 50.5%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
ERPAREERELR HEl - BREALH AR 25,000,000 ARAREERMREERE
BETRRRERELD PRC, limited liability company RMB45,000,000 S 30.6%(i)  Natural gas transmission through
pipeline
AETRREERELA HE EREALA AR 45,000,0007 EERRRE R
T RRREREAL PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
M AR EREERA HE EREALA AR 100,000,000 AAREERMEEERE
BT EZRERMABMRAA  PRC, limited liability company RMB22,000,000 = 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas
(R BREERMRARAR)
ANTAZREARTARLR  HE BREAAR AR22,000,0007 ARREE
(I%E: iﬁi%ﬁﬂﬂ‘hﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ)
R EIR (58 BRAT PRC, limited liability company RMB75,000,000 = 100.0%  Transportation services
TRRENR (R ARAR mE - BREEAT AR75,000,0007C ERR%
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(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#&)

35 TEMBLARAIRZEFEEE
RS (&)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(Continued)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMIBARFHBWNOT : (&)
(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ERTRE/
8 ARAL/ RIBERAEEESER dMEANEE HERAANEREIN  TEER
Directly  Indirectly
E# i
ETREERRERAT PRC, limited liability company RMB32,000,000 - 51.0%  Natural gas transmission through
pipeline
BT HEENRBRAT hE ERALLT AR32,000,0007 EERARGL
MR RERRARERAR PRC, limited liability company RMB111,000,000 - 47.1%(0)  Gas pipeline design and
construction, natural gas
transmission through pipeline
MR REBRREERAA HE FREALA ARE111,000,0007C W‘EL%L:MJF&@ EEAR
REZ
PEPRRRERELAR PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 = 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
FrhamRERELRT HE ERERRT AR 20,000,000 AAREERMAEERE
PR HFI)FEEERAT  PRC, limited liability company RMB71,000,000 = 51.0%  Investment holding
matR(RIDFERERAR  TE BREMAF AR71,000,0007 REZR
i mnEEREEAR PRC, limited liability company RMB67,910,000 - 35.7%()  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
ik e EREEAA HE AREAAR AR 67,910,000 ARREERMEEERE
UHm2EXARERAA PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 = 35.7%(1)  Trading of natural gas
Ik TR RARERAT hE - EREEAT AR2,000,0007 AAREE
RERFHRMABRAR(F1H : PRC, limited liability company RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%(0)  Trading of natural gas and gas
RERAMARRAREMALR) pipeline construction
w/ﬁﬂwmﬁﬁmwm hE ERALLT AKH75,000,0007C AAREERMRERRE
J&E%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéf )
FERPREERTABRAE  PRC limited liability company RMB50,000,000 = 40.8%()  Gas pipeline design and
construction
BERHTRE Lk’*ﬁ’ﬁ' RAR  HE AREALA AR 50,000,000 MAEERT REE
BREEMRARAT PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise HK$187,500,000 - 1000%  Investment holding, construction
of natural gas stations and
trading of natural gas
BREERRERAT hE NEBELRK 187,500,000 7T REBR  RARUEERRA
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(continued) (#&)

n'ﬁ

35 TEMBLARAIRZEFEEE
BB (&)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(Continued)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBLRFEBWNOT @ (&)
(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BRTRE/
8 HRAL/ RIBEREEEEER IMEANEE BERAANEREAL  TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
B E:4
ZERERRBRAT PR, sino-foreign equity joint venture RMB18,000,000 - 80.4%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
ZEPRRRER AT E PHRERELE AR 18,000,000 AAREERMAEERE
PERREEAEEERAFERE  PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise US$75,000,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
PRRRERREERLR)
TERRREEEERAR (MET RE HEHBELE 75,000,0005% 1T RARK
BRR(ER) & \ﬁﬁﬁ )
BRABREREFRAE PRC, limited liability company 1$$29,000,000 - 100.0%  Provision for finance
ERARHERERRAT nE BREMEAR 29,000,000%7 REBE
MEERRERRERAR PRC, sino-foreign equity joint venture RMB170,000,000 - 100.0%  Provision for finance
HERRRERERRAT ME A ERELE ARH170,000,0007 RitRE
AR REREEAR PRC, sino-foreign equity joint venture RMB40,000,000 - 38.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
BN REREELR ME MR ERELE AR 40,000,0007 AAREERMREBRE
FETRETIZARMR PRC, sino-foreign equity joint venture RMB26,000,000 - 60.4%  Trading of natural gas and gas
ARAA pipeline construction
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁJI%IE%ﬁﬁ ME PR ERELE AR 826,000,000 AAREERMREBRE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁk’*g&ﬁ REAL PRC, sino-foreign equity joint venture RMBS50,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
BETAMRARALAR E PHRERERE AR 50,000,000 AAREERMAEERE
RBTRARA PRC, sino-foreign equity joint venture RIMB284,400,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
RATRRAT E PHRERERE AR 284,400,000 ANREERMAEERE
BLRARAERAR PRC, limited liability company RMB11,480,000 - 70%  Trading of natural gas
BT ARRBRAR nE - FREMRA ARH11,480,0007 ARREE
ERRBRRERAA PRC, limited liability company RMB35,920,000 S 70%  Trading of natural gas
B “ ARRARAA HEl - BREALH AR 35,920,000 ARREE
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eI RE

(continued) (#)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

35 FEMBRARIRSEFEEE

BB ()

(Continued)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBLRFHBEWNT @ (&)
(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
o BRiBE/
8 ARAL/ RIBERAEEESER dMEANEE HERAANEREIN  TEER
Directly  Indirectly
E# i
AR ERRERAR PRC, limited liability company RMB63,900,000 - 70%  Trading of natural gas
RARRAERAA hE EREERT AR 63,900,000 AAREE
Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada CAD 141,040,000 - 100.0%  Exploitation and distribution of
crude oil and natural gas
Baccalieu Energy Inc. IEYN 141,040,000717C BRRAERERRAR
Notes: B3 -

(i) The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries through
a 51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the Group has
control over these entities and they are considered as subsidiaries
of the Company.

(ii) The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong China Oil and
Gas Group Limited (“HKCOGG"). Therefore the Group has control
over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary of the Company
since the Group owns more than half of the voting rights in this

subsidiary and the decisions are made by simple majority.

(i) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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EEEBEESI0%EZNH B
ARFHEFPRFEZSHER
AlERERE o At SE#E
ZEBEBNERE  mMZSE

BRE/RANMEBRR -

SEEBRTHETEREZENE
AABEFHMRREBARA
A ([BEPAMRE]) FHZM
BREERED ANKEHE
EZWBARBYERERE
AUBERSHEELRE -
BWEBEHZERBERZGE
URER/K - RAIZHWBAR -

EERR - LXRMAIRAANE
ARRATEZEAFEEERNG
SEEEFEERHS - EF
RE - RHEEMHBARZH
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(continued) (#&)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEMBARIRZEFIEEE

AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES BoFIE (E)

(Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial (b) UATHEHIFHPEREMBLT (%
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non- BHEEMEBERZFERER)
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The REMBKEREE - THRERAD
information below is the amount before inter-company FEE AT 2 £ 58 ¢
eliminations:

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Total assets MEE 12,964,814 13,018,048
Total liabilities BfERE (6,421,657) (6,617,192)
Net assets BEFE 6,543,157 6,400,856
Revenue S 11,853,014 11,818,623
Profit for the year F AN 958,515 961,394
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE (458,787) (654,480)
Total comprehensive income 2N B 499,728 306,914
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 7 5t i% B 5 3E 2 G 25 223,462 95,106
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RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#&)

35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEMBRARIRSEFEEE

AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES B2FHIE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial (b) MUTHEHIPHHEREMBAR (B
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non- BHEEMEBERZFIZRER)
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The FREVHRERYE - THERAR
information below is the amount before inter-company AR EAI 288« ()

eliminations: (Continued)

CCNG CCNG
b DR S
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Net cash generated from operating KEXBEEAZREFH
activities 546,316 989,751
Net cash generated (used in)/from wEES (FTR) EE
investing activities ReFE (211,941) 580,024
Net cash used in from financing activities EAEEBIFTA 2R & /F5 (883,183) (938,457)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BekBReEEDORD)
cash equivalents #EnFEE (548,808) 631,318
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZHER
HReHEER 2,628,109 2,179,294
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R &S 2 (64,829) (182,503)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT+ZA=+—RAZHER
31 December ReFEHEA 2,014,472 2,628,109
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35 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AND CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(Continued)

(9]

Details of the controlled structured entity are as follows:

The Company controls a structured entity which operates in
Hong Kong, particulars of which are as follows:

Structured entities

FRER

Principal activities

ETEEHR

FE B HRRMEE

(continued) (#&)

35 TEMBLARAIRZEFEEE

B2w1E (F)

(0 ZEHEBERFEOT :

DAL —HEEBEENEE
B HFEOT

Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee")

Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted

Share Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees of the Group

Best Thinker Limited ([ ZFE A L)

As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administering and holding the Company’s shares for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 31(c)), the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services of
the employees who have been awarded the Restricted Shares
through their continued employment with the Group. The assets
and liabilities of the Trustee are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position from its adoption and the
Company’s shares held by the Trustee are presented as a
deduction in equity as “shares held for share award scheme”.

36 APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 April 2024.

REBSEREEMNEMRBIERD RBEEA - EEERFAERRARND

BN AT E SRR 1% 75
REETE (H310) BEA -~ BE
EFERBKRMMRKRE » AAA
BIEHZEANM B R EERRE
VTAREERHERODNEER T
S RN & B AR 8 R
ESNm - XRANBEERARE
BEMERAKESBRERS
MBRARS  ARREARTH
B A R B 1F R — @R R B £
BEPE2E®R  JIEIRKROER
eI -

36 #HtESREHMBEHREK

EERPR_ZT_MFRA-_+HABHE
LEET SRR -

TRRREEAERLT 2023FFHK 207 »
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(continued) (#)

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37 AR R ER
COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E_-= —EF-—
+=—A=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Intangible assets EEE 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries LTS NGIE: 4,681,484 4,888,683
4,683,186 4,890,385
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H th JE I FR IR 25,255 15,042
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEER 157,920 362,367
183,175 377,409
Total assets BEE 4,866,361 5,267,794
Current liabilities VeI
Other payables H fth & A FRIR 572,159 27,092
Short-term borrowing HHEE 2,283,720 2,225,516
Senior notes BREE — 668,345
2,855,879 2,920,953
Non-current liabilities B AE
Senior notes BEER 3,090,171 3,086,557
Total liabilities EEE 5,946,050 6,007,510
Equity E
Equity attributable to owners of NEHEE ANEEER
the Company
Share capital fi% 2 31 56,368 56,368
Reserves & 38 (1,136,057) (796,084)
Total equity M B (1,079,689) (739,716)
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by ARRAMBRAKER T -_MFNA
the Board of Directors on 25 April 2024 and was signed on its behalf. TThHABEERMETHUTESER
Xu Tie-liang Guan Yijun FFER BEE
Director Director o -
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38 RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

39

B B 35 #R R B 5E

(continued) (#&)

n'ﬁ

38 DRI

Capital Shares held Share-ased Exchange (Note)
Share redemption forshare  compensation fluctuation Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve  award scheme reserve reserve surplus losses Total
BRA%E  NRGBEE EigE (hit)
REE  EAREERE  HEFERR g4 fife EiEg ZitkE it
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Tin Tin TR Thn TEnL TEn Tin Tin
A1 lnuary 2022 R-F-=f-A-A 1308 98 (377947 11,41 8475 s (14508) 368549
Shre repurchase RhEE — (54300) - - - - - (54300)
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - (373,39 (373239)
At 31 December 2022 O
t-A=1-8 13,208 (53,302) (377,947) 11,241 (18,475) 1,447,454 (1,818,263) (796,084)
Share repurchase himE - - - - - - - -
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - - (339.973) (339,9m3)
At 31 December 203 #Zgz=
tZf=1-8 13,208 (53,302) (377,947) 11,241 (18,475) 1,447,454 (2,158,230) (1,136,057)
Note: T
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the net assets RAZBABRBEEER -—NMN=FREA
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in MEERBEARZEEFEBL AR MKE
1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange METRN 2 EBEZEE - BE-—AN—F
thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981 (as amended), the BEEQIE (BIIX) - RAIZHAARHK
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to the shareholders in EETEARATAHSIERTRE - B AR
certain circumstances which the Company is able to satisfy. BEFAELLEBR -
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39 REMEEE

The outstanding guarantees in the amount of RMB140 million
provided by China Qil and Gas Investment Group Company Limited*
(PR R I E £ B AR A R], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, for the due performance of the repayment
obligations of Shandong Shengli Co., Ltd. (LU B B | f% 10 B R A
Al), a company limited by shares established in the PRC whose issued
shares are listed and traded on the main board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (“Shandong Shengli”) to its creditors were released upon full
repayment of the loans by Shandong Shengli in January 2024. As at
the date of this report, there was no outstanding guarantees provided
to Shandong Shengli in favour of its relevant banking and financial
institutions.

RAZHEAZEZEMB AR P HMRIKE
SEERDARBANEN MEEEAZ
ERTEFECMREHAOREEERA
Eﬁ%141ﬁﬁ5%ﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁ1" il 11
F-ABBEEERRER - RAK
%EIHH 158 4 1) s ) B ) 4R 1t DA EL AR
MRTREBBEBERXEANKEEE
* o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER R EE

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of other potentially material accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the group
consisting of China Oil and Gas Group Limited and its subsidiaries.

(@) Subsidiaries
) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

(O CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

) Consolidation (Continued)

1

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

40

= A
7 O =]

Bit ¥ ¥R 2R B 5F

(continued) (#&)

HBEERS T BRBE
(&)

(a)

FHRKEEBRAT 2023FFH | 21

MELE (&)

()

AREERA ()

1

EB A6t (@)

SERZFAWBEE
MRERKE T OE
MR - K
Yo B8 77 1 FE 4R XA mn
FEERNBEERER
s BB TRHEAER
BERLOEEER
MFEEE - RIATERA
FEXKRAKGERE
B ELRKES A
BRFEENRRA S
BMLLOIMEtE - I
P #E 25 1) P B A A
PEb oy i U B H
RFEFE BKIFEE
BB HEERRE
WANEMEEEE

i

WEMBEBXARE
HERXH -

WE®E G DR ERE
T WBHERRKA
B 1% W O3 B BE &
REBEEENREE
BEFHEARKEE
B®RYE: FHiAH
BN EMmMELENME
BEREEHER -

a



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

) Consolidation (Continued)

4]

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

4 212 CHINAOIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

¢

HitBEEARSHTBRME

MELR (&)

ARERRE (&)

Q)]

EB A6t (@)

EEAE  REK
BB 77 9 (] JF S AR AR
HE B REMERNR
UL BB 77 B9 M 2R IR
BRAMOAFESR
Fr B Al 38 BB BEF
BEHRFER  HZE
BABEIE - 3l&
BEBEMST » WHEE
RE - BEBRIFEER
BE a5 M 5t A RF B RO HE
5 48R R R AT WS Mt
BRRIEEFENR
FE EEZEBRHFEE
ERBANER -

SEARBZEAHR
5 REHRRERXZHKR
BEREETUEHE -
AEREBEBTTUY
e mBELE B
RARENERER
FEELAE - AR
REEBERANHEE
BR— -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HiWBEEERSTHTHEREE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#&)
(Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MEATR (&)
() Consolidation (Continued) () AREERH (&)
(2) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 2 TEERIAEEHEZ
without change of control MEARIFEEERS
3]
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do & B K K EH R
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as ZHEEBRERZR I A
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the RIIER#RZR S — 8
owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. NEERWB QG %
The difference between fair value of any consideration BAZEHEER A
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying EIRS - FRWEH
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in REAFMEHEFRKE
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling B AL B R R E
interests are also recorded in equity. EFfFEREEZERE
PIfERERS - MIEIER
L EMSARBN
PIERER
(3) Disposal of subsidiaries 3) HEHBAA

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, a joint venture or a
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

EEETBHESRZE
#ERZERZME
MERBRZERERK
ERFEERZAF
BEHSAE  ME@E
EEHAURER D HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group'’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equal or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to share of profit of investments accounted for
using equity method in the profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o]

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined
it to be joint venture. Joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investment in joint venture include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint
venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Joint arrangement (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the interest in the joint venture is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to share of profit of investment accounted for
using equity method in the profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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AR T EH

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HttBEEASHBRHE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#&
(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (e) HEBmE
() Functional and presentation currency () TEEREZEFREK
Items included in the financial statements of each of EESERBIUWEREME
the Group's entities using the currency of the primary FEE  DEZEBES
economic environment in which the entity operates FEZEFERLBRRECER
("the functional currency”). The consolidated financial (e E¥])FTE - BRE
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company's HmMRUQAR ZIMERE
functional and the Group's presentation currency. Br2REEBETEY -
(i) Transactions and balances (i) KBRAEH

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss within
“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Transaction
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equity held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equity classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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A B IS R R MY G

(continued) (#&)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HEETEASSTBERME
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (,,5)
(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) HNEIRE (48)
(ii)  Group companies (i)  FEERF]

The results and financial position of all the foreign FrEBIINERE (2HHIER

operations (none of which has the currency of a AeBkg /ﬁﬁ BR2EE)

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency ZZD REHEHKEE T —H2

different from the presentation currency are translated BEE ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁik?ﬁ

into the presentation currency as follows: /R HEATHFERERZR
B

position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year
end closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

—  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial — BYHBHRRRZEIZ
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me

Bih %5 ¥R 2R B 5F

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iv)  Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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(continued) (#&)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMEBEERS T HERBME
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#4&)
(Continued)
(9) Investments and other financial assets () BERHMERMEE
(i) Classification (i DHE

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity investments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HtBEEBERS T BERBE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (48
(Continued)
(9) Investments and other financial assets (Continued) () BERHMESRMEE ()
(i) Recognition and derecognition (i) R RA R
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are BHRERBEEZEMEER
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group REBHBER XH5BHAR
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are SEBEEERHEEE A
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from H - 2REERKENEHE
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred ERER2ENERZDHE
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks #F BSEBEEKEBEZR
and rewards of ownership. AR K B R A B E R
LIEHER
(i) Measurement (i)  AFFE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in “other
(losses)/gains, net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
(losses)/gains, net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in “other (losses)/
gains, net” and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity investments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group'’s right to receive payments
is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see Note 4.2(b) for further details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

0}

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs. It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less all costs to completion
and all direct.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales and
distribution of oil and natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. The Group holds the trade and other receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

0]

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of finance income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 EMEEERSTHERBE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#&
(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EERF
() Retirement benefit costs () RIEEFEA

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of
the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the provincial
governments.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those qualifying employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, contributions to the
scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated
as a percentage of employee’s relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The
retirement benefit scheme costs charged to consolidated
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the
Group in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iir)

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service payment as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant
of share options or restricted shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or restricted
shares granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).

(ii)

(iir)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(A IE iR R MG

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 EMBHEERETTHERME
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%
(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued) (p) ERERF (&)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued) (i) U BERZIIH (&)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or restricted shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options or restricted shares
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iif)  Share-based payments (Continued)
Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recognised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting
period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares held
for award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RE

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

()

(ir)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, its associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date
of the statement of financial position and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

4 232 CHINAOIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2023

(°

40

HitBEEARSHTBRME

(&

=5

NIESEFR S %L

HARERAXBREHRELTH
B RMENBABER  HEENE
MEERERRERERERLZ
HBEEBERN - EHBERT -
IR TR 2 Bl A E At 2 T Y SR
R BEXER o

()

(ir)

B

EHMBRXHEREEER
HBERARAELEZEE
RELBRBKAMEZE
FRUBRARBBAEEB
HEE BB ZBEENE
B EEBERERRBIED
REMARZIERE TG
BHRERZMAR - LHEERIE
T AR R TR HI A A B 75 1 R
X Z BRRRERME -

EEFTFH
ABERER

BERERERANBEEERE
EMBBEZHERFEERT
BELAZERZE  NER
MHBREABER - AW
WEZERBRBBEREBEDN
BRER  ATEEBELE
MBEE - W8 XK G A
INERBERLE T EG
IBMBREZZS - AIER
MREERBEMELET
FIBHMAT AR - BEMRF
AR B R A HIE B8
SEHELBBEZHE (KR
) BEE  RABRBERE
B HREEZBRSELEMN
SHABBERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R MY G

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR T EH

(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group where
possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,
and makes adjustments specific to the lease.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
Group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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(continued) (#)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties,
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less without a purchase option.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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(continued) (#&)

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMEBEERS T HERBME
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#&)
(Continued)
(u) Financial guarantee contracts () HBEREDN

MBHERAONRBLERTER
REBWAE BEVIEAFE

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially

measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. The fair value of financial
guarantees is determined based on the present value
of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the
payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of

AEHRBRUTMEZESE

HE

e REFBEUBHRSEERF
FEeRIABRTHWRHAER
EERAETNESE Rk

o VIXHERMESER (WMER)
REBEEBF B RS ERE5
HEPANHKERANERD
Rt RAZHE - MBERD
AVYEEEREBITARET
MENREREERKTT
NHWRBEZHNREREE
BMINE - IMAEEBEX
NFE=TTWMHEFTEHE -

i L Bt & N R0 B AR EL A R A
REREHREEER > MAFEA

associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the
cost of the investment.
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Five Year Financial Summary
IFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for UTHIGEERBEAARVRFEZEER
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial EERBEME  DRESKBEHBEZEERZ
statements and restated or reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. WBMERWEENXTUERHEEDE o

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t+-BLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —E-= —E-—F —TE-TE —ZE-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAL FAET
(Restated)
(mE5)
Revenue L 18,527,804 17,296,675 14,341,948 10,432,777 10,260,654
Profit before taxation B %4 A1 4 A 720,539 1,576,501 1,990,560 630,916 973,510
Taxation 1a (340,385) (388,688) (476,626) (115,601) (194,391)
Profit for the year F R F 380,154 1,187,813 1,513,934 515,315 779,119
Attributable to: AT G -
Owners of the Company NSIEZ 2SN (232,496) 730,144 904,182 28,757 330,984
Non-controlling interests R 612,650 457,669 609,752 486,558 448,135
380,154 1,187,813 1,513,934 515,315 779,119
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-= —E-—F —E-—F —E-TE —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 20,841,051 21,709,615 21,881,079 19,270,335 16,832,484
Total liabilities BaE (13,279,109)  (13,859,069)  (14,002,306)  (11,924,121)  (10,389,469)
Total equity EmBE 7,561,942 7,850,546 7,878,773 7,346,214 6,443,015
Non-controlling interests FEERE S (3,743,726) (3,627,868) (3,680,083) (3,568,080) (2,984,731)

Equity attributable to owners 7% B A B
of the Company 3,818,216 4,222,678 4,198,690 3,778,134 3,458,284
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